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2020 10

77,981 100.19

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

0 0.00

1 0.00

77,982 100.19

146 0.19
77,836

8,132 100.00
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2020 10
3,309 4.24
2,686 3.44
2,028 2.60
2,003 2.57
1,831 2.35
1,731 2.22
1,643 2.11
1,367 1.75
1,343 1.72
1,325 1.70
1,018 1.31
1,007 1.29
852 1.09
800 1.03
766 0.98
707 0.91
702 0.90
697 0.89
645 0.83
442 0.57
432 0.55
428 0.55
290 0.37
261 0.33
209 0.27
206 0.26
177 0.23
149 0.19
107 0.14
99 0.13
87 0.11
29,347 37.63
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1,318 1.69
1,224 1.57
1,203 1.54
1,197 1.53
1,153 1.48
1,125 1.44
1,120 1.44
1,041 1.33
1,028 1.32
999 1.28
927 1.19
920 1.18
913 1.17
902 1.16
895 1.15
784 1.01
690 0.88
641 0.82
595 0.76
586 0.75
573 0.73
564 0.72
522 0.67
435 0.56
424 0.54
421 0.54
406 0.52
379 0.49
324 0.42
316 0.41
262 0.34
262 0.34
243 0.31
212 0.27
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204 0.26
203 0.26
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190 0.24
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114 0.15

44,957 57.65

5,847 7.50

143 0.18

122 0.16

98 0.13

94 0.12

32 0.04

9 0.01

6,345 8.14

1,004 1.29

114 0.15

1,118 1.43

428 0.55

234 0.30

83 0.11

317 0.41

317 0.41
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30
2020 10
(¢ ) (¢ )
0 B da E ing Markets Bond Fund
PINCO Bermuda Energing Markets Bond Fun 60,808,369|  4,562,938| 77.980,610| 100.19
DBS Bank Ltd. 0.010 | 2020/11/ 270 270 270 0.00
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. 0.010 | 2020/11/ 203 203 203 0.00
BNP Paribas Bank 0.010 | 2020/11/ 195 195 195 0.00
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group 2020/11/
0.010 185 185 185 0.00
Ltd.
Citibank N.A. 0.010 | 2020/11/ 101 101 101| 0.00
0.010 | 2020/11/ 66 66 66 0.00
Bank of Nova Scotia 0.010 | 2020/11/ 12 12 12 0.00
0.010 | 2020/11/ 11 11 11| 0.00
10 (0.270)| 2020/11/ 0 31 0| 0.00
11 |Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. 0.010 | 2020/11/ 0 0 0 0.00
12 (0.270)| 2020/11/ 0 5 0 0.00
2020 10
(¢ ) (¢ )
U.S. Treasury Bills 0.100 | 2020/11/10 1,799,955 1,800,000 1,799,979 2.31
U.S. Treasury Bills 0.103 | 2021/ /26 1,699,584 1,700,000 1,699,478 2.18
Dominican Republic International Bond 5.950 | 2027/ /25| 1,226,926 | 1,200,000 1,311,012 | 1.68
Russia Government International Bond 5.100 | 2035/ /28 1,017,048 1,000,000 1,218,000 1.56
Ukraine Government International Bond 7.750 | 2021/ / 1,022,246 1,000,000 1,031,877 1.32
State of Rio De Janeiro 6.024 | 2020/12/20 | 1,000,000 | 1,000,000 1,004,353 | 1.29
Uruguay Government International Bond 5.100 | 2050/ /18 680,724 668,000 895,324 1.15
Turkey Government International Bond 3.250 | 2025/ /14 868,857 800,000 864,541 1.11
Ecopetrol S.A. 7.375 | 2043/ /18 783,001 680,000 852,217 | 1.09
10 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.085 | 2020/11/20 799,964 800,000 799,972 | 1.03
11 |U.S. Treasury Bills 0.095 | 2021/ / 799,859 800,000 799,890 | 1.03
12 |Southern Gas Corridor CJSC 6.875 | 2026/ /24 741,814 700,000 799,713 | 1.03
13 |Saudi Government International Bond 3.625 | 2028/ / 740,715 700,000 777,973 1.00
14 |Corp. Nacional del Cobre de Chile 4.875 | 2044/11/ 594,641 600,000 736,731 | 0.94
15 |Jordan Government International Bond 5.850 | 2030/ / 690,707 700,000 706,451 0.91
16 |Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd. 5.750 | 2021/ /26 697,843 700,000 688,611 | 0.88
17 |Nigeria Government International Bond 7.143 | 2030/ /23 709,641 700,000 677,860 | 0.87
18 |Abu Dhabi Government International Bond 3.125 | 2030/ /16 614,137 600,000 669,201 | 0.86
19 |Guatemala Government Bond 5.750 | 2022/ / 622,468 600,000 635,556 0.82
20 |Nigeria Government International Bond 6.375 | 2023/ /12 617,084 600,000 626,047 | 0.80
21 |Eskom Holdings SOC Ltd. 6.350 | 2028/ /10 648,830 600,000 621,644 | 0.80
22 |Dominican Republic International Bond 6.400 | 2049/ / 592,864 600,000 612,060 | 0.78
23 |Saudi Government International Bond 4.500 | 2046/10/26 573,660 500,000 594,093 | 0.76
24 |Costa Rica Government International Bond 5.625 | 2043/ /30 700,036 800,000 586,000 | 0.75
25 |Petroleos Mexicanos 6.950 | 2060/ /28 749,363 742,000 581,190 0.75
26 |Romania Government International Bond 4.625 | 2049/ / 447,835 400,000 578,416 0.74
Ivory Coast Government International
27 Bond 5.250 | 2030/ /22 597,635 500,000 564,421 0.72
on
28 |Egypt Government International Bond 4.750 | 2026/ /16 619,714 500,000 563,356 | 0.72
29 |Aeropuerto Internacional de Tocumen S.A. 6.000 | 2048/11/18 512,049 497,790 556,631 0.71
30 |Kazakhstan Temir Zholy Finance BV 6.950 | 2042/ /10 530,615 400,000 549,492 | 0.70
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2021 1
325,201,320.92 33,977,034 10.74 1,122
2011 10
295,625,354.43 30,886,937 11.55 1,207
2012 10
222,460,118.57 23,242,633 10.53 1,100
2013 10
10
185,324,715.18 19,362,726 10.42 1,089
2014 10
11
123,239,694.32 12,876,083 9.01 941
2015 10
12
96,713,902.14 10,104,668 9.28 970
2016 10
13
91,001,776.00 9,507,866 9.30 972
2017 10
14
80,191,316.35 8,378,389 8.27 864
2018 10
15
82,959,195.11 8,667,577 8.75 914
2019 10
16
77,835,585.30 8,132,262 8.15 852
2020 10
2020 83,852,516.95 8,760,911 8.79 918
70,028,136.48 7,316,540 7.38 771
70,918,401.14 7,409,555 7.47 780
74,861,863.67 7,821,568 7.92 827
77,047,236.08 8,049,895 8.16 853
79,251,258.96 8,280,172 8.40 878
79,608,828.58 8,317,530 8.43 881
77,264,226.81 8,072,566 8.22 859
10 77,835,585.11 8,132,262 8.15 852
11 80,021,446.48 8,360,641 8.46 884
12 82,324,504.76 8,601,264 8.59 897
2021 82,302,418.83 8,598,957 8.46 884
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0.72 75

0.72 75

0.72 75

10 0.72 75
11 0.72 75
12 0.72 75
13 0.72 75
14 0.72 75
15 0.72 75
16 0.72 75
2020 0.06 6
0.06 6

0.06 6

0.06 6

0.06 6

0.06 6

0.06 6

0.06 6

10 0.06 6

11 0.06 6

12 0.06 6
2021 0.06 6
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14.25
2011 11 2012 10 31
2.60
2012 11 2013 10 31
10
5.79
2013 11 2014 10 31
11
6.62
2014 11 2015 10 31
12
10.99
2015 11 2016 10 31
13
7.97
2016 11 2017 10 31
14
3.33
2017 11 2018 10 31
15
14 .51
2018 11 2019 10 31
16
1.37
2019 11 2020 10 31

100
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2,688,020 10,724,822 30,281,852
2010 11
2011 10 31 (2,688,020) (10,724,822) (30,281,852)
2,888,370 7,566,658 25,603,564
2011 11
2012 10 31 (2,888,370) (7,566,658) (25,603,564)
2,559,450 7,044,748 21,118,266
2012 11
2013 10 31 (2,559, 450) (7,044,748) (21,118, 266)
10 702,030 4,027,591 17,792,705
2013 11
2014 10 31 (702,030) (4,027,591) (17,792,705)
11 454,310 4,570,081 13,676,934
2014 11
2015 10 31 (454,310) (4,570,081) (13,676,934)
12 417,790 3,671,475 10,423,249
2015 11
2016 10 31 (417,790) (3,671,475) (10, 423,249)
13 650,730 1,292,685 9,781,294
2016 11
2017 10 31 (650,730) (1,292,685) (9,781,294)
14 903,690 988,502 9,696,482
2017 11
2018 10 31 (903, 690) (988,502) (9,696,482)
15 461,020 680,093 9,477,409
2018 11
2019 10 31 (461,020) (680,093) (9,477,409)
16 616,600 548,637 9,545,372
2019 11
2000 10 31 (616,600) (548,637) (9,545,372)
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USA
USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank Secrecy
Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10 476
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2019 11 2020 10 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2021 29
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2020 10 31

2020 10 31

1 0

77,981 8,147

9 1

588 61

78,579 8,210

543 57

54 6

46 5

7 1

33 3

60 6

743 78
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i Ei iR
- F-Hfir) {F LD

BT 106

Angolan Covernment International Bond

8, D% due 11/36,/2029 § 200 ¢ 185
B, 250% due 05/00,2028 00 237
G, 125% due 11/26/2048 S0 35
9, 5006 due 11,/12,/2025 404p 3o
TLTFaH 1, 120
{ERR RS, 308)

Argentina Government Internaticnal Bond

0, 125% dug OF,/04,/2030 100 37
0, 125% due O7/09,/3035 1,117 JE0
0, 125% due OF/00,/2041 1,367 467
0, 125% due O7,/09,/2046 230 7a
1. 00 due OF/09,/2029 BE 35
Provincia de Entre Rios Argentina

8 To0R due O2/03/0015 (a) 130 -3
Provincia de la Rioja

9. 7508 dus 0/ 2085 300 136
TadeF AR 1, 157
(GAhES, 521

TihA=T 025

B e S

Armenis Government Internstions]l Bond

3, 0508 due 00/36,20H 200 190
TaA=TEH 190
(RS 196)

A—2Z FUT 0.1%

Sappi Papler Holding Gabdl

3, 125% due 04/15,/2028 EIR 100
A=A L7 UTHM

(EREEs113)

B £

TEAMA Pt 108

1.0%

Seuthern Gas Corrider CJSC
G, B7T5% due DF/24/20I6 3 o0 s

Repiblic of Azerbaljan Intetnaticnal Boad

4. 750 due 03/18/2024 200 212
TR P it L0z
(HefhingEs940)

Bahamas Government Imternatisnal Bond

G, 0D due 11/21/2028 and 262
sArriM 262
(TS 300)

161/438
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Buhrain Government Internasticnsl Bond

Repiblic of Belarus Ministry of Finance

6, 378 due 02/24/2031 400 a7
P L e
{FebEERS400)

Star Enorgy Geothermal Darajat II

4. B30 due 1014,52038 204 206
I a—HEN 206
{EApRLEES200)

State of Rio De Janeiro
6. 024% due 12/20/2020 L. 0op 1. 004

Banco BTG Pactual 5. A

4, 600% due 01/10/2025 200 203

Banco Votorantim 5. A

4. D0 due O9/24,/2022 200 206

BRF 5. A

5. TR0% due D6/Z1,/2050 200 1491

Centrais Eletricas Brasileiras 5.4

4, BI5% due 02042030 200 pleed

CSN Resources 5 A

T, 6Z5% due 04,/17/2026 200 208

JES Investments I1 GabH

7. O00% due 01/15/2055 4000 125

Odebrecht il & Gas Finance Ltd

0, 000% due 11/30/2000 (B) A6 1

Petrobras Global Finance BV

5, 063% due 01/15/2030 378 394
1, 831

Brazil Governsent International Bond

2.875% due OB/06,/2025 2 203
3.BTEL due DB/12/2030 200 203

406
IF -0 3, 241
(R AMREERS3, 145)

GIL Trade Finence, Inc.

7.250% due 04,/ 16/2044 200 26]
W= R 261
(G NES200)
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A A Re— B
MU R0, 5%
Repiblic of Comeroon International Bond

9, 500% due 11/19/2025 $ 400 3 121
BAA—al 421
(A ERS421)

oA < o 4. 6%

A kot o EEM 0, 18

Garanti Diversified Payment Rights Fimance Co.
oA due 10°049,/202) &3 bie]

21Vianet Group, Inc.

T BTSN due 10152021 200 205

Bioceanico Sovercign Cortificate Ltd

0, 00 due D605,/ 2034 208 219

CE Butchison International 19 IT Ltd

3, 37H% due O9/06,/2045 (h) 200 216

Geely Automohile Holdings Ltd

& 00 due 12/06,/2024 () 200 20

Interoceanica IV Finance Ltd

0; 00 due 115002025 (W) prcd 450

Interocesnica ¥ Finance Ltd

0, O due 06152030 300 256

Moituan

3, 050% due 10/38,/2030 204 201

Odebracht Drilling Nerbe VIII/IX Led

B350 due 12501,/2021 123 115

73500 due IRA0LSP0XE (e) G935 243

Poru Enhanced Pass-Through Finance Ltd

0, 000% die D6/02/203% (h) 357 38

Sands China Ltd.

B, 400 due 08082028 204 218

Sunac China Holdinga Ltd

T2 due 06142022 A0 A0

7. 500 due OF01,/2034 200 20y
3, 305

Dubai DOF Suluk Led

2,763 due 09/09,/2030 200 201
A=A 3, 553
(RIS, 453)

Baneo Santander Chile

2, 700 due 011052025 (hi 150 157
Corp, Macional del Cobre de Chile (R)

3. 1806 due O1/1H4/2000 =00 213
4. 875 due 11042044 G0 T
Esbotollsdora Andina 5. A

3,050 due 01,/21/2050 150 2]

163/438
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{F-mifid I}
Ezpross de los Ferrocarriles del Estado
3. 065% due 0B/18/2050 5 200 i 186
Ezpross dée Transporte de Pasojercs Metro 5.A
A, T due 05,/07,/2050 204 Ll
Latam Airlines 20156-1 Pass-Through Trust A
4 2000 due 1150552027 (hd 383 35

2, 028

Chile Governsent International Bond

2. A due 01/31/2021 200 208
FU &M 2, 236
(TeAHELEES 2, 073)

Chira Huadian Overseas Developsent 2018 Ltd

3,375 due 06/23,/2075 (b) 200 a0
Contemporary Ruiding Development Lid

1. 873% due 09/17/2025 20 20
Sinopec Group Overseas Development 2018 Lid

2. 160% due 05/13/2025 200 07
20700 due 06/13,/2030 204 20
Thorghn Online PEC Imsurance Co. Ltd

31258 due O7/16,/2005 S0 158
HEE 1, 018
(B ELES09a)

Ecopetral 5 A
T, 3788 due 09/18/2043 680 A2

Paed' B MY 3

Colombia Government Intermational Bend

T.375% due OB/E8/2037 300 24
oo ETRN 1,276
(A mLEES 1, 139)

AFUD 0.8%

Pl R JE
Costa Rica Government Intermatiomal Bend

5. B25% due 04,/30/2043 B0 586
azy U hErH 586
(A IRLERSTO0)

Fi=&thEg 40

Maedlbs S84
Dominican Republic International Band

4, 5T5% due 09/23/2052 150 153
5. 8754 duo 01/30,/2060 150 1M
BL650% due 01/25,/2007 1,200 1,311
B, 400% duo 06/05,/2049 500 612
B, B50% due 01/27,/2045 100 108
B BTSN due 01/29,/2025 200 295
7.500% due 05/06,/2021 133 137
5, 750% due DB/U5/205 DOP 8,000 147
10, 3755 due 09/04/2002 400 7

164/438
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(F-hifi) (F Ui
100 500% due D4/07/2003 DOP 1, 60D : m
100 750% due 0811/2008 &, 300 156
10, 875% due OL/14/2020 1,300 24
16 G500 due 02.04/2008 3,000 51
Fi=hAREaH 3,111

(T EpIRs 2, 293)

4, GI5% due 12/06,/2021 3 117 107

Ecusdor Government International Bond

0, 0% due O7/31/2080 (F) (h) T 35
0, 500 due 07/31,/2080 100 BT
0. 50e¥e due O7/31/2050 () th} 100 [
0, 500% due 07/31,/2035 GO0 3
0. 500% due O7/31/2035 (f) h) 13 412
0, 500% due 0O7,/31,/2040 100 50
0, 5006 due OF,/31/2040 () (h) 35 162

1 135
=¥ T Fa-aat 1, 232
(EeRmESoa4)

Egypt Government Interoationn] Bond

&, 80N due D411/2025 EUR A0 60
4. TE0E due 04,/16,/2028 S0 a3
5. 625% due 04162030 200 217
B, A7T5% due 04,11,/2031 204y 224
7. 6XE% due 05/30,/2032 5 ] 406
T, 900% due 02/21/2048 o 150
=T M 2, 060
(RS2, 176)

LAl At B O TS

1 L 0T
El Salvador Goevermment Internaticnal Bond

. 123% due 01/20,/2050 Lol
T. 6254 due O0/21/2034 100 i ]
BL 250% due 04.10/2002 100 £3
6, 500 due 07/15/2052 300 261
S B 573
(MR IRLERS T05)

Bepublic of Ghana International Bond

7. B25% due 05/16/2029 200 186
8, 1750 due 01/18/207% 200 e
B, 125% due OF/36/2002 500 461
8. 7506 due 03/11/206] 100 351
H—+H 1, 203
(MRS, 275)

165/438
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Industrial Senicr Trust
5, 50 due 11/01/2022

200 § 209

Ei-gi S
Guatemala Govermment Bond
4, D0 due 06,D]/2030

5. To0% due OBS06/2022

B, 125% due 06/D]1/2050

Frr-Fant
(GRS, 31T)

28

)

Husreng Bong Kong Capital Led
3. 6006 due 10/30,/2022 (b)

Husrong Finance 2019 Co. Ltd
1, 381% due 02/24/2023

Lenova Group Ltd
3 A4Z1% due 1150272030 (d)

300 ke
=00 195
200 203

Hungary Government Imternational Bond

1,750 due 0B/05,/2005
5, 375% due 03/25,/2004

e H Y —a

A0 503
120 135
641

Adanl Transsission Ltd
4. 250% due 05/21/2035

Muthoot Finance Ltd
A, s due 0902,/0023

Shrires Transport Fipance Co, Ltd
5, TO due OX/Z7,/2022

199 20
=00 a0
300 2095

GET

Expert-Import Bank of India
3. 250% due 01,/15,/2030

200 24

801

Indcmasin Asshan Alusinius Persere FT

S.480% due 05/15/2030

LLPL Capital Pre Ltd.
687G due 02/04,/2084

Folabuhan Indonesis IT FT
42500 due 05/06,/20%5

200 28
2e2 L
40D 136



EDINETOOOO
O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

2020 10 31

i iR

(F-HAfE) Ui
Pertamina Perserc FT
6, 500 due 11,/07/2048 § A0 ] 340
Perusahasn Gas Negara Tbk PT
3, 123% due 05/16/2024 200 20
Perusahasn Porsercan Porsero FT Porusshaan Listrik Negara
6. 150% duo 05/31/2048 20 g5

2,003

Mg R
Indenesia Goverrment Imternational Bomd
A 45 due 04/E5,/2070 200 =T

Perusahasn Penerbit SBSN Indonesis IIT
2, 8006 due D6/X,/2030 208
A b0 due OF01/2008 200 228

E

4, 450 due 02/20/20H 200 231
w2

A ¥ FATHM 2, 905

(R RpERs2, 165)

A 2SR (. 8%

0, 4%

Delek & Avner Tesar Bond Ltd

5, 0B2% due 12/30/2022 B0 B2

Leviathan Bond Ltd

G, 125% due D6/3/2025 200

208
290

S 1) -, 4%
Isreel Government International Bond
3, 375% due 01/15,2050 300 324

Ivory Coast Goverrment International Bond

5. 2506 due 03/32/2030 EUR 500
=Z— b T —

(He s cos)

g |2

aerd ol 0 5%

0. 2%

TransJamaican Highway Lid.
5. 7506 due 10V EG 2036 5 150 148

M d I8 &

Jusnice Government Internsticonl Bond

7.BT9% due O7/32/2045 200 262
Dt DM 411

Jordan Govermment International Boad

5. 750% due 01/31/2027 200 207
B B50% due OF/07/2030 700 08
ar-ant 813
(AR ERSETE)
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EazbunayGas National Co. JSC

5, 375% due 04/24,/2000 b 200 B

Tengizehevroil Finance Co. Intermatiomal Ltd.

3, 2500 due 0B/15/200 200 203
442

YR 0T

Kazakhstan Governsent International Bend

23758 due 11,/08,/2028 EUR 200 2

4 875 due 10/14/2044 i oo 266
522

AET AL AN oE4

(RANEETY)

e T e Lo

tal W '

Aroundtown 3. A

5. 375% due D3/21/20M (h) 300 350

Gazprom Neft OAD Via GPN Capital 5.A

B, D0l due 11/37/2023 208 =

Unigel Luzesbeourg 5. A

B, 7506 due 10001/2008 200 194

MBS SR TE6

Axinta SPVZ Bhd

2. 163% due O8719,/2040 200 168
Axiata SpvG Labuan Ltd.

3. 064% due 087192050 200 163
Potronas Capital Ltd.

4. 500 due 04/21/2050 200 253
- b —THN 645
(T A Ese00)

Cibance 5. A Iba

& 962 due 07/ 182009 200 212
Hipotecaria Su Casita 5.A. da C.V.

0. G204 due OB/27,/2049 (u) N 3,512 &
Orbia Advance Corp. SAB de C. V.

5, 500 due 01/15,/2048 5 200 o7
Petroleos Mexicanos

5. 950% due 01/38/203] 100 &4
G, 3506 due 027122048 GG 511
G, 7% due O9/21/2047 200 156
6. 950% due 01/38,20680 T42 581
7,690 due 01/33,/2050 454 s
Trust Fibra Uno

4. 8BRS due 01/15/2080) ang 32
B. 9500 due 01/00/2044 200 ang

2,686

168/438
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U LR 05K

Mexico Government International Bond

40N due 03/15/2115 ER 300 i e
5.750% due 10/12/2110 5 I

505
Akiadit 3,261
(ERIEYS, 921)

Mongolin Governeent Intermational Bond

51258 due 12/05,/2022 120 124
B, 623% due 05/01/2023 400 117
B 750N due 03/00/20%4 ADD 453
It 953
(MR EUEES054)

Eu = 0.3

SO0

Morocco Government Intornational Bond

A4, BB due 13/11,/2022 200 210
8 v afily 210
{HAEEEs210)

Kamibia Covernsent International Bond

5. 260 due 10/29,/2025 200 203
FzeTahl 208
(B EE199)

Eazakhstan Tomir Zholy Finance BY

6. Q5% due O7/10,/2042 40 550
MDGH-GMTH BY

3 950% due 05/21,/2050 200 230
Metinvest BY

7. 750% due 04./23,/2053 204 205
¥OTR0% due 10UET/2029 250 240
Prosus KY

1. 53 due O8/0G,/2028 EUR 104 118
e b 1, 343
(RS 1, 204)

Kigeria Government International Bond

6, 3TH% due 07/12/2023 5 GO0 626
B, 500 due 11,/38/°2027 400 L
T 143% due 02/E3,52030 TOd 678
7. 625% due 11/21/20% 300 316
8, 747% due 01/21/2031 200 20
F4 Pz VTR 2,218
(A NiRS2, 250)
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Oman Goverrment Internaticnal Bond

5. BE5Y due 017172098 5 300 5 295
6, O00% due 0F/01,/202 oy 1B
B, 500 due 03082047 S00 A0
6. T50% due 01/17/2048 200 164
de—e it 1,028

(R EESL, 138)

Third Pakistsn Intornational Sukuk Co. Ltd.
5.625% due 1I/06,/2022 200 200

Aeropuerte Internscicnal de Tocusen 5. A

6, 000 due 11/18,/2048 fi 557

Auecridad del Canal de Panasa

4. 950% due O7/29/2005 (h) 200 251

Baneo Nacional de Panasa

2. 5000 due O 11/20030 200 1k
1, 007

Pl s BN
Panams Governmont International Bond

A4, B0 due 04,01,/2056 1] L]
6. TOMFE due 01/ 56/2036 200 290

TEd
e 1,791
(RefhELEES 1, 649)

BT A 0.0

YFU R 0%

Paragusy Government International Bomd

A, 6% due 01/25,/2083 200 21
4, 950% due 04/38/308] it 1] =M
B, 40 due OF/30,/2050 200 244
nIITLENR Btk
(AR E639)

ALTOORP SAA

6, 875% due 040772027 PEN 00 288
Banes de Credito dal Paru

4. BROL due 09/17/2024 GO 176

N T T
Peru Goverrment Internaticnal Bond

|

2, 3024 due 01/23/2086 $ 2w 210
2.783% du 01/23/203] 200 51y
2 844 due 06/H0,/2030 100 LK
5. 350% due 08/12/2040 PEN 1,200 325
6. 350% due 08/12/2029 100 3

895
A~ 1, 327
(B AMIEES1, 318)

170/438
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BDO Unibank, Inc.

2,125% due 01/13/2026 3 200 R
JGSH Philippines Ltd.

4, 125% due OF/09,/2030 200 205
Jollibea Worldwide Pre Ltd,

& 125% due 01/24,/2005 200 204
4. 750% due 06/*4,/2030 300 300
FLOT, Inc.

3, 450% due 06/23/2050 400 115

1, 325

Fhilippines Govermment Internstional Bood

2, 950% due DB/05/2045 300 316
740 gl 1, 641
{EeF RS, 609)

Qatar Governsent International Bond

3, 750% due 04/16/2030 () 400 165
4. 0006 due 03/14,/2029 (h) 400 170
A, A0 due O4/16/2050 300 351
I F—n-frlt l=3]3
(B MEES 1, 098)

n—v=T L%

Hard B2 B W 3
Fomania Government Imternational Bond

3.000% dus 02/14,/2031 200 20
3.624% due 05/76,/2030 EUR 100 154
& B23% due 04/03,/2049 £00 5T
A—==T&H 920
(E MBS 75T

5CF Capital Designated Activity Co.
5, 375% due OGS16/2023 i an0 {28

FAU AR AT

Fusszia Govermment International Bond

& 3TEN due 03/21/200 400 58
5. 10 due OF/28,/2045 1, 000 1,218
B.000% due 10/06,/2027 RUE 46,800 M2
7. 250% due 05/10/2084 26, 500 363
7. 650% due 04102080 45, 900 502
7. T00K dus 03/23/2033 1.200 17

2, 900
aT&M 3,328
(bR, 205)

171/438
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Saudi Government Intermatiomal Bond

Z.B73% due OX/04/2023 (h) § 00 i 3
3 G256 due 0F/04/2008 700 78
4, 373% due 04167202 (h) 200 256
4. 5006 due 10U38/2048 504
P I TN | -]
(ERpILEES 1, B3T)

ek A A 0. 6%
VBN SR

Senegal Covernment International Bond

4. 7H0% due 013/201 EUR 200 231
B, 250 dup 05/13,/2033 5 200 2
M AN 435

U L0
Serbia Governsent Internaticnal Bond
1. B0 due OG/36,202 EUR 100 114

AT EN 114
(RS 113)

feredi—n 0.2%

0. 2%
Hedeo Bell Pre Lid
B, 375% due 01/3/2027 $ 200 177

Ludfi— Rt 177
(E A3 197)

Mr=00 3.7

AngloGoeld Ashanti Holdings FLC

37500 due 10/01/2030 200 212

Eskem loldings S0C Ltd.

5. 70N due 01/36,/2021 T [

B, 350% due DE/10/2028 B0 62

Growthpaint Properties International Piy Ltd

5. BT2R due 05/02,/20%3 204 208
1, 731

South Africa Government International Bend

o, B0 due 09202029 400 du

5. 7800 due O0/30/20449 GO 543

5, 87d% due 05,/00,/2022 204 212
L, 163

Wr = hakt 2,884

(GRS, 911)

Tl 2o 0, 3%

YU 0

Autonomots Community of Catalonia

4. 00 due 0015,°2001 ELR 200 243

Alf gl 243

(A 22)

172/438
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{FHAfiE) i)

Sri Lanka Goverrment Imternational Bomd

5. 7o due 04,58,/2023 - 200 3 115
6, 1Z5% due O6/03,/2025 200 114
B, 250 due OT/27/2021 204 158
75508 due 03382000 1, 00 54
AU Fh48 az7
(Ee M ELERS1, 220)

=T 0.2%

i o —HE 0 A
United Republic of Tanzania

5. BI9% due 06/23/2022 114 114
¥ F=THH 114
(B ARRLEES 114)

Turkey Govermment International Bend

3, 2500 due OB/14/2025 (W) ELR B0O 865
& BTSN due 10,06,20265 3 204 181
o, BTa% due 04/16,/2043 G50 176
5, 250f% due 0371372030 300 262
5. TE0% due 05/11/2047 400 31
B, 37TE% due. 10/14,/2025 200 1696
ke £ BF 2, 201
(EMEEs 2, 20e)

[kraine Government International Bond

0. 0D0% duo 05/1,/2010 501 135

4. 3758 due 01/27,/2050 EUR. 400 39]

7. 7505 die 09/01/2021 § 1,000 1,032

7.750% due 0W/01/2082 100 104

7. TR0% due 09/01/2003 o0 s

vy 34 TEl 2,171

(G EES2, 060)

TFFRENEN 25

i 0.5%

Aba Dhabi Crude 0il Pipeline LLC

4, 600K due 11,/02/2047 400 178

[P World PIC

5. 6254 due DW/25/2008 () 201 220
07

Abu Dhabi Governsent Internationzl Bond

2, T00% due 06022070 200 183

3, 135% due O4/16/2030 GO e

[ubal Government Internatiomal Bond

3000 dhine 09,09,/3050 200 1859
1, (41

T3 RS 1, 748

(R BHNERS 1, 599)

173/438
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i i Fi i

(F-HAfi) (W)
Afren PLC (a)
6. G2 due 1204,/ 2020 i BED L4 3
10, Z50% due (447082040 201 i
Fresnille FLC
4. 2500 due 10/02/2050 200 204
HEBC Holdings PLC
A 3008 due 0F08,°2005 () 200 228
Katwest Group PLC
4. BOE due 0518202 405 171
State Savings Bank of Ukraime Wia 55B #1 FLC
9, 375% due 03/10,/2023 50 51
[Mkraine Eailways Via Rail Capital Markets FLC
B 2500 due OF/00,/203 200 200
Ukraine Railways Via Shortline PLC
9. 875% due O8/15/2021 200 203
A ¥ A& L, 367
(GefpmERsE, 244)

T AU hERE LA

Thw b s b R 0.3

Husbaldt Amoricas LLC
T7.07T8% dus 11302021 CLP 191, SO0 23

i 2 1%
General Electric Co.

5,550 due 01/06/2005 § 400 471

Rio 0i]l Finance Trust Series 2014-3

G, 750% due 01062027 374 430

Rio 0i]l Finance Trust Series 2018-1

B 2005 due 04./06/2028 245 73

Butas 2 & 7 Finance Ltd

0, 00 due 06/30,/20356 200 141

Sputharn Copper Carp.

5, 2500 due 110850042 (hi 100 123

Volkswagen Group of America Finance LLC

1. 0E3% dup O0/24,/2021 (k) 200 201
1,843

df=if e AL 2 EENR 0. B8

Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust

4 023N due 03252034 2 2
Deutsche Alternative-A Securities Meortgage Losn Trust
0. 4796 due 0B/25/2037 (a) 497 417

Luminent Mortgage Trust
0, 509 due 12/25/2038 (a)

Morgan Stanley Mortgage Loam Trust

=5
-

2.63T% due 06/Z5/2035 3 ¥
28

Fannio Meo, TBA

3, 5006 due 12/01/2050 (d) 300 317

T AU b freEsh 2, 622

(AL 2, 407)
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Uruguay Government International Bond
o, 3TS% due 01/33,/2003]
4, 875% due 04,/20,/2055
5, 100 due O6/E8/2050
7. 625% due 03/21/2035

AT A il
(HefbLERS 1, 267)

A3 AT 048

Petroleos de Yemezuela S.A. ()
5. 375% due 04/12/2027
5. 50 dup 04,12,/2037
6, D0 due 1185, 20006

5 100 § 121
<] a7

GEE 8O

100 156

L 570

3
1, 600
300

s %3

Venezuela Government International Bond (a)
B, 00 due 12040,/2020
7. TR0% due 04/13/2082
B 2500 due 10U13/2024
o, 00 due 05,07/2023
11 650% due 085052031

~FX=TEH
(AH RS2, 060)

i T 0.2%

ADD i
00 &7
150 4
200 %
500 48

207

M

S 0 2%

Zashia Government International Bood
B, B0 due 0414,/2024

B 97T due O7/30/2027

FreTaMN

(BAEESaia)

£E

B

174

Foderal Home Loan Bank
0, 0B5% due 11/30/2080 (s}

SET

Australin and New foaland Banking Group Ltd
0. 000% due 11,/02,/2050

Bank of Nova Scotia
0. 010% due 11025200
0,000 due 11022020

BNP Paribas Bank
0. TO0W) due 11/02/H020
0,000 due 11,02/2020

Brewn Brothers Harrimam & Co.

0 270%) due 11/02/2000
0,000 due 11/02,/2020

b

CAD 20
H Li]
EUR 16
3 103

¥ 1
CAD 1
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(F-HAfE) (i)
Citibank N A
0. 0 due 11,/02,°2030 5 a3 H a3
DES Bank Ltd
0, 010% due 11,/02,/2020 143 43
HSBC Bank PLC
{0, TOOR} due 11/02/2020 EUR -1 £l
JPorgan Chase Bank N A
0, 019% due 11/02/2020 § L7 107
MIFG Bank Ltd.
(0. 2705} due 11,/00,/2020 ¥ OZ,1M 20
Roynl Bank of Canada
Q. 010% due 11/02/208 CAD 15 11
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp,
00 TOOR} due 11./02,/2020 EUR L) 11
(0. 270%) due 11/02/2020 ¥ 1 1]
0.010% due 11/02/2020 5 6 [
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Lid.
(0. 700K} diee 11,/02,/2020 EUR 15 18
(0 Z70%) due 11/02/00H) ¥ i 3
0,010 due 1170252000 G ] 1
0.000% due 11,/02/20mM 5 15 35
859
1kl AL A O
0. 055% due 01,/07/2021 SO0 800
0, 100 due 11./10,/2020 1,800 I, B
0, 103% due 01/26/2021 1,700 1. 395
4,299
S e 8 6, 345
(Ee A ELESG, 345)
BRSSO 106 2% § B2, 820
(M LERSE4, 641D
ST U AT o TR
(i} () 0.3% 238
(GREEE R -2 7 0, S $(8)
E oD BAER LUAM, S8 (6 6% {5, 088
SUREEE 100. 0% 3§ 77,941
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SR RIS R SRR (R T, MRl )

*  YomEn, FUCRRI NS EA SRR L ThA T ERS,

(b (CES T b Bl e B,

(b REESR ERALTCSAME. ERHSEE, REREE oM TR R SR,
(b BEWLBER,

dh  REFTHRGTIES.,

feb &=k, R ETORE D e,

() ENEEMEERER
e e RSl ShE

BT F—i#lr (RSB (BSHS9) R i L]

Fewndor Governsent International Bond 0, B0 07/ 3052000 08/ 302020 - ] 5 B 1 05%
Ecmador Government Intermational Bond 0, Bodre 0773052030 08/31,/2020 3 L] b, (%
Ecuador Government Internotional Bond 0, 500r% 07./31,°2035 06/ 31,2020 235 12 0. 53%
Ecandor Govermnment Internatfonal Bond 0, 50 OT. 3420400 087312020 749 162 1}.2&
D R 5 404 i 75 [

fik A3 LR i |

() Lathas
LR
e mmA RO, LA, Hudnd

HEN sidd  (A-8CF)  (C8SF  SEEN 6 BHE e ] Sme
A= 0, 10 10,27,72020 1102/2000 3 b 1] U5 Treasury Bemds 3. 000% due

08 15, 2048 3 {207 i bt I 1 209
Bt 0100 1050272020 /002020 23 L5 Treasury Bonds 3, 000% due

08715 248 o* 203 Pl ]
PR T N =) 57 587

i ] #wime L
WEY  WARRY (ACASE (ASRS HEASE™ (13T n-F o S
nRC 10, 5O 08,01 2000 T 1533) § 1615)
BAC (01, 5O0%) 0831/ 2020 THD® 5 {10a) (100)
m i 450% 1/DB,/2020 HY™ 1424) t424)
0K 0. 550% 10222020 01202021 1435 (435)
500G . 450 08,05,/ 2020 L1/17 020 (3 5620 (3, B66)
ol LE} 0, 7% 0805,/ 2020 THR™' {313) (315)
SRR 3 G
AR A L LTI EA B W ol
MO B
F—rt—goof b
BEL
4] WHET SIEMENE 90 i

Lo
ek 5 ] L] 43, 119 b1 1] 5 {16} k3 {3, 435)
L 0] (316} ] ] (316)
e TR B 0 {531} {435 i1, L) iz, 108
EE [ 0§ (3,066 § (438) 1 1, 458} (5, 55}
A [ 0§ (3,960 8§ (4350 8§ (1,458 (5, 655)
R o SR § (5658
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" wWE ET T
ik ) Ll r—#y  (A/BF)  GEEE  SEE dobkid
HFs U5 Treasury Bonds 3, 000 0815/ 2048 £ oM 5 ooy % (242
E N & § (aod 3 (202)

AT L U b oo B G T | oo

EUFE, 200RI0E31 0 BES, HEENRIC L SMANG &S 0O GRIBTN G GRS L UEAS (SE) ShifRofETHS,

(b 20204E10A 31 HME, FTREO-AS—RBEOSEICE-SE, BERES, 2208 FA-ol A RS HE 2 - TnE,

R LR fiEAdhds LTF

B BLFEEE RAsdied WO FoROEE EBE (S —raf-o
ey . B A IENE  REG paDRNe MBRISH  /BA  r—HEY
o=l s A = LERE
S 5 587§ [T o5 o5 587 % (DT 0§ TG
iR 0 (71 [ 0 (719 866 147
I n [424) o i [424) A6t 45
50X [F} (435) ¥ o (435) 465 an
500G 0 {4, 241) o 0 (4, 281) 4,154 T
A SR = SIS
s 0 1 [ ] (5 o {20e)
fiAns LrropoRemBERI &N 3 B27 % (58500 % ] {252)

* Z0HEINA 3 AEAE, () Pl ik i ek o,

TR

= PR W e ol L

O SOAAF10H 31 T IR, iR e AREIS, S0 FaAcT, I TR G508 T i AL TREEMEAREE, SRy s, RE
B LIRGI2s L Lot e Sl = LAl S,

g Fn B 0 A S L e e,

W g A= =i, IERERTIYCAR RS S il g (RN i) ORI, AL TN DM B IR 20
A —iF e, O SR A Y — RS A N RS TR R s TR RN S, A —ERE M Sl
MR ALC2 TR, MREEIC T AEOES Ay —HENR) SR8m0k,

(i) M7 AT R LT VAT LRI RO R e SRR T AT o

Buro-Bund 10-Year Bond December Futures Shert 1270020 14 ] i o i i
U5 Treasury 2-Vear Mote December Futures Shert 1272020 11 | 1] Q
IS5, Tremsury 5-Year Note December Futures Long 125020 B (% 1] L]
U.8. Treasury 10-Yenr Sote Decesber Futures Long 1272080 13 {15 L] -1}
I.5. Treasury 3-Year Bond Docesber Futures Lang 1272020 ] {43} i {5)
SN A 3 (148} H ] 5 ()

R e SRR R

.24 POT CEW)a®  (A/BE) BEREY MG (%) Wil A

CDX. EM-29 Index { 1. D00 06 /20, 0023 % 6 % 3 3 4 % a 3 o

COX, EM-21 Tradeen (1. o) 08,700,/ 3024 1,604 20 51} 1 o

COX, EM-33 Tredex (1. (%) 4/ 20,/ 3025 HLLH 0 {#) 0 ()
s = 3 3§ 1§ ®
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b
= e eump s _ ERESE
s Foai] fou uibia b ] [ A e (A2 B9 MERE B () R Fik
T, F-Month USD-LIBOR 1. 5004 D6,/21,/2007 1 0 % 1§ 5§ 0% )
-2 19 G-Month USI-LIROR 2 7I0% 03,/01,/200 5, 800 25 636 il (3
1 1 G-Month US0-LIN0R 1. TR0 0621 247 400 1] 121 &} {1
4 ¢ G-Manith EURIBOR 0, 250 1215,/ 2050 EUR 500 1300 (# | ]
24 G-Month EURTEOR 0. B 12/15/2050 730 § i) i31) 7 (1]
g2 1) FEDLOL Tndex TS 10/21,/2005 4 201 o o i ]
i FEMLOL Index 0. 562% 10421/ 3030 41 U] b o o
1 1 FEDLOT Index o7 10721/ 200 10 o ] Q o
ih FERLOD [medex 01, KA 10721/ 2040 16 0 ] a ]
2 IBMENED 6, 100 ! 20625 MK 13, GO0 28 i Q (1)
a1 IREXTD 6. 100 Al Bl i 7,300 15 15 0 (1)
=il IRVEXID 5, 4705 04,/2L/2005 3, 500 (3 K] | (]
ol 1BEXID &, B15% 042372025 13, 50 ST 18 1 L]
=t ] IBMEXED 5, B0 047242085 3, 300 (3 (3} a ]
2R SIFRRATE 017 10/21,/2085 5 201 1 1 0 ]
2 SUFRRATE 0.533% 107212000 41 o o 0 ]
gt SFRRATE 0, T45% 105212005 10 o H] 1] o
el SIFRRATE 0, 5% 10/2 L2040 16 1] o 0 0

551l [T 81 [T ] (6}
2T TR §  cta 3 Tl TR} [FE1)

7 U AT g Pl EERT Y ST i A RO L S AT U AT 5 S

EUT I, 20206E10 031 ALTECT Ao U 85 o D M TR O O e S R T U 5T o TRGL RS L R R T

s

2020 4R 10 A 31 AMAE. 600 ¥ FA-OMEN, FREOLEHMT Y AF ¢ YHEE LUSTREOED L 25 0T ) AF ¢ THAOHE &
LT#EAhERTHS, 25— RSN miEic-o0 T, MR S EEOEE (i —nga; tREoz b,

ST Y AT ¢ SHE ST Y A5 4 SRR
EHERD AT
B [71 B i

mA AT w7 ) ATuT

AT 5t aft  AFvar K ¥ ot
=T TR e TR
BPMROERE2S
ST U AT S B 5 o $ 0 5 1 s u 5 0 3 Gy e

Ty FIAPoF 2 0 OV ETRN, BEOAT 2 7RAGERTERSARS LI CERESSE 80, 7re-Fik (i) a7 +7ol
ExElzR L lis oS8 g RN ERRL . BEREL L LTy b2 P =R R SRR R S
it (F) SRS BREBE L P b A e P e P =S R S E e o D e N L bR e e L
C IBEIR S I TR 5.

| WD AD » TREOENTEREAE LS ZEHEhSE S, P PR e T P s B RE LTERS D L, R RAT S
T e FOMVRE LTSNS I AR S SRR AN,

AR S e o FR i ko AT RS T, RS LTI, L e L2 o L) R S0 S T e e £
BreL, reidde b FULAF S Lo oA CEfaimineE) ok, MAEEES o= Lk BN R AT s RBORERETHE
AR SR, S AT o e A R LR S i R S SRR, Y b e A Ty T o — OO imiE, 3
LiEmpes St it L5 I MR TR T Y 28 L 2 el o (R BTN AR e S o R A e,

LS L, REMAF—FEHT S, BRI T RS2 TR S L UERRE) fREolk,
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(] )l 5 ¢ o il G| 5" U 457 4 7 R

ST

BeEA AMERRES (M)
HEY (H./%) AR ERET ﬁ_ HEN
B 11,/2020 ] 755 I 50, b7 5 16 5 1]
] 112020 AUTH 1113 % e 7 1]
Fs 1172020 3 287 EL® 43 s} [E1]
CER 15/ 2020 128 Lce 0 {1
B8 122030 PEAN 21 H 34 a 1
CE 122020 H 1,765 PEN 6, 323 0 (48]
CBE G221 PEN 7512 i 2,087 ] 1]
LA 112020 L 2,903 b s} 1]
GLY 18/2020 B, 035 85 0 in
GLY 10/2000 b ] 15, 440 198 3 o
GLA 11,2020 10, &8 146 1 1]
GLe 1172020 3 b L 2,1 il o
LA LU Fpta ke | [ 1, 804 ] 3l s} 1]
GLY 02/2021 2,30 ] 1] 1]
GLM 02021 8,925 150 a 1]
GLA 11,2001 aF 161,500 Ty M4 1}
Hus 1152020 HLB 3,127 M 0 ¢}
ns 10,2020 § 1,226 EUR 1043 o (i
Wl 12/2020 PEN 1,589 ] 431 0 o
HOX 10/ 2000 U &, 03 T 79 b2 0
50X 122020 4,638 B, 406 o o
SCK 12/2020 [k 44, 352 iz I6 1]
500G 10,/2020 10, 307 [3% 9 0
358 18,/2020 [, 262 47 2 [
58 10/2000 H 47 [ 62 a {2
S5B 1272020 158, a5 ] 47 2 1]
LAG 1172020 [k 3, 020 ) a 1]
UAG 11,2020 14, 859 20y 13 0
UAG 10,/2020 5 218 FeUE 17,337 0 o
UAG 12/ 2020 R 17, 337 ] 27 Q 1]
HETHEREH [ [ {65}
AT 2 7TRA
2020108 3B
BED
A>TPAE -
b A e L] #mE Flifo b FLiTh RENAE AT TR,
B 2erirqge EHH (/R AFLy Y SERAC Eh/ @, @BF) #E Al
Y Colombin Goverrment
Interrational Bond (1. Dl 020,/ 2024 0, EHE i o E il 3 o § a - f
CEK Mexico Govermment
Intornmt ionsl Band {1, GO0y 13730072023 LIS 1, 300 13 (1) i} {1k}
CER Russis Govermment
Intermational Bond (1. 000 06,20, 2024 0. 777% GO0 4 (13h o (8}
Jrl Ibai Govermmont
Intermational Bond (1. DOk T2/20,/2024 1. 246% 100 L) 1 1 0
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iR H A
miEm
-
FT T LA [ }=a L] E 1] Bt o FlLIiTh REAHE AU 7RE B
HERF =rF4F4— EE&H (HSRSE AL FY OSEREY EES (S R B AR
oy Brazil Governsent
Interrational Band 1000 % /20, 2022 L 119 § 4 i {n 5 I ¥ o 5 o
oA, Patmpa Govelnment
Internat fonal Band 1000 % 12/ M e 0. 136% fi | (4] 5 b1 o
T0s South Africa Govermment
Internmt fonal Band 1000 % (620, 2022 LGlI% e (2h 2 o o
HFs Indonesia Govermment
International Bond L000 % 12700/ oy 0, 555% 200 {4 1Z B o
HEC Argentina Govermment
International Bond 5000 % 12/ 00,2023 9. 5478 50 (6} o o (B}
R Jatar Goverrmont
Internat ional Band L00 % g s R s [ERE LY 4040 2 ] T o
BB Saudi Govormment
Internat ionel Band L. D00 % 06, 2072024 0, GZ5% 500 a z T o
(i Snd i Goverrment
International Band 1000 % (R e Rt 1 0, B9T% 125 1 o | o
il Sonith Al'vica Governmen!
Internal fonasl Bond L0 % 120070021 1. L% 200 (14} 14 o H
CEX Uatar Goverpment
Internat ional Bond Lo D00 % 06, 003022 0, 15E% 1. D00 5 L 1Ll o
CER South Africa Governsent
lnternat ional Bond L0 % 1200, 200 0, B9 14 0 ] 0 o
(L] South Al'vica Government
Internnt ional Band L. D00 % [ Bl el | L 190% 400 (3} z 1] (B
(i Brazil Government
Intermotional Band 1. 000 % 12/ 00,2020 0, beire 1. 450 F ] S o
GaE Brazil Gevernment
Internat fonal Band L0 % (6, 0 B L 1g% 104 Q » o i
GsT Indonesia Gevermment
Interoational Bond 1000 % 0630,/ 2023 0, B 200 2y ] 3 0
GE Malaysin Goverrsent
International Band L0 % 12500,/ 2023 0, Mg 2, 900 (14} o ki o
G5T Sawd{ Goaverrment
Intermat ionel Bond 1. 000 % 1220, 202 0, AT% 7o 1 ] 1 ]
H= Spod | Govermont
Internnt ional Band 1. 000 % 12500, 2023 0, Bkes 1. 000 a 16 1} o
Hus Saud | Geverrment
Internatfonal Bond L0 % (6, 20, 2024 0, BIE% k1] 3 1 1 1]
TRl Istae] Govermment
International Bond 1000 % 060, 2024 0, 405% 100 2 ] z o
Jrl Pannma Governsent
Internat tonal Bond L. D00 % 120/ a0 0, 136% 100 (1 2 1 o
Jr Sawdi Govermment
Intermat ionel Band 1000 % 06,20, 2024 0, 6Z5% 400 4 z B o
Jrl South Africa Governsent
Internat fonal Band L0 % 12/ 00, ] L. 1'% 104 a ] a I
i Uatar Covorfmenl
Internattonal Bond 000 % 1200 00 0, ke a0 2 T a o
Wi Fussia Government
International Bond 1000 % 120201 0, 321% 400 3 1 1 0
wc Seuth Africa Governsent
Internat ional Band L00 % g s Bl s 1. BRS% k) (6} L 0 (5}
5 (I8 3 171§ 1@ 5 A
A0 YRNAH [ (8} § 13 § 18 f (€D
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fund disaussed in this report {each a "Fund™ and collectively, the ™ Funds™), which also indudes each dass of umits of that Fund (each a "Class”™ and colfectvely,
the "Classes”™), is a senes trust of FIMCO Bermuda Tast 8 (e “Trust™). an open-ended unit st established under the lavws of Bermuda as a multi-senes st
plariuant to a trust deed exeaied by Wincheder Global Trust Company Limited on December 1, 2003 (3 amended forn time to time, the "Trust Deed™). Efecte £
of the dise of business (Exstern time) on September 29, 2017, Maples Trustee Senices (Bermiada) Limited (the "Trustee™) was appanted as tustes of the Trust
Pacific Imeestment Management Company LLC ("FIMCO™, the “Manager™ or the "Imeesment Addser™) is the sponsor of and was responsible for structuning the Trust

The Trust is wbdect to requlation and wpendsion & provided for in the irvestment Funds Act 2006 and related rules relating to standard funds

Thie teerres. of the Trust Desd conber upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to estabivth further funds in addition to the Funds
aurently in operation as of te date of this repoet

Thee Fands pretentied i this report are lisied below:

Fund O m

PRMCD Bermigda Bark Loas Fursd & Ofled onby 0o horak waith 3 “Furd of Fords™ couire, & defioed n dhe nodes of the v ens Tns s Aoy oo pon,
PEMCO Beemuds Bark Loas Furd B Jupan, o in any sther jurizdcson

FRMCD Bermisda Bank Loan Fursd ©

FRMCT Beemusda Back Lows Furd 0

PRMCD Bermuds bncome Fund 0

FEMCT Ber muda Income Fund E

PEMCD Besmusda Dyriamic: Mudb-Aszai Enlm;\l!"mn'"
PREMCD Ber muda Loey D bcom e Fund

PEMCD Emergng Bond fncom o Fund

PRMCD Emergyng Bord bneom s Fund

PRMCD Bermuda Bank L oaen Fured (M) Dtheed only 1o ceher Funds soseres a5 an underlying inves mient vebicle: for soch Funds
PRMICD Beemuda Bminging Murkie & Boed Fund (W

FEMCD Bermixda Global Aggregane E-Jpan Bond Ford (M)
FRMCD Beemunds Tncome Fund (W)

FEMCD Beemuda 15 High Yol Fun (W)

PRMCD Bermuda U5 High Yl Fundl 0 i)

FRMCD Emergng Bored freom ¢ Ford W)

FEMCD Bermuda Emvnging Murks s Bond Fund B Ciered 1o Japasece and other mwesmes
PEMICD Beemuda Global Apgre g ExsJapan [Vea-8edoadh Bond Ford
FRMCD Bremisda Globial Axpgre gente Ex-Japan Biond Fund

FRMCD Beemuds bncome Fund A

PRMCD Bermusds Moregage Opper e Fund™®

FEMCD Core benome Corparess Bond Fund SI00-16%"

PIMCO U S High Yield [fesHidoe d Fund B

FEMCO LS. High Yield Fundl

PRRCO U3 High Yidd Swanegy Fund

FRMCT 1S High Yoeld Sarunegy Fundl

PR Wk Bsgh Inciome ™=

PEMED Shore Term Mormage Imome Ofised 1o Japsssce and grher mvesme. Unig of the EUR, JFY and USD e ae afred momoml ez in
Jupan by ey of poblic o g vhicagh o de mbusos in Jipan, and sy be offered 1 o e s an
dipereson o the Maragee. Weve of e B3R, JFY and S0 Clacses sl be reswicind 1 ook thoes it ioes wha e
mpproeed by e Mshage

FEMCD Emergng Bord (Y er-Hadged) Incom-2 Furd OHHered oy 4 Ferd of Fund tyre Japasece e imend e oogenoned erder tha | awioofceining v tmanl

FEMED Emergng Bord fnpom & Fund Tnsd and bvesiment Company of Japes " spanes e bnees meni: T whook wall oller sher v 10 the pubic in

PEMCO U5, High Yisld [¥en#ecke & Fond Japuon wrher by wary of pubic olbering or prua e placement and which sow maraged by PIMCD Japan Lid o g

FEMED U S High Yiskd Fund il e TR S YT oo | o Anuge A or [t 30 $ubsect 1o e rule of dhe Invesmeng Trang
AEPOCEa, Jipn

= B PR R ST ey TR (D e i Bty im0 lfipoedl £ 17 1l B ST, (I POTSre o i M iy B, T WL e 8 S (el B Ko o SR i £ iR s ruamnid st i
08 Y (LR B 7 PO S ke e FoR @ PRSI Wy 5 i 53 1 B 8 S el B S T Y e Pk

= Il P Mty e o PRI B il g St s i 1 i 5 AT ot i R

U T B BT 3 AL B w8 e T I 0 R T B

P iy a8 (e 3 BT e e 8 s e 2 i e Bl e sy [y e e el B i 30 AR

B i b o (Rrcer U 0T g o T o b e e il i roar s T de da o e o il By ek 30 S

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTIMEG POLICIES

The following 15 8 surmmary of Signifcant sooouning polces consstently fodowed by the Trast in the peepara oon of 15 fina naal statements o coroemety with
accounting principles generalfy aocepted in the Unifed States of America (U5 GAAP™). Each Fund s treated a5 an investment company under the reporiing
requirements of LS. GAAP The preparation of fnandd statements in aocordance with UL S, GAAR requires management [0 make estimates and FEumpions

S| Baganr | Donskesr 31, 2000 b
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Lhat affect the reposted amounts of astets and Rabilites and disdciure of
contingent aisets and fiabilides at the date of the Snandal statemnents and
the reported amounts of increases and deqeases in net assets from
operations duning the reporting penod  Actual reuslts could differ fram those
estimates

{a} Acquired Funds The Trustes and banager may apply 2 or 4 postion of
the sssets of {) FIMCO Bermada Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCO Bermada Bank
Loan Fund B PIMCO Berruds Bank Loan Fund C and PIMCO Bereds Bank
Loan Fund O; i) PIMCO World Bigh Income: (it PIMCO Bamnuda Global
Aggregate Ex-lapan (Yen-Hedged) Bond Fund and PIMCO Bermuda Global
Anyegate Ex-lapan Bond Fund; (v) PIMCO Bermuda nconmee Fund A, FIMCO
Eesrnuda Income Fund D and FiMCO Bermuda ncomme Fund E; (V) PIMCO S
High Yield {¥en-Hedged) Fund, FIMCO LS High Yield fund, PIMCO LS

High Yield Stratedy Fund and FIRECO LS. High Yield Stratedgy Fund 11 i)
PO LS. High Yiehd (Yen-Hedged) Fend I and PIMCO LS. High Yield Fund
1E; vl PIMGC O Ernergency Bond (Yen-Hedged) Income Fund, PIMCO Emenging
Bond Income Fund, PIMCO Emenging Bond inoome Fund 11, and FIRCO
Emenging Bond Incoene Fund Il (each rieferred o herein 25 2 “Fund of Funds™
of TAcquiring Fund”, which inwests in ofher Funds) 10 the respective audit of
(1) FIMCO Bermuzda Bank Loan Fund (M), (i) AIMCO Bermuda Emenging
Markers Bond Fund (M), (15) PIMCO Bermuda Global Agregate Ex-lapan
Bond Fund (M} () PEMCO Bermasda Income Fund (M); (W) PIMCO Bermuda
LS. High Yield Fund (M); () FIRCO Barmuds U5 High Yield Fund 8 (M),
{vil} FIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) {referred to herein as an
“Aoquined Fund(s)™ Ary aesets 50 applied will be held in such Acgusned
Fund(s} &5 if received directly. Where 345ets are so applied, the Acquired
Fund{s) will record the issue of units b0 e refevant Acquining Fund at the
s price per unit-of such units and wil repandhase sudh urits a1 the
regurchase price per unit of swch units a1 the time of repunchate. Accordingly,
the ability of the Acquiring Fund 0 achéeve its investment objective will
depend upon the ability of the applcable Aoguired Fund to achieve it
imeestment objective. There can be no assurance that the investment abjective
of the Acquired Fund wall be achieved

Raticrs shiwnn in the Fnandal Highlights do Aot ndude expenses of the
Acquired Fundis) See Note 9, Fees and Expenses, for further information
regardng fund fees, a5 applicable

(b} Secarities Transactions and |mves tment Income Securilied ramsactions
are tecorded a5 of the rade daté for finandal reponting pumooes. Seosites
puerchated o sold on & when-rsused of del ayped-delnvery bBirtis muay be

sattled beyond a standard setSement penod for the security after the trade
date Redized gans and lostes froen securities sold ane reconded on the
bdentified cost bags. Dinidind ncorme 15 necorded on the ex-cdividend date,
except certain dividends from foreign sedurities where the ex-Ghidend date
iy Pinve: parised, wlech are fedorded a5 So0n a5 4 Fund i informed of the
ex-didend dxe Interestincome, adusied for the aocretion of disoounts and
amonizahon of premasms, is recorded on the acaual basks inom settlement
date, with the exception of securities with a forward starting effectie date,
where inenest incorme 15 reconded on the sooual bags from effective date. For
covertiblé Securies, premiume attnbutable to the comerson featuie aré not
amortized Estimated tax labali Ses on certain foreign seqmifies are reconded
an an accnua bags and are reflected a5 components of interest income or net
change in unrediped apprediaBon (depredation) on imvestments on the
Staternents of Operations, a5 appropriate Tax listelies realized a5 a result of
sipch secunity sales ae refledted as a component of net realized gain (loss) on
imeestments on the Staternents of Operations. Pagdown gains and ovses on
miortgage-related and other asset badked seaqunities, if amy, are remrded a5
components of interest incorme on the Statements of Operations

Dbt obligations may be placed on non-adoual atus and related interest
income may be reduced by ceasing cument acoruals and writing off intenest

receieable when the collection of 38 o & postion of interest has bedome
douibthe based on consistently applied procedures. A debt obfigation is
remgped from non-aconesl status when the fssuer resumes interest payments
or when collectabality of interest is probable

k) Cash and Foreign Gurrency  The finandal statements of eadh Fund are
presented ying the cumency of the primany economic emaronment in which it
operates (the: “functional curency™) The funciional urency for eadh of the
Fiamds |5 listed in the below table

The marker values of foreign secunties, ourency holdngs and other assets
and Rabilifies are frarslated into eadh Fund's functicnal currency based on the
curren i exchange: rates each business day. Furdhases snd sales of secunlies
and ncome and expense items dendrminated in forsign cuerendies, if any, are
Trandiated into each Fund's respective functonal qumency at the exchange
rate i eflect on the ransscion date The Funds do not separately report he
effets of changes in foreign exchange rates from dhanges in market prices on
sequnties held, Sudh chamges are ncduded Innet reaized and net changes in
unriedized gain of loss Tom imee SEments on the StLatements of Oper gty
Thie Fisnds may mmvest in foreign cumendy denominated secunBes and may
engage in forsign auerendy rarsactions either on 3 9ot (cath) basis a1 the
rale prevaling m the qumency exdange markel a1 the dme o theaugh &
forwand foreqgn curmen oy contract. Realized foreign exchange gains of |ogses
angang from sales of spot foreion currendies, currency gains or kosses realized
behwild e rddde and settlernent dates on seoanties rarsactons and the
difference betveen thie recorded amaunts of dnidends, interest. and forsgn
withhoiding Laces and the functional aurency equevalent of the amaunts
chpaly recsived of pald ane induded in ned redlized gain or 1085 on foreign
currency ransaction s on thie Statements of Operations. Kt unnealined forsgn
exchange gains and lostes aigng from dhanges in foreign exchange rates an
foreign denominated assets and Rabdities other than investments in securities
hield at the end of the reporting perod are indisded i net dhange in
unredized appeediation or depred ation on foreign Qemency dsset and
lidhiliges on the Staterments of Operations

The Net Astet Value (THAV") and total returns of certain Fumds (or Classes
thereof, a5 appiicable) are presented in the currenicy for which the NAY is
respeoried (the “ AV currency™) as detailed in esch Fund s Oftering
Mernorandun (e "Critering Memorandum™) For e purpodes of the
presentation of the NAY and the totdl retum in the NAY qurendy, the
begnning and ending MAYs are oonverted wsing the pericd beginning and
ending exchangs rates, respectiiely, and dsinbutons ane comnerted using e
exchange rate at the tme of the detribubon. See the follcwing table for the
HAV apmency of each respective Fund

- Funetéanal
Fund Clats: INRY Coprr ey Curmney

| PIMCO Berrvueds Bark Loos Furd (M3 5 dolar L5 dedar
PMCO Batrrudy Badk Loas Fusd 4

L] F sl U5 deflar L5 deles

« U Japaneie e 5 dele

" JUESE Japaese yn IS deldar

] ¥ UPTY Jepanass yan IS, dolar

LI 1] Japaeseven | LS. delw
PMCO Barmuyds Bark Loan Fusd B

L] F AL Auntraken dollar | 15 doler

= YLD Japarese yen U5 dele

= TER Japanece ym 5. deler

LI Japanese e U35 dele

. ¥ EALE Japaness ya LES, delas

» TN Japsreseyen | 15 deles
PMCD Barrrsds Bask Loss Fund C

] 'ri:-lEI] .IHHEEE 5 delar
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. Funcisanal
Fund Clats: WA Coarr pncy Curmney
PELRCT B aremadds Bk Lean Fund 0 ] JN0 Japaness ven L5, dolas
- "l'l'_J'GcL:f ] JANA Jsp ey W5 delas
PUMLT) B evmasdhs Ermest ganvg M ark et Bond Fund WD U5 doflar LS dolls L] J KR JapaEE v 5. delder
PRRICT] B ey Emer gng Maress Bord Fund B ¥ JIMINI Japanes e L5 dolar
- e LIPFY Jmpaneta yen 15 dolls L] J iR Japanngs yan W3 dedar
= miUPY Hedoed Jmpanatn yen 15 dollw = JITRD Jepanate yen 5 delar
PERICT Barmada Globad siw Ex-Japan [Fen e PIMCD Esmesrging Bond dncoma Furd 18
Hdgat Biand Fund i e | R . JIER Jipmresayen | (15 delse
FEMICI] B armusds Global Aggragute Br-Jspen Bond fund | Japensss pen 115 dolls L JIGEF] Jepanese yen LG, doldar
PEMICT Bermada Global & n Ex - Japan Bosd Fond ¥ J S0 B i 115 delar
M i lpresayen | US dole FIMCO Sheet-Term Mot igage Incoms -
PRMC Brwwmants e Furel (M) US dollar IS dolks « OR bur 5. delae
PEARCE] Bloresands Incoma Furd & LI 4 Japarese e 5. delss
s FLFY Japaresn yen 15 dolie ®  JFTLUFY, Hedgad Japanase v 3 dedar
. i ] LS dollar 15 dolls W (1] LS dollai S delss
= 1 UPT Jparesaym W5 dolls PAMCO LS High Vield fen-Hadged Fund apdne sy 5 delar
& 150 Jmparsayen 115 dolls HMNCOU S High Yield [fen-tadged) Fend || Japanese v 5 doler
s LLED US dolflar U5 dolle | PMCOU S High Yield Fued Japaist i e 5 dels
- N LI Jopenese e W5, dolle: MU 5 High Teld Flﬂc-'l Jﬂw L5 d':\l_zr
] N LSO Jparesa ym E dollw FNCOWS High Yield Sratmegy Fund
- NH (0 US. dellsr 1S dolls . J U Jsp ey WS delas
= FUFY Jparagn yen 115 dolle = JUPY, Hedged) Jepanesaymn U5 doler
o O0rY Jpeesa yen 5 doliw o JNEED 15 dolar 15, dedae
- R LIFY) Jmpanesayen U5 dolle . T LUEY Japarern v i3, dedar
- 2 LFY Japaresa ven 5 dolles w TLIFY, Hadgnd] Japanate e IS deles
L] TUF Jipareyn ven 15 dolle PMCO LS. High Yield Seeatagy Fund ||
o i U5 dollar 15 dolle » fAUD) Japareseym 15, dedar
L] W LS UG dollar U5, doflw . ¥ EAL) Jepaness e LB5. dellar
N ALY Japsnace yin U dolls . ¥ LN Japanene e 15 delwr
. LOED LA doftar L5 dolle s YAV Jpartn yen 5. delas
= TIFY Japeasoymn UG dollw PIRICE] Wior bl gl s L5 dollai 5. delsr
o TUSD Japanesa yan 5. dollew
- dpaoesnym L US doly * i Cioss was hguiicreedt obming bhe raperting penog!
FRRICT) B ormaxd Income: Fund O
o Nifoa dpereteym | 115 dolle id] Multiclass Operations Each Class of @ Fund offered by the Trust has
= KHAUD Ausgaandolar | US dolke rights i the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
s ¥ (o) dapareznyen U5 dolts Fund, except for specific assets and gaing and losses designated 1o a Class
FEMCD Berrauda Ineome Furd £ felating 1o qumency hedging operations. ncome, non-Class spedific expenses,
«  BJIEELEY dgeeaym | Japans yea and nen-Class spedfic reatized and unrealized capital gains and losses ae
= B 186 150 Jpaeayen Jagarenn yih allocated to each Class of units based on the relative net assets of eads Class
e o ) | s of ihe respective Fund Class spedific expermes qumentlyindlude
*  BJIBELSE dipenssaven | dapats vee FIAAQEAENT, Addsany, adeniistative, agency, and disribution fees, where
= BJIELZLEY ey | Jparseyen gk
= B-J |E-!='|L',i5 Jmaren yen Jmates yan
PRMCD Bormuds Low Diorebon lcome Furd fed Digtributien Paliey The following table shows the antidpated frequency
= Bloh L5, delle U5 dolle of distributions for each Fund. Diseribueions. from each Fund may be declared
PEMC Blorrmasda Mosagaqe Dinpmananes. Fund and distributed o Unithadders only upon te authonzation of the Manager,
= ImLIPY Heded) dpemsmayen | U5 doll which authoeization may be withheld a1 ehe Managers disretion
= JUrH Jmparatayen U5 dellw i
o o | 15 o
L U5 deslar U5 dofle E
PRI Birala 13 Figh Yiekd Fusd ) 03 dilar U5 delk PIMCD Bermuga Bk Loan Fued A
PEMCT Biorrmada UL 5 Flgh Yook Fusd 1] (M} Jwassnyem | UG dollw PIMCD Bermusa Bark Lo Fund B
P Emarging Buand [¥en-Hesboed) Incame Fusd Jpwatayen | U5 dolly PIMCD Bermisda Bark Lo Frd C
E'.'J:I:It'rrr:gﬂﬁ‘-urr:k'cmhrc- Jﬂn\lm s d_nlh' PRAICD Bermuda Bark Loss Fund 0
PERICT] Emeergeng Band lecoimas Fuce (M) U3 dollar 15 dolte MWCD Bermuda come Fusd &
FEMCE) Ervesrgang Biored e Fusd || = F LYY
« Jaum Jmpares yen 115 doll L
= JEA Japanesa yen W5 dolla «  JURN
s LAY Japaresa yan U5 dolls » ) EEn
=  NLD#PT)
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Dwelared and Paid Maathby: [Cant)

= NiED
NN ED
LT
I
w K EGH
a  YUFN
& Y50
FIMED Bestrussls bncoese Furd O
s N iedd"
= NN AU
s idorkd
PAMCE Bestrrusds Mot igeage Oppot tunstes: Fund
s U
) E
= Li0

PAMCD Ernesgerey Bond [Yen-Hadged] Incoma Fand
PIMCD Emenging Boad Income Fusd

PAMED Ernesgareg Bond Inceme Fusd 1

FIMCD Ermempang Bood Incomae Fusd 11

FIMED LS. High Yeakd { Yen-Hedged Furd
PIMCOU S High Yoakd Furd

PIMCOU-S High Yiekd Smranegy Fend

MMCOU S High Yield Soramgy Fend Il

PAMECL oould High lneowmay
PIMCE Beamucla bcoema Fund &

Dom
PIMCD Bramuda Incoma Fund E lprowded thaa the devdend yield shall & g bagher thin

5% par satom ove oy oneesd ioheg pansd)
Declared and Paid Samisanually:

FAMED Bestrudls ko Furd A
= U
«  ALPW
FMCD Sharr:Term Moz gage Income
« EUR
= JPY
] J P, Hodgad)
= U0

The Manager does not mpeci to declare distributions with respect to thess
Fumds for Clesses thensal, if applicabls), but may, in it daecretion, dezlars and
pay dsinbutions to the Uaitholdes ai any time.

PMCD Berrrusds Back Loan Fued (M)

FIMCO Bermuda Ermengng Markee Bond Fand (M

PIMCDO Betmuds Emergng Marksts Bond Fund B

PMED Besmisds Gobd Agep sam Ex-Japan [Yar-Hadged) Bend Fund

PAMCD Bearrudly Giobal Aggreguse Ex-Japan Bend Fund

PAMECD Bewrrusds Gobal A gy sgase Ex-Japan Bord Fund G

PAMCD B mudla Incoma Fund A

= KLEN
. TP
" LR 1170
- WIS
Ll I UFY)

FAMED Besrusda bncorma Fured (M)

The Masager dows net wpect to declars dis wibations with respect ia ihese
Funds {or Clka e thevaed, f applicable, but may, in it dneretion, declae and
dimtributions ts the Unitdelders at any time. {Cant.)

PIMCD Bermuda Low Durasion Inoomea Fund
PIMCD Bermudy Morigage Opporimtes: Fund
= [ngt Y Hedged)
PIMCD Bermuda U5 High Yield Furnd )
PAMCO Bermuda U 5. High Yield Fund B §40
PIMCO Emengang Bond Incama Fund (65
PRCOUS. Hagh Ysld [YenH edged) Fund I
PIMCOU. 5 High Yield Fund Il
* Thes Claes v Iqusddated duning the sepermng panod
** Ry dE T BuBons wath rageet 1 Class 1 (1300 Usies of the Furd vl Ba declared in
atrdance with & lermr spresmant batnen the Minags and the imvesing insuch O

Distribuzioes, if sy, will generally be made from the relevant Fund's (or
Class's, if applacable) net ifvestment inoome. in addibon, e Manager may
authoeize the payment of net redlized capital gains available for dstribution
Addbional distributions may be dedansd 35 the Manager deems sppeopnane
Dustributiond, pued with respect oo ey Funed (o Class thereod, §f spplicabie)
will reduce the NV of sech Fund (or Class thereof, if applicabis) At he
disaretion of the Unitholders, cash dsmibutions from s Rand for Class derect,
if spplicable) muy elther be remvested in additonal units of & Fand (of Cass
hereaf, if appiscable) or paid 0o a Unitholder in cash, Cath payments will be
paid & 1he NAY ourency of the Fund Eadh Fund (or Class theseat, if
Apptecabili) ry dedlane Bur ther dis mibutons. 8 Corsicened AeORLSRRY 1N Oher
1o mantain a reasonabbe lewel of distribu o $or @ Fend (or Class thensod, if
applicabde) In the event that thefe is inadequate net income and net realized
cagutsl gans 1o pay 4 dsmibuton of & Fund (or Class tereol, if applicable)
raquired by the Cfferng Bemorandum, the Manager may pay 3 dstrbetion
consisting of 3 portion of the capital of such Fund (or Class theneaf, if
appicabie) Dhsarbutions. not oollected within Six years from feer due dae
will Laprse and will accrue 1o thie benefit of the relevant Fund (or Class theneat,

it applicable)

{fh v Accounting Promouncemants. I March 2020, the Fiaandal
Accounting Standards Board ("FASE") Isswed an Accounting Standards
Upsdate (TASLT), ASU 2020-04, which peovades optional quidance to s the
potential aoccuntng burden sisodated with trandtonng sy fom the
Londan Interent Offered Rate ("LIBORT) and other reference rates that ane
expected to be dacontnied. The ASU S effective imenediately upon release of
ke update on March 12, 2020 trough December 21, 2022 A1 this tme,
managemient is evatuating the impications of these changes on the finandal
sEatements.

3. IAVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMERTS

{a] Investment Valuation Policies  The price of 4 Fund's ursts & bated on
the Funds NAY The NAY af a Fund, or eadh of its Clasies, as applicable, is
determinad by dnviding the total value of portidlio imestments, and ather
ety atmbutable to that Fund of Class, less any Rabilities, by the total
rumber af units autstanding of that Fund o Class On each Fund's Dealing
Diay (a5 desaribed in the current Orifening Memorandum of the Trust), Fund
units e ord nanly walued &6 of the dese of reqular ading on the New York
Stock Exchange (THNYSE Clode™). information that becomes known 10 the
Fumds or thei agents after the Gme & of which NAV has been caaulated on
a particslar daywil not generally be used to retroactively adust the price of a
secunty o the NAY determined eatlier that day. Each Fund reserves the nght
o change the time as of which its NAV is caloulated if the Fund doses earbier
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For purpeses of calculating 4 NAY, portilio Sedunitied and other assers for
which market quotes ane readily available are valued at marer value Market
walue is generally determined on the bask of offida dosing prices or the las
reportsd sales pced, o if no salés ane reportid, baed an quabes obtained
from established market makers of prices (induding evaluated pices) supphed
by the Funds' approved pridng senices, guokaion reporng oystems and
ofher third-party sources (together, ®Pridng Sendces”). The Funds will
neamnally use pridng dala for domesic equity secwities received shoatly after
the NYSE Close and do not normalky takee into account radng, dearances or
settlements that take place after the NYSE Close. If marked value pridng is
used, a foresgn (non-U 5. ) equity seawity traded on a foregn exchange o on
mare than pne exchange is typically vabued using pricing information from the
exnchange considened by the Manager to be the pimary exchange. A foreign
{non-U 5.3 equity seamity will be valued as of the dose of madng on the
foeign exchange, or the NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close ooours before the end
of trading on the foreign exchange. Domestic and foreign {non-L1 5 ) fixed
income sequties, non-exchangs raded denvatives, and equity opeons e
nicamally wabued on the bass of quates obtained from brokers and deslers of
Pridng Sendces using data reflecting the earlier dosing of the prindpal
rrrkeds for those seouities. Prices abtained from Fricing Services may be
Dased on, among other tings, infarnaon peovided by marker makers o
estmates of market values obfzined Fom yiekd data refating 1o investiments of
securities with similar charactenistics. Certain foed income securithes
plachased on 3 defayed-delivery basis are marked 1o market daiy untl
settlermnent &t the forwand weitlement dite. Exchange-radisd oplions, éxcept
equity options, futures and optics on fhares, e valued at the settlement
e detemmined by the relevant exchan ge. Swap sgreements are valued on
thir bvsis of id quetes. abtained from brokers and deslers of marcel-hased
prces suppled by Prcing Senaces or other pidng sources. A Fund's
IEesTEn S N open-end management Evestmen | comgandes, other than
exchange-raded funds (TETFS), are valued an the Nav's of dudh imvesiments
Open-end management irvestiment companies may indude affiliated unds

If & feregn (uon-L 5 ) eguity seouity’s value has matetaly changed after the
et o the Securing™s primary exchange of pindpal market bur bebore the
NYSE Close, the secunty may be valued 3t fairvalue tased on procedures
establighed and spproved by e Manager Forsign fon-L0S ) egity
securifes that do not rade when the NYSEiS open e du0 valued at far
walue With reqpect 1o foreign (non-L 5.) equity securities, 4 Rund may
detenming the Tar walue of investments based on informaticn prowidied by
Precing Senvices and ather terdparty vendors, whach may recomemend fair
walue or Adrstments with reference to other Secunties, indices or a5sis In
considenng whether fair valuation is required and in ditermmEning fair

waluis, 3 Fund may, amandg ather things, consder ugnificant events (which
may be congderad to indude changes i the value of U5, secunbes of
securifies indices) that oocur after the dode of he relevant market and before
Uhie WYSE Close. A Fund may wiilize modieling toas prondded by thind-party
wendars to deterrnine fair valwes of foreign (non-U.5 ) seamities. For these
puEposes, any movement in the applicable reference index or instrument
{"zero rigger™) between the earlier dose of the applicable foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemned to be a signaficant svent, prompling the
application of the prdng model (effectively resulting in dasy fair

waluations). Foreign exchanges may permit rading an foreign (on-15. )
edquily secufities on days when he Trust is not open for business, which may
reailtin a Fund's portiodia imnvestments being atfected when Unitholders are
unable to by or sell units

Senios secuned flodting rate laans for which an active secondary madbet éxdsts
to & reliabde degree will be valued at the mean of the last available bidlagk
prices in the market for such loans, as provided by a Fridng Sendce. Senior
secured flioating rate loans for which an active secondary market does not
exith 10 a reliable degree will be valued 21 fair value, which is intended to

approximate market value. In valusng a senior sedired foating rate loan at
fair value, the factors considered may include, but are not limited to, the
foltowing: (2) the reditwor thiness of the bomower and any intermediate
partcipants, (b) the terms of the boan, () recent prces in the maroet for
similar loans, it any, and (db recens prices in the marked for instruments of
similar quaity, rate, period until next inberest rate reseq and maturity

Irvestments valied in emencies other than the tunctional currency

of a Fund are converted to the functional aamency using echange rates
obitained from Pricing Sendces. As a result, the value of such isvestments and,
In tumm, the NAY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value
of currendes in relation to the functional cumency. The value of investments
traded in foreign markets or denominated in qurrendes other than

the functicnal cumency may be alfected sgnificanty on a day |hat the Trust is
niot open for busness. As aresult. 1o the edent that a Fund holds foreign
{non-Ll S Jimvestments, the value of those imvestments may change at imes
when you cannot purchase, redeem of exdhange units and the walue of suh
irvestments will be reflected in the Fund's nest caloulated NAY

rvesiments fior which market quotes or market-basad valuations are not
readity avalable are valued at far value as determined in good faith by

the Manager or persons acting at their direction. The Manager has adopted
methods for valing sequrities and other assets in drosmstances where
market quotes ane not readily svalable, and has delegated to PIMCO the
respomsitility for applying the fair valuation methods In the event that market
quobes or market-based valuations are not readily available, and the seourity
of FEset cannot bevaued pursaant 1o a Manager approved valisation
method, the value of the searity or assel will be determined in good fath by
the Valuation Committes Market quotes are considered not readly available
in grounmst ances where Bere is an absence of curment or reliabde markes-
based data (e g, Tade nfumanon, bid/ak information, indicative maket
quitations (7 Broker Quotes™), Fridng Senaces’ prices), induding where
events ooor after the dose of the relevant manet, but prior o the NYSE
Close, that maten dly affect the values of the Fund's seaurities of assets. In
additicn, market quotes are considered nof readily avallable when, due to
exiranrdinany cromstances, the exthanies or markets on whech the
SeCuniies rade do nol open lor Tadng for the entire day and no ather
rarked prices are svalabile The Mansger ik resporsibie for mantaing
significant events that may matenially affect the values of the Bund's seauities
of as5e0s and for determening whether te valie of the applcabls securities of
Sseets thouild be resvaluated in light of weh Signifcant svents

When a Fund wses fair valu ation to deternine the valiee of 3 portfolio seauity
of oither asset for purposes of caboulating its NAN, sech imeestments will not
be priced on the basis of guotes from the primary market inwhidh they are
traded, butraher may be priced by anather method Sat the Manager of
PEFONS S0TI0 a1 thelr drecton believe reflects far value. Fair valuanon may
requine Subpectve debermen atons about (he vahie of 3 secunty. While

the Trust's poticyis intended 1o result in 8 caloslagon of 3 And's HAY that
fairky redlects security vabues as of the time of pridnig, the Trust cannot ensure
thar fair values determined by the Manager of persons SC0ng at e
direction wiould accur ately refect Bhe price that 3 Fund could obtain for 2
securiny if it wene 1o dspose of that security a5 of the dme of peidng {for
imstande, in a foroed of dismessied sale) The prices wsed by a Fend may difer
from the valre thatwould be realized if the securities were sold

] Fair Velue Hierarchy U % GAAF desoibes fair valus as the price that

a Fundwould recaive to sell an asset or pay 10 ransfer 3 lisbility in an orderly
transaction bebween market paticdpants at the meassrement date It
establishes 3 fair value hierarchy that priceitizes inputs to valu ation methods
and requires dischosure of the fair value hierardvy, separately for each major
category of assets and liabdities, that seqregates T value measurements nto
lesweds {Level 1, 2, or 3) The inpults or methodol ogy used for valuing seqanities
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ane pol necesiarily an indecation of the risks seodated with imesting in those
securities. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hieranchy are defined s follows

# Livel 1=—Ouoted prces in active markets of exchanges for identicsl assets
and Rakifities

# Lavel 2—Saificant other absenabbe inputs, which may indude, but e
nat imited o, quoted prices fof Similar asses o liabibties i markets that ae
active, quoted prices for idenScal or dmilar assets or liabikties in matkets that
Afi 0L A, Inputs other than quabed prices that dhe comervadle bor the
Assels of [Ralulites (such a5 interest rates, yield qurees, volatilities, prepayment
spoedk, |k severities, credit miks and default rates) or afher market
coeoborated imputs

» Level 3=—%imificantunobservabie inpuls based an the best information
avalable i the drounetances, o e extent obaervable iNpuls ane not
Ayarlable, which may ndude atusmption made by the Manager of perans
Acting at ther directon hhat are Lied in determening the fair value of
Immvestiments

Assels o Ratehites categorized &% Leved 2 or 3 85 of period énd hiave been
transferred batween Lewels 3 and 3 gince the prior pefiod due to changes in
thee rivetiod tilized in valuing the imvestmsents. Tramshers from Level 2 1o Level
3 afe 3 resul of 3 change. in the nomnal aourte of business, fom the we of
waluation methods wsed by Fricing Services (Level 2) to the use of 3 braker
quiote o wilzaton techrique which uthzes sgeeficant unoblenable inputs
due 10 a0 abgence of uirent of néliable marker-buted dats (Level 3

Teanslers Fom Level 3 w Lewel 2 are a resudt of te vl abwliny of Qument and
refasble rare-based dara provided by Pricing Senices of other walunation
Lechmques which wtilize 4 gnificant dbienable nputs

In accordance with the tequirerments of LS. GAAP, the smounts of vansirs
iy and ot of Lewel 3, if maneel, are disdoted in the Motes 0o Sdhedule of
Imvestments for edch respaciive Fund

For 1ar wauations ursng sgnitcant unobsendable mputs, LS. GAAP requines
Lo disdcse transhers mio and aut of Level 3 of the fair valie hierardey and
purchases and issues of Level 3 assets and llabilities churing the perod
Addinonally, U5 GAAP required quaniilaive informaton réganding the
significant umobeenvable inputs used in the determination of 18r value of
assets of Balelites categorized &5 Level 2 in the fair valug hierardy. In
accordance with the requirements of LS. GAAF, & far valiee hierarchy, and if
raterial, details of significant unobervable inputs, hive been induded in the
hates o Schedule of Investments for each respective Fund

e Valuation Techmiques and the Fair Value Hieramhy

Lewel 1 and Leved 2 trading assets and trading liabilities, ot fair value The
wakyation methods (or " technigues ™) and significant inputs usedin
detenmining the far values of portfolio Secunties or other assets and liabilities
categonized a3 Level 1 and Level 2 of the Lair value hierardhy are as follows:

Fred inceame securites induding coponste, cofrsible and municpal bonds
and rates, U5 govermiment agendes, LS. Ireasury obigaticns, sovweneign
Fesues, bank [oans, comvertibde preferred securiies and non-U 5. bonds are
ncamnally wabued on thi bass of quotes oblainsd tnofm brokers and dealers o
Pricimg Senvices that wee broker-dealer quotations, reported trades of
waluation estimates from ther internd pridng models. The Pridng Senaces
intemal modets use inputs hat are obsenvable such as issuer details, interes
rates, yield curves, prepaament speeds, gedit iekafspreads, default rates and
queoted prices for dmilar sets Secuities that uee dmilar valuation
technigues and inputs & desaibed above are categoized as Level 2 of the
fair value hierardhy

Fied Bncorne securifes punchased on 3 delsped-geliwery batis of 25 a
repurchage commitment in a salebuybadk raraction are marked o market
daily until settlement at the fonward setfement date and are Categonized as
Lessnd 2 of thee Taar vialue higrardhy

Wartgage-rel ated and asset-badked securites are waally ssued a5 separate
Tranchoes, of dasees, of secunties within each deal. Thise Seariies ane alo
nirmally vaiued by Fricing Services that use beoker-dealer quotations,
reported trades or valuation estimates from their internal pricng models. The
pricing modeds for these securities wsuahy consider ranche-leved atiributes,
curnen  market data, estmated cash flows and market-based yield spreads for
eadh ranche, and incopaorate deal collateral perfcemance, a5 avalable
Mortgage-rel sted and asset-backed sequriBes that use similar valuation
techiniques and inputs a5 described above are categonized a8 Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Cormenan stocks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and fnandal dervatve
instruments, swch as fulures contradts, rights and wamants, or oplions on
futures that are traded on 3 national securiSes exchange, are stated at the
lask reported sale or seftiement price on the day of valsation, To the extent
hese secunities are actively raded and valuation adustments are nol applied
they are cateqorized a3 Level 1 of the far value Herandhy

Irvestments vl wed (denominated) in currencies ather than the functonal
currency of 3 Fund are converted to the umctional asmency using exchange
rates {umency spot and forward ratesh obtained from Pridng Sendces. Asa
result, the NAY of & Fund's units may be affected by changes in the vale of
curmén dies in refation 1o the functional aumency. The value of sequrities traded
In fioresgn markets or denominated in curmencies other than the functional
cummency may be affected gnificantly on a day that the Trustis not open for
busness. Vauation adustments may be appied 10 certain secwities that ane
soledy raded on a foreign exchange 1o acoount for the market mowerment
between the dosz of the foreign market and the NYSE Cose These seaunities
are walued using Fricing Services Sat consger the comelaton of the rading
pattermns of the foreign seasrity bo e intraday rading in the U5 markets for
irvesiments: Sequrities wEng these valuation adustments are calegonzed as
Lewel 2 of the fair value hierardyy. Prefermed sequrities and citfver equities
traded on inactive markets or valwed by reference to similar instruments are
also categonized as Level 2 of the fair value hieradhy,

Equity-inked securities are valwed by referencing the last reposted sale o
settlement price of the finked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange adustments are applied to the Last reported price o
coewedt the linked equity’s mading asrendy o the Conirecr's setiing umency
These imvestments are categonzed as Level 2 of the fair value hierardny

Fivestments in registered open-end mvesiment companies (other than ETR)
will be valued based upan the NAVs of sudh investmenits and are categosized
a5 Leved 1of the fairvalwe hierarchy. Investments in uniregistered open-end
irrvestment companies wil be caloulated based upon the Naws of such
irvestments and are considened Level 1 prossded that the HAVS are
observable, calouated daily and are the value at which both purch ases and
sales wall be conducted

Equity exchange-iraded oplioes and over the counter finangal derivative
instuments, sich a5 fonward foreign curmency confracts and opBions contracts,
derve thelr value from underying asset prces, indices, reference rates, and
other inputs or a combination of these factars. These ooniracts are noemally
vaued on the basis of quotes obtained from a quotaSion repoeting system,
established masket makers o Pricing Sendces (normatly determined a5 of the
NSE Close). Depending on the product and the terms of the ansaction,
finanaial derivative instuments can be valued by Fridng Senvices using a
sefes of tedhnaques, induding smulation IZL'i".I'Il; rcdeds. The pridng models
wse inputs that she abdetvied from Wty quobed makets such a5 quatid
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piioes, mouer detals, indioes, bidfadk spreads, interest rates, implisd
wolatilities, yield curves, dividends and exchange rates. Rnancial derivative
Instruments that use similar waluation technigues and inpuis & desaibed
abiive are categofized a4 Lined 2 of the Gair value hieranchy

Centrally desred wvaps and ower the counter swaps dérive their value fom
umderkang sel prices, indices, feherence rates, and other inputs of 3
combination of these factors They are valued wSing & broker-dedber bud
quotation or on market-based prices provided by Fricing Senvices {pomally
detenmined a5 of the NYSE Chose) Centrally deared svaps and over the
Counter Saps can be walied by Pricng Seraces usng a senes of technigues,
induding Smulation pridng models. The pricing models may wse inputs that
are pbserved from actively quoted markets such as the overnight index swap
rate 05", LIBOR fone aed rate, interesd rates, yield cunees and credit
spreads. These securities are categonized as Level 2 of the fair value hierardhy

Lewvel 3 Irning wssets and tnd'mu |sabilities, &t Fair walue ‘When a fair
walyation method 15 applied by the Mangger that uses sgficant
unabsenabie inputs, mmaesiments will be pnced by a meshod that

e Blaragés or prsons acting 31 their direction believe reflects tair value and
ane categorized a5 Level 3 of the fair vatue hieranchy. The valuation
techmiques &nd Ugnshcant inputs used in Gelermmng e Tl vaues of
portfolio atsets and Babilities categonped as Level 3 of the far valise hierardy
are 35 follows:

Praecy pricng proosdures set te base pce of 4 foed incomme sequnty and
subsequently adpst the price propartionaly to market value changes of a pre-
determined seosity deemed o be comparable in durathon, generally & U5
Trisasury of Soverengn note based on country of Buance Thie bate poice may
bie 3 broker- dealer quote, ransaction price, of an intemnal value as derved by
anahvsis of market datg. The base price of the seauity may be reset on @
periodc bass baked on the avallabiling of rnarket dsta and procedures
approved by the Valiation Committes. Significant changes in the
unbsenabe inputs of the proey prigng process (e bate price) would result
i chiecn and propossonal chandges i e far valee of the security. These
secunities ane cabegoned a5 Level 3 of She far value hierardhy

It third-parmy evaluated vendor pricng is not avalable of nol deemed 1o be
Inchicatve of Iair value, the Manager may elect 1o obtan indcatoe market
quotaion directty from the brober-dealer or passed-through broker quote
from & thard-party vendor. In the event that fak vadue is bured upon 3 qange
soufced Broker Quote, these seammties ahe calegonDed s Level 2 of the fai
walue hieranchy. Broker Ouotes. are typically recened from established markes
participants. Although independently réceived, fie Manager doet not have
U Iranspanency 1 vies thie underyng mputs which support the market
quotation Sagnificant changes in the Braber Quote would have dired and
proporional changes in the fair value of the sedurity

Chacounted cash fiowe valuation uses an internal analyys based on

the Manager™s expectation of fulre income and experdes, capilal struchure,
exil muluples of & sequnty, and other unobsenaile inputs which may induds
contractual and Factual loan factors, edimated fulure payments and oedi
rating Significant changes in the unobsensable inputs of the modes would
result in direct and proportional changes in the fair value of the sequity
Thiede tecurities ane Gategonisd &5 Level 3 of the far value higrardhy

Commerdial real estate loans may be valued pimarily based on either the
income approach, emploing a discounted cash flow madel, which i based
on the epedatons of prindpal nd intenesl pryments, feed snd costs, 4% ivell
as among other factors, historncal loan and underhang collater d activity,
enpectied paytnent Sming th oredt qualty of the bormower and operating
tomecast of the underying proferty. These tetuntbes. ie caleqgoned a5 Livel 3
of the fair value hierandhy

Shiet: e debl instraments (such a5 commiendal papér) having a remaining
maturity of 60 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, solong as the
amortized gostvdue of such short-term debt instnuments is approsimatey te
same & the Rair value of the instument & determned without the use of
amortizd cost waluation These seqrities ane categanized as Level 2 o Level
3 of the fair value hierardhy depending on the source of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

{a] Dalayed-Delivery Transactions Certain Fends may punchase or sell
sefunities on 3 delayed-deliveny basis. These ransactions irmvobe 3
comaetment by & Fund to purchase or sell securines for 3 predetermined prce
of yieid, with payment and delvery taking place beyond the qustamary
setfiement period. When delayed-delivery transactions are outstandng,

4 Fundwll dessgnate of recenve &% ool aneral liguid a5521s in an smaunt
sufficient to meet the gurchase price of respedive obigations. When
purchasing a sequrity on 3 delayed-delivery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and rigks of owmership of the seamity, induding the risk of price and yield
fluctuaBions, and takes such flucuations into account when desemining its
HAY & Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delawed-deliveny trarsaction
after it s encered into, which may resdi in @ reaized gain or boss. When

& Fund has sold & Secunity on o delsped-delivery bass, the Fund does nat
partoipate in future gaens and losses with respect to the sedufity

(] Intlationdinchex ed Bonds Certain Funds may irvestin inflation-indesed
bonds. inflation-ndeced bonds are fved income securities whose prindpal
vaue is periodcally adusted by the rate of nflation. The intere4t rate on
these bonds is generally fived at issuance at arate lower than typical bonds
Cwver e life of an infladon-indexed bond, however, interest will be pasd
based on a princpal value, which is adusted for inflation. Any increase o
deqeate in the principal amount of zn infason-indexed bond wil be induded
a5 imterest income on the $tatements of Operations, even though investors do
Mt regede their prndgpal wntd manrity. Bepayment of he ongingl bond
prindpal upon maturity (a5 adjusted for inflation) is guaranteed in the cae of
U5 TIF: For bomds that do nok prosvide a similar guarantee, the adjsted
principal value of the bond repasd at materity may be less tan the ongenal
prinapal

ich Lean Paniicipations, Assignmeris and Originations  Certan Runds may
irovest in direct debt instruments which are Enbenests in amoun s owed to
leniders or lending syndicates by comporate, governmental, or other bomowers
A Fund's imvestments in loans may be in the form of partidpations in laans or
ashgnments of al or a portion of loans from third parties or imeestments in o
oniginations of loans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by a bank o
other fnandal instination (the "lender™) tat acts 25 agent for all holders. The
agent administers the terms of the loan, a5 spedified in the loan agreement

A Fund may investin multiple senies or ramches of 2 loan, which may hawe
varying tenmes and camy different assodiated isks. When a Fund purdhases
Assignments from lenders it acquises direct ights against the bomowers of te
laans These boans may indude paridpations in bridge loars, which e lnars
faken out by bomowers for a short period (fypically less than one year)
pendng arrangement of more permanent fnandng through, for example, the
issuance of bonds, frequently high vield bonds Bsued for the purposs of
aoquisitions

The types of loans and related investments in which the Funds may irmest
indude, amaong others, senior loans, wibordnated loans (nduding second
lien loans, B-Hotes and mezzanine loans), whole loans, commerda real
edlate and other commendal koans and Streciuned bans. A Fund may
originate loans o aoquire direct inferests in lpars throwgh primary loan
dictritnions and'or in pvate transacions. In the case of suborndinated boare,
there may b2 sgnificant endeboedness rarking ahead of te bornower's
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obdiation bo the holder of weh a loan, enduding in the event of the
Boamower”s indobvency. Mezzanine [oans are typically sequned by a pledge of
an eqaty inferest in the mortgage bormower that owns the real estate rather
than an inténest in 3 moftgage

Imvestments in loans may indwede unfunded loan commitments, which ane
coniractual obligamoens Sor funding. Unfunded koan cormmatmments mday indude
rewalving aredit LadliBes, whidh may oblBgate 3 Fund to wpply addtiond cath
b the bormowver on demiand, Unfunded [oan commitments. repretent a future
obdigation in full, even though 3 percentage of the committed amount may
nak be wtilized by the bomower. Whien irvesting i a loan partidpation,

2 Fund has e right to receive payrments of prindipal, interest and any fees to
which it is enfifled only froem the lender <elling the loan agreement and anly
upan receipd of payments by te lender fram the borrower. A Fund may
receive 3 commitment fee basad on the pndrawn partion of the underying
line of credit portion of aloan. In certain drcumstances, 3 Fund may reqeive a
penaity e wpon the prepayment of 3 ban by a bormower, Fees eamed or
paid are recorded a5 a compoment of interest income or interedt expensa,
respecively, on the Statements of Cperations. Unfunded koan commitments
ane reflected a5 a liablity on the Statements of Assats and Lisbilises

|l Martgage-felated and Other Assen-Back ed Securities Certain Funds may
vt in mosgage-related and ofher dsset-badoed secunties that drectly o
indirectly répresent a partidpation in, of are seduned by and payable from,
loans on real property. Mortgage-related secunities are geated from pools of
resdential of commendal mortgage laans, induding morgge loans made by
savngs and boan inshilutions, maongage bankers, cormmercal banks and
ohers These securites provide a monthly payment which consises of both
interest and principal. Interest may be defermined by fied or adustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underling mangages will atfect the price and
wolatiity of a mortgage-related security, and may have the sffect of
shortening or exendng the effective duration of the security relative towhat
wias antigpated at the Gme of punchate. The timey payrment of prindpal and
imterest of certain mongage-related seamities is guaranteed with the fll faith
andl credit of the U5 Govemment. Pools created and guaranteed by non-
gowernmental issuers, induding government-sponsored coeporathons, may be
supported by vaious Sorms of insurance of quarantees, but there can be no
assurance that private ingurers of guaraniors can meel, thesr obligagions under
the insurance polides of uaraniee amangements. Marry of e risks of
ineesting in monigage-refated securites seased by commerdsl morigage
loans reflect the effects of local and other econcmic conditions on real estate
ks, the ability of tenants 1o maks lease payments, and the ability of a
ErepErty b JANNECT andd retain enants, These seasities gy bee less equidt and
iy exhibit greater price volatsity than other types of mortgage-refated or
ofer asel-backed seawities. Other ssset-badoed secunitiss are reated from
Ty DYpEs of gsseis, enchadng. but not lirnited b0, auto boans, sccounts
resCetvable, sech a5 oredit Cand recehabled and hospital acoant receivabies,
Ficarez exuiby Bosans, studkenit koans, bot Boans, mobde home loans,
recreationa vehide boans, manufacured housing kang, & raftleases,
cormputier bedses and syndicated bank bodrd Thi Fund may inest in amy lewd
of the capital smocure of an issuer of morgage-backed of asset-badbed
sequrniies, induding the equity of “first loss” ranche

e} Collataralized Morigege Obligatiors ("CMOS™) are debt abligatsons of 4
legal entity that are ool averali zed by whole mortigage loans of pirvate
rmcrigage bonds and dvided into dasses. CWOs are struchured into multiphe
dlasses, often referred to as “tranches”, with each dass beaning a different
stated matunty and entiled to & ditterent schedule for pamnents of prinapal
and interest, induding prepayments, CAMOs may be less hged and may exhibit
greater price wolatility than caher types of mortgage-related or asset-badesd
SEuities

i} Stripped Morigage-Back ed Securities {TSMEST) are derivatve mulfi-class
moetgage secunbes. SMES are usualy structuned with b dlasses that recenve
different proporsons of e interest and prindipal disrsbutions on & poal of
meeigage assets An SMES will have one dass that will receive all of the
Integesl (the imberest-Caly of K" dass), while the cgher dass will receve the
entire princpal (the peincipsl-only or “PO° dass). Payrents recened Tor K5
are inchuded in mienest noome on the Statements of Operatons. Because no
princdpal will be recerved a1 the masurity of an 10, ddustments ae made o
ke cost of the SECUNTY on & I'r'r‘fi'i-'f'lh' buasis unail DU Ry Thigse ﬁﬁuﬁm‘-‘.ﬁm
are incuded in ntenestincome on e Statements of Operations. Payments
received for PO% aré reated as reductions 8o the cost and par value of the
SeCunTes

{g) Collaerakizad Debt Obligations ("CD0%7) include Collateralized Bond
Obligasions ("CB0."), Collateralized Loan Obligations ("CLOS™) and other
similaghy stnuchered sequnities. CBOs and CLOs are types of asset-badked
sequnities & CBO is 3 trust which is backed by a dversfied pool of high risk,
belowy Bmeestment grade fixed income securities, A CLO IS a trust hypically
coflateralized by a poo of boars, which may indude, among others, domestic
and foreign senior secured loans, senior unseased loans, and subordinzte
coeporate loars, anduckng [aans that may be rated below invesment grade of
equivalent unrated boans. The risks of an investment in 2 CDO depend langely
on the fype of e collateral seowities and the dass of the COG in whidh

& Fund imests. In addition to the nomal risks assodated with fied income
secunties dorussed elsewhene in this report and the Funds’ Offering
Memoeandum (2., prepayment nisk, aedit rck, liquidty nsk, maerkef sk,
smuchural migk, begal nsk and interest rate risk dakach may be exgoerbated if
e infenest rate payable o a dneciured fingnang dranges based on
multiples of dhanges in interest rates of inversely to changes in interest
ratesy), CBOs, CLOs, and other CO0s cary addtonal risks ndudng, but not
lirnabed ho, (i) the possbainy thal disirbitions froem oollateral ssouniies wall nol
b acdeciate b0 make intefedl o ather payrents, §i) the quaity of the
collateral may dedine in value or default, () te risk hat & Fund may imeest
in CB0s, CLOs, or ather CO0S that are subsedinate 1o other dasse, snd (v
the compilex structure of e Sscunty may not be fully mderstood at e Gme
of investment and may produce daputes with the Bsuer o unexpecied
Irveskment results

{hl Payment InKind Securities Cortain Funds may ivest in payment inkind
sequrities {"FIKs™), FIks may give e issuer the option ateadh interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cach andfor additional
debit sequnities: Those additional debt securities usuatly have the same tenms,
induding maturity dates and interest rates, and assodated ridks as the
onginal bonds. The daity market quotations of the orginal bonds may indude
the aooued interest (referred o 35 2 "dirty price ™) and fequire a pro rata
adustment from the unrealized sppredation or deprediaton on invesiments
10 interest receivabe on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

] Restricted Securities Certain Fands may hold imeesiments that are subject
10 1egal o Conmrachasl restncoons on resale. These seqxities may be soid
puiwabely, Bt may be recuined 1o be registened or exempbed fom such
registration befare being sald 10 the public Private placement sequrities are
generally condidered 1o be resicied. Diaposal of resiricied imvestments may
I Gire-Conduming negabations and expen e, and prompt <ale a1 an
acceplable price may be dificult to achieve, Resticted investments held by
the Funde at October 21, 2020, 25 applicable. are dsdosed in the Notes o
Schedude of Invesments

§ Straotured Notes  Certan Fundk may imeestin seaciured notes and ather
related instruments, whach sre peteately negatated debit obiganans in whidh
the principal and’ or interest is determined by reference to the performance of
3 benchimaek assel, marked of interest rate {an “embedded index "), sch &
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selicled securitied, an ndex of secunties of spedfied ntenedl rales, of the
ditferential performance of bwo aseets or markets, sudh a5 indees reflecting
bonds. Struchared instuments may be issued by conporations, induding
banks, as well a4 by govermnmental agendes. The terme of duch structuned
instruments normialy provide that their prindpal 2ndfor interest payments are
te be adiusted upwands or dowmeeards (ot ondinarily mot below 2ero) to
reftect changes in the embedded indax while the struciured instruments are
oubitandng As 3 resull, the interest andfor principal payments that may be
made on 3 structured product may vary widely, depending on a vanety of
factors, induding the wolatlity of the embedded index and the effect of
changes in the embedded indea on princpel andtor interest payments

k) U8, Gowernasent Agencies or Government-5ponsared Enterprises

Certain Funds may imeest in seauities of LS. Government agendes o
gowernment-sponsored enferprses. LS, Govemment sequnties e
obigations of and, n certan cases, quarantesd by, the U5, Govemdent, i
agenicies of instrumentalities. Some U5 Gowvemment seunities, adh 2
Treasury bills, notes and bonds, and securities quarantesd by the Government
Maticnal Morigage Awodaton CGNMAT of “Ganmie Mae™), ate wpported
By the full faith and credit of the LS. Govemnment, afers, such a4 those of
the Federal Home Loan Barks, are supparted by the right of the issser to
boamosw from the U5 Department of the Treaginy (the U S Treasury™); and
afhers, suich as those of the Federal Matond Mortgage Assodation (TFNMA®
o "Fanree Mae™), are supported by the discretionary autheority of the U5
Girvermment to punchase the agency's obligations. U &, Govemment securilies
iy irvdude 2efo coupon Seawrities, whidh do not distnbute imeresd on &
amrent Bads and tend to be subject to a greater risk than interest-paying
secunities of similar matgrities

Govermrment-related quarantors (e, not backed by the full faith and aredt of
the L% Gowernment) indude FHMA and the Federal Home Loan Morigage
Corporation ("FHIMCT or "Freddie Mac™). FHMA s a government-sponsored
corporation. FNMA purchases conventional (e, not insued of quarantesd by
any govemnment agency) residentid morigages from a st of approved
sellersiencers which indude state and federally chartered savings and loan
awociations, mutual savings banks, commercial banks and aredt unions and
miigage bankers, Pass-through securities issued by FRMA are guaranteed a5
te Simely payment of prindpal and interest by FNBAA, but are not backed by
the full faith and cedit of the U5 Government. FHLMC issues Partidpation
Certificates {TPCS™), which are pass-through seqmities, each representing an
undivided interest in a poct of residential mortgages. FHLMC quarantees the
timely payment of inserest and uitimate oodlection of prindpal, but PCs are not
backed by the full faith snd aedtof the 15 Govemment

In June 2019, under the Single Securify initiatiee, FNMA and FHLME starled
issing Unifoemn Mongage Backed Seourites (T UMES™) in place of ther
amment afferings of TEA-elighie securiies. The “ngle Sequmty nifative seeks
to siapport the gwerall liquickty of the TRA market and aligns the
charactensios of FNAAG and FHLMC cerificates. The effects that the Single
Lecurity initiative may have on the market for TEA and other mortgage-
backed sequrifies are uncertain

Refl-timing strateges can be uisd where a Fund sesks (o extend the
expuration or maturiby of a posation, swch as a TBA securify on an underlying
asset, by dosing out the position before expiration and opening & new
porsation wath respect W substanBally the same uﬁl}?ﬂﬁﬂx‘; aserwith 3 later
expiration date. TBA securities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Ltatements of Assets and Liablities a5 an assefor Bability, respectively

{1 Whendssued Transections Certian Funds may punchase or s8] seounties
on @ when-swed basis These ransactions are made condionaly because a
sequnity, dtough suthonzed, his not :."Hhi‘l?l'l isased in the market
Teansactions o purdhase of 568 securites on awhen-nsued bass invole

A commitment by 3 Fund to punchate of sell thee seaaities for a
predetemined price or yeld, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
the qustomarny setement period. A Fund may sell when-issued securities
bt they ane deliver ed, which gy reuilt i & fedined gain of los

{m] Bank DBligations Eank obliganons i wivch a Fund may st indude
certboates of deposit, bankers’ acosptances, and fied time depodits
Certificaties of deposit ane negofiable certificates isased against funds
depsined in 3 commendal bank for a defingte peiad of dme and Saming 4
specified return. Barkers” acceptanoes ane neqotiable drafis of bals of
eochange, normally drawm by an importer o sxparier bo pay for spedhc
menchandise, which are " scephed” by 3 Dank, meansng, in effect, that the
bank unconditionally sgrees to pay ti faoe valae of the instrument on
maturity. Axed Sme deposits ane bank oblgations payable at 4 dated
maturity date and bearing interest at a fixed rate. Fooed time depasits may be
withidrawn on demand by the investor, but may be adgect o eardy
willdraw dl penalties whach vary depending upon market conditions and the
remaining maturity of the obiigation

fn] Perlermance Linked Notes Cemain Funds sveit in performance-lnked
notes that are issued by Credit Suesse Intemational (the ™ Fes Agent™) and
sEgk 10 Irind B e pertcemance of the FIMOO Berruds income Fund (M)

(" Perhamnance-Linked Moes™). bn the case of the IPY Performance: Linkied
Hates isaued, the perfoemance of such notes will be hedged to the Japansse
yien bey Cridil Susse ntemnationdl 1sang & propeietay formula; As explasned in
greater Getail in Mabe 9, the Fee Agent will fnance the payment of placemment
fees 10 certain Lapanese distrbutons In order for the Fee Agent 1o hedge
certan of i exposunes under the Fee Bgenl Appodniment Agresment (a5
efirwd im Mot 9, 40 8 expectied thiat froen G to Giee certain Clanses of the
FINCO Berrmudl income Fund E will invest in Perfomance-Linked bates in an
amount specified by the Fee Agent AT the tme of evenis indiding butnot
lirnited 10, any redemnption of units of the PIMCO Bamnuda income Fund E
and a step-diown of the applicable Percentage Contngent Defered Sales
Charge ("CESCT), a3 defined'in Mote 9, the Performance-Linked hotes held
byt Furidl willl b partiaity recdiemed accordingly in order 10 mantan e
total walue of Performande-Linked Nates in the Fund's investment portfdio
equd to or below the amount of the COSC applicatie fo the respective
Clastes of the Fund plus 0 20% muRiplied by the NAY of the respective
Classes of the Fund . Performance-Linked Notes are valued daly Their valee 15
based on the pior day NAY of the PIMCO Barmuda income Fund (M) With
respect to the value of te JPY Perfommande-linked Mobes, a proprietany
hedging forrmula is 5o applied The Fund cannat ranster the Perfiormance
Linked Hotes W any other party a<ade from the Fee Agent withou? the pror
writien agresment of the Fes Agent

5.EORROWINGS AHD OTHER FINAHCING TRARSACTIORS

Thie followeirg disclosures. oontam infamnagon on the Funds’ bty 10 bnd o
bidrrow Cash o securities 10 the éxtert permitted under the Offering
Wemoeandum, which may be viewed as bomowing of finandng ransactions
by the Funids, The locaton of these instruments is described below. For 2
detaled descnpbion of credit and counterparty nsks that can be assodated
with borowings and other finanding transacions, please swe Note 7,
Prindpal Rigks

{a] Aepurchase Agreemants Cerlan Funds may engage in repurchase
aigeements. Under thie terme of 3 ypca repurchase sgreermen,

3 Fund purdhases an underying debt obligation (collaterdl) subject to an
abdRgation of the seller o repurchase, and a Fund 1o resell, te obligation at
AN agreed-upon price and Bime. Inan opén Matunity repunchate sgnesmentl,
NFere i no pré-determined repurdhase date and the agreement can be
termenabed by thi Fund of Counterparty an any Bme. The marked vahne of the
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colareral misst b equaal ta or enceed the 1ot amount of the repusch e
obligations, mdudng interest. Repurchase agreements, indudng acoued
interest, are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities Interest
eamned is fecorded a5 4 compinent of intknest income on She Statéments of
Operations. In periods of ingeased demand for collateral, a Fund may pay 2
fee for receipt of collateral, which may result in inferest expense b0 the Fund

(b} Reverse Repurchese Agreements Cesfan Funds may enter info reverse
repunchase agreements. In a reverse repunchase agreement, a Fund delivers 3
secufity in exchange for cash 1o a finand sl instinuson, the counterparty, with
8 sEmdtaneus agreament 1o repurchase the same of substantially the same
Secumty at an sgreed upon [rice snd dite. I 56 Open Mann Ty reserse
regurch ase agresment, ther is no pre-deterrined repunchate date and the
agreement can be tenminated by the Fund or counerparty at any G

A Fund is entitled bo receive prindpal and interest parnents, IT any, made on
e Secuniy dedivered 1o the counberpaty during the bérm of the agresment
Cash recepved in exchange for secunties delivened plus acoued inberest
payments o be made by 3 Fund to counterpartes are reflected a5 3 habiliny
of e Staterments of Asels and Lisbeiges. intenel payments made by a Fund
Lo counberpar ties ane recorded a5 4 component of interesl expense on the
Staternents of Operations. In periods of increased dernand for the seqanty,

& Fuand eay receive 3 Bee for use of the secunty by the countemarty, which
iy resull i inberest income 104 Fond. A Fundwall seqregate assets
detenmined 8o be Bguid by FINCO o will othenssse cover it obligations
under reverse repurnchase agneements

) Sabe-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter into fimandng transacions
referred to as sale-buybades” A salebiybadk finandng ransadtion consists
of asale of a security by a Fund to a finandal institution, the counterparty,
with & simultaneous agreement B repurchiase the same o substantaly the
Same S0ty At an agreed-upon price anvd date. & Fund is nol enfitled to
recetve principd and interest payments, if any, made on e sequrity soid to
the counterparty durng e term of the agreement. The agreed-upon
proceeds for seamities vo ke repurchased by a Fund are reflected 2 a lisbikty
of the Statements of Asters and Lisbilites. A Fund will recogrene el incoms
represented by the price differential between the price received for the
teansfermed sequnty and the agreed-upon repusdusse pnce. This i5 commaonly
rederned b &S the 'price deog’ A price deop consias of ) the foregone inberest
and inflatonany income adjustments, if any, 3 Fund would have othensise
receved had the seosity mot been sobd avd () te negotated finandng tems
bemwiien & Fund and counberpany’. Foregone intenest and inflatonary income
adjustrents, it any, are recorded 35 companents of interest income on the
Statements of Operatanns. terest paymenits bated upon negotated 'f:l'lal'l-.'if!;I
Lesmns made by a Fund o counterparies dre recondied 45 a componant of
intenest mpende on the Statements of (peratians. In pericds of ndeaed
demand for the secuity, @ Fund may recenve a fee for use of the seourity by
T counberpany, wiedh muny result in inkenestincome 0 3 Fund. A Fund will
segiegane poets determined 1o be bauid by PIMCO of will otherande cower it3
obfigations under sale-buybad: rarsactions

i} Short Sales Certain Funds may enter into short sales ransacions. Short
sales are ransactions inwhich the Fund sells 2 security that it may nat cwn

A Fund may make shot sales of secunities to §) offset potential dedines in
boeg positions in simdar securities, (i) to increase the faibility of fe Fund,
{iif) far imeesament requrn, () a5 part of 3 nisk arbitrage strategy, and i) a5
partofits oweral portfolio management strategies invobing the use of
dervative instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the sexurity sold short and defver it 1o the counterparty. The Fund will
ordinanly Rave o paya fee of premium i bomow a sequsity and be obligated
to repay the lender of the seqenity amy dividend or interest that acoues on the
security during the period of the losn, Securities sold in shor sale pansacions
and the dividend of interest payable on such seowites, if any, are refected a5

payable for shoet sales on The Statements of Assers and Lisbilities. Shorpsaley
expose the Fund to the risk that itwill be required Bo cover it short position
at a Bme when the security or other asset has apprediated in value, this
resulting i bossed ba the Fund. A short sabe 18 "aganst the box™ il

the Fund holds in its portholio o has the right to acquire the sequnity soid
shert, or securiBes identcal to the seqrity sold short, 2t no additional cost

A Fundwil be subject to additional risks to the extent that It engages in short
sales that are nod "against the Boe ™ A Fund's loss on & short sale coukd
theoretically be unlirited in cases where the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, 1o close out its short posision

il Line of Cracit FIMCO Bermuda Bark Loan Fund (M) entened into § 364-
dary denor unseoured revobing ed it agreement with the Bank of Tokyo
Mitsubishi UFL, Lbd. (" MUFGT) and other commengial banks to be utilized for
EpOrany pueposes o fisnd Unithader redemptions of for ather shom-term
liguackty purpecrses. MUFG Serves a5 both 2 bank and &5 an agent fof ot
banks thal e parties 1o e agreement. PIMCO Bemmisda Bank Loan Fund
M) pays finanding changes based on & combination of LBOR-based vanatle
plus & credit speead The Fend 850 pays 3 e of (:35% per anfum on the
unubed comembment amounts. The agreement w s rendwed on August 21,
2020 and expires on Awgust 21, 2021 unless extended or renewed . There s a
rdcirum avaiable commitment amount for PIMCO Berruds Bank Loan
Fumnd (W) equal to §55, 000,000, Prics 1o Asgust 21, 2020, the mamum
Fvalable commitment amognt for the Fund was 175,000,000 and te Fend
paid a fee of 0.275% pér snnum on the unused comamirient amounts
Commitment, wplront and interest fees of 3286273 paid by PRMCO Bermuds
Bank Loan Fund (M) are induded in interest expense in the Statements of
Qperations

During the perdd, there were no bomewings on this line of gedit

. FIR AHCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMERTS

The following disdosures contan information on how and why the Funds use
financial derivaiive instruments and how finandial derivative insmuments
Affect the Funds” finandal position, resdts of operatsons and cash fiows The
location and fair walue amounts of these instnaments on the Statements of
Assets and Liabeities and the net realized gan (oss) and net change in
unrealized appeeciation {depred ation) on the Statements of Operations, each
categonzed by type of finandal desivative contract and related sk exposure,
areindudedin a table in the Motes 1o Schedide of Investments, The financal
dervative insmements outstanding a5 of period end and the amounts of met
redized gain (oss) &nd net change inurreasized apgredation (depredation)
on finandial dervative instrurments during the period, as dedosed in the
hotes b Schedule of nvestments, senve a5 indicators of the volume of
fingncial derivative activity for the Funds

{a] Fareward Foreign Currency Comtracts  Certamn Funds may engage in
forwand foreign currency coniracts in connecion with sertling planned
purdhases of sales of seamies, tohedge the curendy exposure fssodaed
with soree of all of & Fund's securities of & part of an mvestment strategy, A
forward foreign aurrency coniradct i an agréament bedaeen b parties o buy
and zell 3 cumency a1 a set price on 3 future date. The market value of 2
foewaed Toregn Currendy Contract lucluates with changes in fonsgn aamency
mochange rates. Forward foreign currency ooniracts ate marked o market
daity, and the change in value is recorded by 3 Fund a5 an unsedized gain o
levis. Reealiped gainis OF oritied Are equal 10 e diflerence between thie vl of
the contract at the dme itwas opened and the valus at the time itwas dosed
and are recorded upon delivery or receipt of the cumrendy. These contracts
may imvobve market sk in excess of the unsealized gain or boss reflected on
The Statements of Adsers and Lisbilves b addtion, & Fund oould be exposied
toridk if the counterparties are un abde bo meet the terms of the confrads or if
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the value of the currency changes untawrally to the functional arrendy. To
ritigate such rick, cash or sequities may be exchanged a5 collatersl pursuant
ta the terms of the underying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Clats, may A0 enler into forward fonsign
mency confracts designed to offset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
onder 10 [edde the hedoed Class with an epoture o arrendes other than the
functioral currendy. There can be no quaranies |at thete (s pedhic
fonward foresgn curmency confracts will be sucoessiul

(b} Futwres Contracts Cértan Funds may enter mio fulures conlrads. A
fuhsres contract is an AFEEment in bl.l'p’ of 5ll 3 SECUTIRY of oifer asset for a
461 price on & Tuhire Gate nd 55 Uaded on an exchange. A Fund may use
fusnes condracts to manage its expoiute 1o e securities markets of 10
FCREnEnTs i interest rates and ourendcy values. The primany risks ssso0ated
with the use of funires. coniracts ane the impecect conmalation benween the
change in rsarked valie of the decunties held by & Fund and the pices of
Tutures contracts and the possibility of an iliquid market Futures coniracts
ane valued based upon thelr quoted daily setfement prices. Upon éntenng
into & hutures contract, 2 Fund i reduired o depodt with i Tutures broker an
amountof cash, U%. Government and Agency Obligations, or select sovereign
debl, i S000nAI08 Wl T EEiLs mangen fEl.'fJ'l’EIT'-':I"IIS of thee broker of
exchange Futures contracts & macked 1o market daly and based on such
mowverments in the price of the contracts, an appeopriale payable of recervable
tor the change in value may be posted or collected by the Fund (" Futures
aristion Mangin™). Futures Vanaton Margns, il any, ane dedosed within
centrally deared finanddl demvative instruments on the Statements of Assels
and Liabilities. Gains of losses are recogni zed but not cvdidered realized until
the contracts expire or dose. Fulures contracts involve, to warying degrees,
risk: of boss in eecess of the Fubenes Vadanan Mangin induded within
exchange traded or centrally deared fnandal dedvative instnaments on the
Statemnents of Acsets and Lahdites

el Opthere Comracts Certan Funds may write o purchase options to
enhance reiums of 1 hiedge an ed4hng podimon of fubee svesiment. Cértan
Fursds may write ¢l and put opltions on securites and fmandd derivalive
instrurments they dwm of in which they mayinwest Writing put cpfions tends
Lo increase 3 Fund's exposure 10 e underhing mnstrument. witing call
ofticens terud to distreate & Rend's exposune o Se undestying instument
Whien a Fundwrites a call or put, an amount equa 1o the premium receied i
reconded and subsequenthy madked to market o reflect te aurment vatue of
the aption witlen Thede amounts e induded on the Statements of Astets
and Liabdities Fremusms recenved from wriing oplions wiech axpire are
treated as reaized gains. Premiumes received from writing optiors which are
exeraised of doted are added 1o he peocesds o olfuet gaindt amounis pad
on the undestying fulteres, swap, sscurily o Qurrency ransaction to determine
the realized gain or boss. Certain options may be written with premiumes fo be
determined on a future date. The premivme for these opBons are based upon
impdied wolatility parameters at speafbed tems. A Fund as awnlerof an
opticn fas no contrd overwhether the underhying instnument may be sold
("cal ") or purchased {"put ™) and a5 a result bears the market risk of zn
unfasoratie change in the prace of the instrument underhang the wiiltten
ophion There i the sk a Fund may mot be able to enter into a dosing
transachion because of zn illigusd market

Certain Funds may also purchase put and call options. Purchasing call opfions
tends o increase a Fund's exposure to the undeshang instument Purchasing
put pions fends 1o dedrease a Fund's expasyre 1o the underdying instrument
A Fund pays a premium which is inclieded a5 an 22581 on the Statements of
Assets and Lisblities and sutsequently marked to market to reflect the
awTent walue of the option. Fremiums paid for pendhasing oplions whidh
exgire are reated as realized |osses. Certain options may be purdhased with
premiums b be determined on 3 future date. The premiums for these oplions

ae based upson implied vol stility parameters. at spedfed terms The risk
assodated with purchasing put and call options is limited 1o the premiem
paid. Fremiurs paid for purchasing options which are exerdsed or dosed are
added w he amounts paid o offser against the proceedt on e underdying
irvestment trancaction to detemine the realizzd gain o loss when the
underhying fransaction is execubed

Credit Default Swaptiors Cerlain Funds may write or purchase eredi default
Swaptions o hedye oposure o e el nk of an mvestment without
aking & comnibment 10 the undeying insrument. A aedt defauln aaplion
15 an ophan o sl or by aredit protechion 1o 3 spedhic relerence by entening
irvtey & pre-oefined Svap soresenent by some specified date in the future

Forsign Curmency Dptions Certan Furds may wiite of purdhase foreign
curmen oy options 1o ke used 35 3 short or long hedge againss possible
VEIIBONS 1N fUt'-[:ﬂ i Am0R Fabes OF T QNN Expotire 10 foreign Qrmendes

Inflation-Capped Optiens Cértan Funds may wiite of purdhase inflaion-
capped ophions to enhamoe returns of for hedging opportunities. The purpass
of purchasing inflation-capped op@ons is (o protect 3 Fund from inflaton
efision above 3 Certain rate on A gen notional expossne. A floor can be
used bo give downside protection 1o imvestments in inflationdinked products

Interest Rate Swaptions Cerlain Funds maywrite of purdhase intenest rate
swaptions which are options 10 efler into a pre-defined swap agresment or
10 shvortien, Extend, cancel of ofenaTe My & EEung D seemenl,
bry scermee specified dae in the fute. The weiter of the syapton becomes the
counterparty o the swap if the buyer exendses. The interest rate avaption
sipeement will speddy whether the buyer of the svaption will be a fxedrne
Pecever of & fooed-fale paer upon eendte

Optiors on Exchang e Traded Futures Contracts Certan Funds may wete of
purchase opthons of exchange-ra ded futunes contracts TFulises Opoon™) o
hedge an existing posibon of future investment, for speaulative purposes of to
MAnNage exposure Lo Markel mavements. A Futres Option i an ophcn
contract in which the underkang instrument o & single Satunes. contract

Options on Securithes  Cenain Funds may wiile of purchase opoons on
seturities bo enhance refums or to hedge an exsting position or future
irvesement. An oplion on a securify wses a spedified secunity 35 the underlying
imssnument for the opfion conirad

id] Swup Agresmants Cemsin Fundd indy sl in 50 agfeements. Swip
agreements ane bilater Ay negotiated agreements between 3 Fund and a
counterparty to emchange or swap investment cash flows, assets, foregn
curmendes of market-inked retums at spedfied, future intervals. Swap
ageerments may be privately negotiated in the OTC markel of may be dedned
through athird party, known as 4 central counterparty or dervatives dearing
organization ("centraly deared avaps”). A Fund may enter into asset, oedit
detauly, cross-currency, mmtensst rate, total retam, vasiance and other forme of
AP agreements b manage its exposune b credit, curendy, interest rate,
commedity, equity and inflation risk. In conpection with these agreements,
segurifies or cash may be identified a5 collaters or margin in accordance with
the terms of the respeciive swap sgeements bo provide ausets of value and
recourse in the event of default or bankruptopfinsohency

Centrally deared Swaps ate marked o market daiy based upon valuations a8
determined froem the underlying contract of in accordance with the
requirements, of the central counterparty oo derivatives dearing onganization
Chandges in market value, if amy, ane reflected a5 a component of net change
inunrealized appredation (depredation) on the Statements of Operations
Daity changes in valuation of centrally deared swaps {“%wap Variaton
Margn "), if any, are discosed within cenirally deared financial derivative
instruments on the Statements of Assels and Liabilties OTC swap payments
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risceved of paid at the beginning of the measurement peniod ae indudsd on
Lhe Statements of Assets and Liabilifes and represent premiums paid o
received upon entering into te swap agreement i compensate for
differences babaien the stated terird of the swap sgresment and prevailing
markel conditions (oedit spreads, cumendy exchange rates, interest rates, and
other relevant factoes). Uipfrond prerniumes recefved (paid) are inifaffy reconded
a5 Bzbilides (assets) and subsequenthy marked to market to reflect She curent
watue of the swap These updront premivsmes are recorded a4 redlized gains o
losses on the Slatements of Operations upon termination or maturity of the
swap A liquidation payment received or made at the termination of the swap
% reconded a5 redized gain of loss on the Statements of Operations. Net
periodc payments received or paid by a Fund are induded as part of reali zed
gains of bosses on the $tatements of Cperations

For purpcses of applying certain of a Fund's investment polides and
resirictions, swap agreements, like other denvative instruments, may be
watued by & Fund at market vatue, notienal valwe or full exposure value, In the
cate of 3 oredit default swap, in applying certain of the Fund's imvestment
poficies and restrictions, the Fund will value the gredt default swap atits
niticnal valiee of its fll exposure valise ( &, the sum of the national amaunt
fior thee: conract plus the market value), but may value e gedt defal swap
at market value for purposes of applying certain of the Rend's other
fevestment polides and restrictions. For example, the fund may valee gedit
dedault avaps at full exposure value for purposes of the Fund's aedit quaity
quadelines (# any) because sudh value in general better reffects the Fund's
actyal economic exposire dunng the term of the aedit default swap
agreement. AS a result, & Fund may, at times, have rotional exposure 1o an
dssel dass ':'.bt'!l}fE nEmbng hat 1 greater of letser than the stabed limit o
restriction neded in Se Fund's Offering Memorandum. in Shis conbext, bath
tie: neatronal amount and the market value I'l'la'r'b-? positve of negatne
diepending on whether the Fumd i3 s2lling o bindng peatection thecaigh thi
credit default avap. The mannes in which certan wairites of ofer
Instruments are vaued by the Fund for purposes o pphing imvestment
polckes, and restricioons may d fhier fromm the manser in which those
irvvestireents. are valued by ather types of imoistors. Entering into seap
agreements Imvolves, 1o vaning degrees, elements of interest, credit, markeq
A docunentation fidk in excess of the mMounts fecignized on the
Statérents of Assets and Liabidities Sich risks imeobve the pogsibality that
thiesre will b no ligeed marked Sor these agreements, that the counterparty i
the agresments may default on s cbligatdon 1o perform or disagres a3 to he
rrosaung of conmracieal berrms mn the agreemients and that there may be
unfasrabie changes e interest rates o the values of the a4et upon which
thie svap i based

A Fund's mgdmum sk of |oss inom counterpasty credit ek is the dsomnbed
netvalue of the cash Bows bo be received from the counterparty over the
CONMracE's fEI‘-ldII'IIﬁj?J-[". 10 Hhi extent Bat amount is potitve. The ek may
b mrtiganed by having & mattef netting arrangement bétwien 3 Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collatera to 3 Fund 1o cower a Fund’s
ENposure B0 thie COUNTEPArTY

T the extent 3 Fund has a policy 1o lenit the net amount owed 1o of to be
receved from a sngle counterpany unde edsing svap areements, sudh
liemitation ondy applies to counterpartses to OTC swaps and does ot apply 1o
cenirally deared swaps where the counterparty is 3 central countenparty of
dernvaives desing organi Zason

Cradit Default Swap Agresmarts Certain Funds may enter inta credit defaull
SWaps on Corporate, laan, soweredgn, U5 munidpal or U5, Treatuny issoes o
proviide 3 measure of protection against defaults of the issuers e, o reduce
ik where & Fund owns o has exposure to the referenced obligaton) or 1o
Lake an active long or short position with respect to te likelihood of 2
parfiodar issuer's defaslt Credit default swap agreements imvobe one party
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rmakineg 3 stream of payments (refermed to a8 the buyer of probection) to
andither party (the seller of protedtion] in exchange for the right to receive 3
specified return i the svent that the referenced entity, obfigation or index, as
specified in the swap agréement, undefgoes 3 certain credil évent. As 2 seller
of profection on credit defaull awap agreements, a Fund will Qenerally receive
from the buyer of protection a fixed rate of income throughout the: term of the
swap provided that there is no redt event, A5 the sefier, 3 Fund would
effectively add beverage to its portfolio because, in addtion to B3 total net
assels, the Fund would be subject te investment exposure on the nofional
amount of the wap

it a Fundis & sefler of profection and a credit event ooours, a5 defined under
ihe tems of that particular swap agreement, a Fund will either () pay to the
buryer of protechion an amount equal to the notional smount of the wvap and
Lakce dalivery of the referenced obigation, other deliverable obligations or
underbing seqmities comprising the referenced index or (i) pay anet
seftlement amountin the form of Cash or sequrities equal to the ROGona
amount of the swap less the recovery vaue of the referenced obligation or
undeshying securities comprising e referenced index. i a Fund is a buyer of
protection and a credkt event oooprs, a5 defined under the terms. of that
partioular swap dgresment, 3 Fund will either () receive from the selfer of
protection an amount equa to the notional amount of the swap and deliver
the referenced cbligation, other defiverable obligations. or underhying
sequnities aompgising the referenced index of (i) receive @ e semement
amaunt in the form of cash or seamities equal to the notional amount of the
swap kess the recoveny value of te referenced cbligation or underlying
sedunities compeising the referenced index. Reomvery values ane estimated by
rnarketmakers corsidering either industry sundand recovery raes of entity
spedific Bactors and considerations until a gredit event oocurs, If & credit event
has poasmed, the recovery value |s determined by a faolicaied auction
whienily & rinemunn rumber of Mowable Droker Dids, 10gether with 3
ipecified valuation method, sre used to calaulate the setdement valee. The
abliny to deliver other cbligations may result in 3 cheapest-to-deliver option
(e baryer of prodection's rght 10 choose the deliverabie cbligetion with the
lewnest vlse followineg 4 credit event)

Credi detault swap AEEmEnts o dedit incices imvolve One party fraakineg a
stream of payments o another party in exchange for the right [0 feceive &
specified return in the event of 3 write-down, prindpal shortfall, interest
shortiall or default of all or part of the referenaed entities comprsing the
aredt ndix A qredTindex it 4 baskel of cedindiuments oF eposures
deshgned to be representative of some pan of the qedit madket as 3 whole
These mdices are made up of reference aedits tat are judged by & poll of
dealiers 1o be the most liqued enthes m the aedit defaull svap markel based
o thee wectar of the index. Cormpanents of the indices may indude, but are
ot linited b, l-"l'-"i-Sl'IW?"l[gl’ﬂd'i sequnites, high yheld seaun s, dsset-hadeed
SECURles, emergend markets, andfor vamous ced raangs within each seaor
Cradit mdices e raded using cedit default twape with standand 2ed tenme
induding a fixed spread and standard matunty dates, Anindex credit detault
swiap references gl the names in the inde 300 i thene i< 3 default, te cedt
evenl s etlled based on that name” weight in the Edex. The oormposition o
the indices changes period cally, wsualy every six months, and for mast
indices, each name has an equal weight in the index A Fund may use gedit
debault swaps on dredit ndices 1o hedge a portholio of redit detault swaps o
bonds, which is ka4t expensive than itwould be 1o buy many credt default
swaps to achieve a similar effect, Credit default svaps on indices are
instnuments bor protecting imvesiors owning bonds agamst defaull, and
traders use them bo speculate on changes in aredit quality

Irnplved crehin spreads, repretented m absolute terms, uthized in detemmining
he market valee of cedit delault swap agresments on corporate, loan,
sovereign, U S mimidpal or US Treasury issues a3 of period end, if any, are
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dischoded in the bates to Schedule of Festiments. They serve a4 an indcator
of the current status of paymentiperformance risk and represent the fikelfiood
o risk of detault for the referenced entity. The implied gedit spread of 3
particdar rederenoed enlity reflacts the cosl of Bungfelling protection and
may indude upiont payments reguired 1o be made 1o enter nto the
agreement Wider gedit spreads represent a deterionation of the referenced
entity’s aredit soundvess and a greater Bkelihood or risk of default or other
aredit event ogouming as defined under the temms of the agreement. For credit
default swap agreements on asset-badked securities and aedit indices, the
quoted market prices and resuliting values serve as the indcator of the qument
status of the paymentiperioemance rsk. Increasing market values, in absolute
tesms when compared 10 the motionall amount of the Swap, represent a
deterioration of the referenced entity’s credt spundness and a greater
liketihocd or risk of default or other credit event ooouming &5 defined wnder
the teimns of the agreement

The maximum potentizl amownt of future payments undisoounted) hat

a Fund s a seller of profection could be required to make under a aedt
default awvap agreement equals the nofonal amount of e ageement
Motiona amounts of esch ndividual cedt default saap agresment
outstandng &5 of persod end forwhich & Fund is the selber of progection e
disdosed in e Motes to Schedule of Investments. These potentiad amounts
would be partialy offset by any recovery values of the respective referenced
obEganons, upinont payments recened upon entering into the sgreement, o
ned amounts recetved from the settlement of buy protection credit default
W3R agreements entered into by a Fund for the same referenced entity or
enfifes

Interest Rate Swap Agreements Cerfain Funds are subject to interest rate
risk expersine in the nonmial course of purang Heir investment cbjedives
Thevaue of the fixed rate bonds that & Fund haldt may deorease if inlerest
rates re T help hedge against this risk and to maintain its abiity o
generate iInoome 3t prevailing market rates, 3 Fund may enter into intersst
rate syap agreernents Interest rate swap agreements imvalve the exchange
Ery & Fund with another party for their respective commitment to pay o
recehve interest on the notional amount of pinopal. Certain fams of interest
rate syap agreements may incude: (i) infers$t rate caps, under which, in
rehm fior 3 premium, one party agrees 10 make payments 1o the other 1o the
extent that intenest rates exceed 3 specfied rate, or “cap”, §i) ntenest rate
flowrs, undes which, in retum fior 3 preméum, one paity dgrees Lo make
payments o the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a spedfied
rate, of “floor™, Gl interest rate colars, under which a party sells a cap and
plerchases 4 Soor oo vice versa in an atbempl 1o protect isell agsinst interest
rate movements eoceeding given minimum of mendmem fevels, (i) callable
interest rate saaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consderaton for the dght o eary terminate the swap ransaction in whele,
AR 2ero oot and 4t a predetemned date and tme prior 1o the maturnty dake,
{v) spreadiocks, whidh alker the interest rate svap users to lod in the
forweard differential {or spread) between the intenest rate swap rate snd 2
spedfied bendhmark, or () Bass twaps, under whidh wo partes cn
exchange vanable mberesr ratis based on different segrments of money
ket

Total Return Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter into tofal retum
SWED BQTEEeEnts 1o gain of mitigate exposure o Se underying reference
Todal refum svap agreements imechve comimitments where single or multiphs
cash fliows are exchanged based on the price of an underying reference asset
and on 3 fized or vanable interestrate. Todal retum swap agresments may
Imenhve comEnitments W pay interest in éxchange for & marketdinked retum
e counberparty pays out the total retum of a spedfic underbying reference
asset, which may indide 3 sigle security, 3 basket of sequnities, or an index,
and i refum recehves  fieed of warable rate. A the ma Turity date, & net cash

o i echianged wehene Hhe toal retum s equivalent 1o the retrn of te
undeshying reference asset less a finandng rate, if any. As 3 receiver, a
Fumd would receive payments based on amy positive total retum and would
e pryiranity in e et of & pegalive ot retum. As the payer, 3

Fund would owe paymenits on any positive total retum, and would receive
payments in the event of a net negative total retum

T.PRINCIPAL AHD OTHER RISKS

fa] Primcipal Risks [t normal course of business, the Funds (or Acquired
Fumd{s), it applicable) wade finandal instruments and enter info finandal
transactons whete fsk of potential lss edsts due 10 suidh hings &5 changes
im thee ke (rarket mek) or Ralure or inatslity of theé ather party 1o 4
transaction to perform (credit and counterparty risk). See below for 3 detailed
deseription of select prindpal Asks

Fundof Funds To the exient that certain Funds invest substansially all of their
respective F5sets in Acouired Fundis), te fisks sssodsted with investing in
et Funds wall b dosely elated 10 e ks assooated with the ssounbes
and ofher investments held by the Acquired Fund(s) The ahility of the Funds
for achieve their respective investment obpecives may depend upen the ahility
of the Acguired Funds) (o schieve their respective investment CRRECES
There can be no assurance that the investment objactive of any Acguired
Fund{zhwill be achieved, The NAY of an Acquinng Fundwill fuchsate in
resporse 1o dnanges in Bhe redpecive NAY of the Anquined Fumdi) in whidh it

IFiveRs.

i the normal cowrse of business, Acguired Funds) irade finanaal irstuments
and enber into inandal wanacions where nak of polential loss exdsrs dee o
changes in the marker {market risk), or faiure or inakdiny of the otherparty 1o
& transacion 1o perform (oredit and COURDEEPEITY Mk

Performance-Linked Notes Risk To the exent each of the B-1 1605 (IFY), B
Te05 (LEE, B-J VR0 JFY), B 1609 (LSS, B-) 1612 JFY)and B-] Tai2
(LD} Classes of the AMICO Bermoda indome Fund E invest in Performance-
Linked Hotes, theywill forego other vestment opporbunities, which could
negativedy imgact the perfamandce of such Jass. In addton, asch
Performanice-Linked Notes are unseqred obligations of Credit Suisse
nternationd and o the Classes are exposed 10 the oredit risk of Credi Sukse
niemationd. Furthenmore, e Performance-Uinked Motes will be adversely
affecied in the event of 3 default, reduced oeditrating or detenioration in the
sodvency of Credit Suisse Intemational

Merket Riska A Fund's imeestments in finanda derfvative instnsments and
other finandal instnuments expose the Fund tovarious iges such as, but not
lienied b, intenest fate, foreign (Ron-LES ) curmency, equity and cormodity
rigks

Inbéresl rane risk: o8 the sk that fooed indormse securities and other &St ments
held by & Fund may dedine in value because of an indrease in interest rates I
niomin al inkerest rabes mse, thevalue of certain freed income securities held by
4 Fund would likely decrease A nominal interest rate can be dedrbed a3 the
surm of & nedl interest rate and an epected inflation rabe. [nbenest rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money if
these changes are ot anticipated by Fund management. A Fund may not be
able o hedge agairdt dhandges in interest rates or may choose nat 1o do 5o for
cosbor other reasons In addition, amy hedges may not work as intended

Dourdtion is & measure used to detemmine e senybily of & seouity's prace (o
changes in interest rates that incodporates a security™ yield, coupon, final
maturity and cad features, among other characteristics. Corvendiyis an
additional measure used tounderstand a security’s or Fund's interest rate
sentitivity that measures the rate of change of duraon in response to
changes in inferest rates. Fixed income securities with longer durations tend
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Ly bt mone Sensifivee [0 chandges in inlerest rates, usually making them more
wolatile than gecurites with shorter duratians. A wide variety of factors can
cause inberest rates or yields of U5, Treasury secunties {or yields of other
typet of bobd) o rise (o, cenbral bank ionetary polioet, inffatan rates,
generad econcmic conditions, =3¢ ) This i especaily true under qument
conditions because interest rates and bond yields are nazr historicaly low
lewels. Thus, the Funds curmently face 3 heighitened level of risk assodated
with rising interest rates andior bond yields. This could be driven by a2 variety
of factors, induding but not limited bo central bank monetany polides,
changing inSation or real growth rates, general economic conditions,
imoreasing bond issuances o reduced market demand foe bow yieldng
Imeestments. Further, while U5 bond markets have steadily grown over the
past three decades, dealer “market making™ ability has remained relatively
stagnant Given the importane of intemediary “market making” in areating
a robust and active market, fied income securities are quEmently

facing increased volaslity and Bquidty ks Al of these factors, collectively
anchior incividually, could cause a Fund to lose value If the Fund lost encudh
vabue, the Fund could face imcreased Unithiolder redempbiens, which could
fussher impair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely affected
when a large Unithobder purchases of redeems large amounts of wnits, which
N ooour M anvy Tme and may impact e Fund n the $ame Mmanned a5 a high
wobume of redempticn requests. Large Unitholder rarsactions may impact
the Fund's liquidity and et asset value, Sudh ransactions may also indease
the Fund's transaction Costs of otherwise cause the Fund to perform
ditferently tran inténded. Moreoyer, the Fund is subject o te sk tha
offhier Unithodders may make investment dedisions based on the dholces of 2
lange Unithodder

A Fund may have sagnificant exposune 1o issuers i the Unated Kingdom, The
United Kingdom's dedision (o beave the Europesn Union may impact Fund
e, This deasion may cause substansial volatility in foregn exdrange
Friakrkets, lead towedinessin the sahange rate of the Bntich pound, resultn
8 wstained perod of market uncertainty, and destabllize some or 2l of the
omer Buropean Union member courteies andice the Eurczons

Foreign fon-U 5 ) sequrities in this eport are dassified by the country of
incorporation of aholdng In cemain instanoes, 3 sequrity’s couniny of
inconporation many be diflerent from its contry of economec exposure

If & Fund imeests drectly in foreign qron-U 5.3 currendes of in secunities that
Ll in, and receive mevenues e, foreign (non-UL S ) curmendies, of in financal
derivative instruments that provide exposire to foreign (eon-U 4 ) currendes,
i vl b2 suftwect 1o the risk that those curencies will dedine in valiee relatve
1o e base aurency of the Fund, or, i e case of hedging positons, that
the fund's base cumency will dedline in value refative 1o the qurrency being
hedged. Cumency rates in foreign oountries may fluciuate significantly over
short perbock of time for & number of reasans, induding changes in interess
rabes, intenntion (oF he tajure 10 inbenene) by U5 or fofsgn govemments,
ceniral banks or supranational enfities such as the intemational Monedary
Fund, o by Ehe impositon of awrency contrals o other palitical developmenis
i the United States of abroad. AS & residn & Fund's invettaments in Boreign
urrency-dencminated sscurites may reduce the Fund's rehams

Thie drarked values of equities, iach a5 comiren s80cks and prefered seamities
oF equity related irestmens such a4 futures. and aplioes, have hisloncaly
risen and fallen in periodic oyd es and may dedine due 1o generd market
condtions which e not spedfically related 1o & particl as compay, such a5
real of peromded adveris emnomic conditions, changss in the general
outlook for corporate eamings, dianges in interest or oETency rates, public
health emengendes, such a5 the speead of infectious Hness o disedse, of
Achierae irmettol enbment generally. They may 8o dedive due b ot
which affect a parficidar industry or industries, such as labor shorages of
Incredsed production costs snd compegive condiBons within an |ndusiry

Cafferent types of edquity Sentiss may react differently o hese
developments. Equity securities and equity rel sted imestments generally hawe
qreater market price volasility than fiesd income seqenifes

Certain Funds may imeest in certain instruments that rely in some fashicn
upon LEBOR: LIBOR is an average interest rate, detenmined by the ICE
Benchimark Administration, that hanks dharge one andther for the use of
shart-term money. The United Kingdom's Finandal Conduct Authority, which
regulates LIBOR, has anounced plans to phase out the use of LIBOR by the
end of 2021, The fransition may resut in a reduction in the vale of certain
Instruments held by 3 Fund of a reduchon in the effectensss of related Fund
transactions such s hedges. There remains uncertamn ity regandng future
utilizafion of LIBOR and the nature of any replacerment rate (e g, the %ecured
Crvemight Rnandng Rate, whidh is mtended o replace U5 dollar LIBOR and
meatures the st of owemight bomowings thraugh repurchase agreement
transactions collateralized with L%, Tréasury secunties), and any potensial
effects of the Fansition away from LIBOR on a Fund of on Certan insnements
inwhich a Fund invests are not known and could result in Iosses to a Fend

Beginning in January 2030 giobal finandial markets have experienced and
may conlinue o experience Sgnificant wolatility resulting from the spread of a
niowel coronavings known & COVID-19. The autbreak of COVID-19 has
resulted in travel and border restrictions, gearantines, supply chain
disruplticns, Iower conasmer dernand and general market uncertanty. The
global economy, the economi=s of certain nations and indhidual issuers have
been and may continge to be adversely aftected by COVID-19, partioulary in
Iight of the interconnectivity benween economies and fnandial markes, afl of
which may negatively impact the Funds’ performance, in addigon, COVID-19
and governmental responses to COVID-19 may negatively impact the
capabilities of the Funds’ service providers and diarupt the Funds’ operations

Credit and Counterparty Risks A Fundwill be eqosed to creditnsk to

par et with whom i1 trades andwill also bear the ik of setdement default
A Fund minimizes concentrations of oredit nsk by undentaking ransacions
with & Lange number of customens and counterparties on recognized and
reputable ochangés, whene applicatie. OTC derivative transaclions e
subject o the ek that a counterparty ba the rarsaction wall not fulill its
confractual obligations to the other party, a5 many of the profections afforded
1o centrally deared dertvative ransactions meght not be availabde for OTC
dervative Tansactions. For derivatives traded on an enchangé or thrcugh a
central counberparty, aredit risk resides with the cedibworthiness of

the Fund's dearing broker, or the dearinghouse itsalf, rather than to a
counterparty in an OTC demvative ransaction Changes in requlation relating
o & Fend's wse of derivatives and related instruments could peotentially Emit
or impact the Fund's abilty to invest in derivatives, lmit the Fund's ability to
employ Ceftain Sirategies that use derivatives andfor adversely affect the valie
o perfiormandce of dervatives and the Fund. A Fund coudd lose money if the
isser of guarantor of 2 fixed income security, or the counterparty 10 3
financial derivative insTuments coniract, repurdhase agreement of 3 loan of
portiofo seouriges, i unabie of unwilling o maske Gmedy prindipal andior
interest payments, of to oiherwise honor its obligations, Secunities and
financeal derivative instruments are subpet wo vanving degrees of qedt risk,
which may be refiected in aredit ratings

Similar o credit risk, 3 Fund may be exposed to counterparty risk, or the risk
thal an insibabon of Otteer enity with which 3 Fund has unsetiled of open
transactions will default FIMCO, a5 the Manager, minimizes counterpanty
rigks 40 the: Funds through a number of wiays. Frior (o entening into
transactions with 3 new counteparty, the PIMCO Counterparty Risk
Commities conduds an extensive oedit resew of sudh COUnLEMArty &nd misst
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant fo the tenms of
the underhying confract, &0 the extent thatunpaid amounts owed 0o 3 Fiend
excied 3 prédetermmned hieshold, such coumterparmy shall advance colaberal
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b & Fand in the form of cath of Securitied equal in value to the unpaid
amount owed to 3 Fund A Fund may invest such collateral in securies o
other irsinements andwill typically pay inferest o the counterparty on the
coflareral fecenved. If the urpaid amount owed 10 2 Fund subréequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be requined Bo refurn 1o the counterparty al or 3
portion of the collateral previcusly advanced FIMCO's attempts bo minimize
counterparty risk may, however, be unsuocessful

Contingent convertible securities ("Colos™) are a form of ybrid debd seaurity
issued primarily by non-11 % Fsuers, which have boss absorption mechaniams
sl into Bheir temns. Colos have no stated matunty, have fully disgetonary
coupans and are typically issued in the form of swbordinated debit
instruments CoCos generally either covvert into equity of e issuer or have
thesit principal writhen disn upon the aocurrence of certain rggenng evwenls
{"triggers”) linked to regulatory capital shresholds or regul Slory actions
relating o the issuer's continued viabdity. As 3 result, an investment by 3
Funid in CoCos is subject bo the risk that coupon (e, interest) payments may
Bbe cancelled by the isswer or @ requlatory authontyin ander o help the issuer
atsorb losses. Anirvestment by a Fund in CoCosis also subject to the rigk
that, in the event of the Hgudation, dssdution or windngup of an issuer
prior 103 tigger event, 3 Fund's ights and daims will generdly rank junicr
to the daims of holders of the ksuer's other debt abligations. In addition, if
Coos held by & Fund are converted into the isswer’s underfying equity
sequrifies folowing a tigger event, the Fund's hotdng may e further
subordinated due to the comeersion from a debt to equityinstrument. in
certain scenanos, imvestors in CoCos may suffer a loss of capital ahead of
equaty holders or wiven equity holders do not. There is no guarantes that a
Funed will pecenve 3 return of prenapal an CoCos. Any indecaion that an
Automatic wiite-ckawn of CoNWersion event may ooour can be expected 1o have
an adverse effect on the market price of CoCos. Colos are often rased below
ineesTmient grade and are oubect to the dsks of high yield seasities. Because
CoCiors, are issued prismanly by finandial institutions, Colos may present
substantialy increased risks a1 tmes of financial unmiil, which could sffect
financial indianaions mane than oompanies in ofer $&00r. and indesnes
Further, the value of an irvestment in CoCos 15 unpredictable and will be
imBuenced by many Eaors and nisks, indudng interest rate fisk, qedi risk,
ket risk Snd liqu d!]- fsk Aninvestment by & Fundin CoCos may resull in
loveees o the Fund

All wransacmons in listed sequnties ae semedpaid for upon celivery using
appdoved aounteparnes. The mgk of dedaultis cony densd rmnimal, &5 delivery
af securites sold i onfy made once a Fend has received payrment. Payment i
rade on 3 puarchase ane e sequntes have been delivered by the
counterparty The trade will fail if either party fads to meet its obligaton

{t} Giher Risks in general, each Fund may be subject 1o sddtionat nisks,
induding but not Emited to, msks related to govemment regulation and
intervention in finandal markets, operafonal risks, risks assodated with
financial, economic and giabal merkes dsnaptions, and cybersequrity risks
Please refer o eadh Fund's offering documents for 3 moee detailed
desqription of the risks of investing in the Fund

Market Dizruptions Risk The Funds are subject toimvestment and
operational risks assodated with finandal, econcemic and other global market
dinpel opumen iy and disrupticns, induding thase amsng froen war, beocise,
market manipulation, govemment interventions, defaalts and shutdowns,
pofitical dhanges or diplomatic developments, public health emergendes
(such & the spread of infectious diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalfemvmonmental disastens, which can dl negatvely impact the securiies
markets, interest rates, auctions, secondary radng. ratings, oedit ik,
infation, defiation and other factors refating to the Fund's imvesiments or the
Manager's operaticers and cause a Fund o lose value. These evenls may hae
adverse hong-term effects on the U S and world economies and markets

genérally. These events can also impair the technology and other operational
systems upon which a Fund's cendice providers, induding PIMCO a3 the
Fumds” investment adviser, rely. and could osherwise disrupt a Fund's senvice
peniders” ability to fulfill their abligations 1o the relevant Fund. For edample,
the spread of an infecions respiratory iiness caused by a novel strain of
coronaanas (known a5 COMID-19) has caused volatiity, severe market
dislocations and liguidity consiraints in many markets and may adversely
affedt a Fund’s mvestments and operations

Govermment Intervention in Financial Markets Fedenal, clase, and other
governmients, ther requlatany agencies, or self-regulatony orjanizalions may
takce actions that affect the regulation of fhe instruments in which 3 Fund
Irovesas, o th idgurs of sisch insirumnents, in wing that ane unfoneseeable
Legpslation of requlaion may Ao change the way in which a Fund itslf is
requlated Such legislation or regulation could limit or predude 2 Fund™
abality 10 achieve its mvestment oljective Furthemorne, volatle finanmial
markets can axpose 3 Fund to greater market and liquidity risk: and poten il
ditficulty in valuing portiolio instruments held by the Fund The value of a
Fund's holdings is also generally subject to the risk of future bocal, nationd, o
global economec disturbances based on urknown weabnesses m the markets
inwhech a Fund invests, In addiion, it & nod certain that the U5 Govemment
will infervens in response bo 2 future marckes disrbance and the effect of any
such future intéeneenticn cannal be predicied 1Eis dffoult for istuers 1©
prepare for the mpact of future finandal downtums, Atheugh comparses can
seel to kdentify and manage fulure uncertainties through risk management
prograns

Regulatory Rish Rnanod enties, swch o5 s iment companies snd
Irovestrment advigers, ane generally subyect 1o extinde govemment rquiation
and intenverition. Government requlation andfr infervenbon may change the
way 3 Fund s regulated, aflect the expenses incured directly by a Fund and
e value of its emeestmints, and limil andior predinde a Fund's ability 1o
actieve it investment cliective. Government regulation may change
trequently and may have significant adverse corsequences. Moredver,
gwemimiEnt regulation msy have umprediclatile and unintended effects

Dperationsd Fisk An irvestment in 3 Fund, like any fund, can imvobe
opsrational risks aning om factons such 85 procedsing errces, human emors,
inadedquate of Laked miternal o exemal procstses, Lalunes m Systents and
technology, changes in personnel and eemors Caused by thind-perty senvice
prcndeiers. The ocourmence of any of these failunes, errors of breades coukd
retwlten A logs of mfomation, regulatony wrutiny, reputational damage of
atfer events, any of which could have 3 marenal adverse effect on 3 Fund
‘While a Fund seeks 10 menrze sudh eenis through controls and cversghl,
Nhoerie ey Still b Sadures that coubd cause Bosses to thie Fund

Cybor Security Risk A5 the use of technology has become more prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become potenti ally more susceptible
1o operational and information sequrity risks resulting from breaches in cyber
secunty. A breadh in cyber security reders 1o bath intentional and
unintentional oyber events that may, among other things, cause a fund to
lose proprietary informasion, suifer data coemuption andfor destnaction or lose
operational capadty, rewltin the wnauthonzed rebaase of other misuge of
confidental informaton, or aihersice dunipt normal business operations
Cybeer sequiity faiiures or breaches may resdt in inandal losses to 3 Fund and
its shareholders. Thess fallures of breaches may also resudi in dsnipgions 1o
braness operasons, potentislly reslung in Snanoa logws; inmerference with
 Fund’s abdity o caloulate its net asset value, progess shareholder
fransactions of oiheranse transad business with shareholders; impediments
10 rading: violations of appicabie privacy 300 ather |aws; requlatony fines;
penaiies, repotationsl damage; resrbursement o ather dompensation oo,
addticnal compliance and cyber seaurity sk management costs and other
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Achrerse consequendes. in addition, substanbal costs may be incumed in onder
Lo prevent any oyber inddents in the future
8. MASTER METTING ARRARGEMERTS

Thie Fands may b Sutziect 10 vanous neting srangements [ Mase
Agréemients ") with select counberparties Master Agreements givemn thie

e of certain transactions, and are intended 1o reduce the counberparty ik

associated with rebevant ransactions by specfying oedit profection
rechanisms and providing standandzation that is intended 10 imgrove legs
certainty, Each type of Master Agreement gosems certain hypes.of
trantactions. Different types of transacions may be fraded out of diferent
begal entities or affiliates of 2 particular orgarezation, resuiting in the need for
epltiple agreements with 4 single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
are spedfic b unique operations of differen] asset types, they allow a fund to
diose out and nek its total exposire to 3 counterparty in e event of a default
with respect 10 all the ransactions govemed under & singe Mather
Agreement with a counterparty, For finandal reporting purposes the
Statemnents of Assets and Liakifities generally present dervative assets and
fiabilities on agress basis, which reflects e full hsks and exposures prior o
negting

Master fugreements can dsp help limit counterpanty risk by spedfying
coflateral posling arangements at pre-aranged exposure levels. Under mst
Master Agreements, collatera is routinely ransfemed if the total net exposwre
bo certain transactions (net of existing collateral already in place) governed
unader the relevant Master Agresment with a counterparty in 3 gowen accdunt
exceeds 3 spedfied treshold, which Bypically ranges from zero to §250.000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agreement. United
States Tregauny Bills and 115, dollar cash are generally the preferred fomns of
coflateral, although other seourities may be used depending on the tems
qutlined in Be spplicable Master Agreement Seqarifies and cash pledged as
collateral are reflected as assats on the Staterments of Assets and Uabdlities &
iffver 3 component of inesiments al value (Seounties) o Depasits with
counterpaty. Cash collateral received is not typically held in 3 seqgregated
account and as such s reflected a5 3 Babiliny on the Statements of Assets and
Liabihities 35 Deposats from oo NEfparty. The marker value I]fdl'rj' SECUNDES
recetved as collateral is not refecled a5 a component of MAY . The Fund's
overall exposure o counterparty risk can change substantially wathin a shoet
period, 35 it affected by each transaction subgect to the relevant Master
ArgeErient

Master Repurchase Agresments and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
(indvichially 3nd collectively ™ Master Repo Agresments ™) Qovem repurdiase,
rewerse repurchase, and sale-buyvbade ransactions between the Funds and
select counterpernes. Master Repo Agreements mantan provsions for,
anmng oithesr ‘-hr-_m. MDA, IR0 Da e, evenls of default, and
mantenance of collateral . The market valee of Tansacions under the Master
Repo Agresment, coll steral predged of recened, and thie fet expodine by
Counterparty as of period end ane dadosed in the Nobes 1o Schedule of
Imredtiments

Master Sequnities Fonwand Transaction Agreerments {"Master Forward
Areements) govem Certan fonward Selling transactions, such a5 TEA
secuniies, delaved-delivery or sale-tuvbadk ransactions by and

between the Funds and select countenpares. The Master Fonwaed
AGFEEMENTS MEiFLen P for, derafel amher things, mitaoon and
confrmation, payment and transfer, events of default, temination, and
rantenance of colatersd The market value of fonward SEmENG rarLEcTions,
coflaneral pledged of receivied, and the net exposure by Counterparty rof
period end are disdiosed in the Moles 10 Schedube of Frvessmenils

Cus bodmer Acoount Agresments and rel ated addenda govem deared
derivalives trantadtions such as fitures, opBons on futures, and deared OTC
denivatives, Such fransactions require pasting of initial margin as determined
bry each relivant deanng agency which is segregated in an acdunt ata
tutures commission merchant (" FCM ) regrtered with the Commaodity
Fubures Trading Commission ("CFTC™) in the United $Mates, counterpanty risk
may be reduced as creditors of an FCM cannot have a daim bo Fund assets in
the segregated account. Portability of exposwre in the event of an FCM
default scenario further reduces risk 1o the Funds. Variation margin, or
changes in market value, are generally exdhanged daily, but may not be
metted between futures and deared OTC desivatives enless the partes have
agreed 1o 3 separate arangement in respect of fund mangning, The market
vaue of acoemulated unrealized appredaton {depredation), inftial margin
posted, and any unseitded variation margn a5 of persod end are disdosed in
the Nodes 1o Schedue of vesiments

ntemational swaps and Dervatives Asspaation, ing Master Agreements and
Credit Support Annesces (708 Master Agreements™) gowvem bil ateral OTC
denvative ransactions entered into by the Funds with select counterparties
ED8 Master Agreements maintan provisions for general obkgations,
regresenlanons, agreements, collateral postng and events of defaultor
termination, Events of termination indude condiions that may entithe
countenparties bo elect to terminate early and cause setdement of all

LTS -‘ﬂ'l'l-j ransactions under the applicabie B0A Masker Agreement Ay
election to terminate eafy could be material to the finandal statements In
lirnited droumstances, the BDA Master Agreement may contain acditiona
prendsions that add counterpanty protecion beyond Coverage aof -.-J-If-lif!gl'.lalh’
expodune if the counterpany hat b deding m orad T quslity beélow & predefined
lewed. These amounts, if any, may be seqregated with a third-party custodian
The market value of OTC finandal dervative instruments, collaterd receved
of pledged, and nel wposine by Counterparty 5 of peiod end ae dsdosed
in thie Nabes io Schedulie of Invesiments

]
=
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Notes to Financial Statements .

8. FEES ARD EXPERSES

wiing fiees payable at the following annual rates (slated as a percentage of the average daily net assats of each Fund, or Class, if
Fees

Funad Mansgement Adwisory Adminsirative Agency Diztribution
PIMCD Bermuds Emerging Markets Band Furd 1l

- 1 LR - &% 0% - -

®  lean LIPY, Hedged) - 1%E% 1% - -
PIMCD Bermucs Glokal Aggregate Ex-Japan Band Fund (M) — 12% 120%" - -
PIMCO Bermuda Inceme Fund A

= F [P

= FLED

L] — = = == -

& JLED} = = = s Y

LA ] - ~ - -

w N

*  NLED) - - - - -

® [N [UG0) - - - - - —

= P yPi) DEES - — - 0%

. - = = = =

- L cr.:_l-l _N _u = =

- O70% - -" - -

L] I E%

. 0EI% - - - =

- X s - - - - —

= T UFY) = = = = =

= T s
PIMCO Bermucla Mortgage Opperiunities Fund

= et UPY Hedged) 455" -~ - - ~

= J [P = = = £ =

= ] [LED)

= 50
PIMCO Bermuda U.5. High Yield Fund I (W) - 035% 020%™ - -
PIMCD Short-Term Merigage Income

= ELR 045%" - - (5% 0aE™

= J [PY, Hedged)

s JFY n4s%M - - 5% oL S

= S0 n4s%'™ - - nE% ape"s
PIMCO Warld High Ircame 070% - - n10%"™ Q%"

@ Fip [l @ Fa TR B ST N S v 0 i e oo Yl P Tho JRErre e a1 cculiresl e sl 1 D% e o g g N 250 o 2 Koy e e, 7 G o s 0 i G 0 i v
ot e dcipes, e P i e g Vo Tt iy e e iy 8 5 0 sl e il A Se TR o M3 (e B rd s B o) el g BT 9. i i N D

¥ AT Sk S A3 S Rora E0K Fod (B 8 LR £ B RSN B0 S v A R £ I et 8 0t ol 0 Bt N0 0 S A i e ST ol et Pk s W e £ 15 i e 0 R i
s ST SR B et o) W e S N dlen ok okl ) Wt i A Ry o ST il
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The management, advisory and administrative fees, if appficable, e pad monthly in amears to PIMCO for peoviding or amandging for the prosision of adwasory,
adminisirative and tird-party services induding audit, arstodid, ustes, portfolio acounting, routing egal, ransfer agent and pringng sendices. The agency and
distribation fees, if applicable, are paid monthlyin amears to reimburse finandd intermedianies that provide sendces and destribution relating to the units of the
appiicable Fund (or (lass thereol, a3 apgiicable). in exchange for thes fee, PIMCO will bear the oosis of certain tind-party serdces requined by the Funds, induding
audit, custodial, trustes, portiolio scoounting, legal, transfer agent and printing sendces. FIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benefit from any price decrease in the
costof swch third-party services, induding degreases reswulSing from an increase in net assets: Inaddition, with respect to Funds that are subject o an adminisTratiee
fee, PIMICO generally makes 3 profit on ssch a fee

As noted in the table abowe, certain Funds and Classes of Funds e not subject to management, advisony, adminisirative, agency or distibution fees. FIMCO fapan
Ltd, FIMCO's affiliate in Japan, is paid a fee from the Japanese invesment Trists o other imestment vehides that investin such Funds of Classes and a portion of
supch fee is then allocated to PIMCO 1o compentate it for IS senices

For the first five years following the launch of each of the B-1 1605 (IFY), B-J 1605 (USDH, B 1604 JPY), B-1 160 (USED, B0 1612 (IFY), and B-J 1612 (USEH Classes
of the PIMCO Beruda indome Fund E, an Asset Based Sales Charge (TABSCT) of 0 76% wall be imposed on the average daily net aset value of each (lass and
payable manthly to the Fes Agent Addiionally, it any units of the B-] 1605 (BFY), B-) 1605 (LED), B} 1605 (FY), B 1609 (LSO, B-1 1612 (IFY), and B-l 1612 QUSL)
Classes of the FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E are redesmed o exchanged for one or more units in anogher fundwithin the ime penods spedfied below, a CEAC will
b impecrsad o the amount of such redemplion at the spplicable Percentage CDSC:

¥ rars Since Inceptien of Bach Cless Pereniage COSE
1 fehading Rrme e snreweary) 200%
2 fent ki Sacird ar denhverkang 240%
3 o kding hind wear annecercany) 1 B0%
& (i hafeig o B e SrenacEang 1. 310%
E o kg 1il8 yeir arnbamang 0 Bl
Thareafies Q00%

¥
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Notes to Financial Statements

With redpect 10 the caloulagon of the COGC, the value of the redermpBon amount will be the then-asrent NAY of the units being repurchased  Furthermone, amy
appficable C0ACE will be dedected from the repurchase proceeds and will be payable to the Fee Agent. For the year ended October 31, 2020, the B-) 1605 (IFY), B
1606 (LEDY, B-1 1609 (1FY), B-) 16499 (U0, B-§ 1612 (IPY), and B-0 1612 (LED) Classes of the PIMCOO Bermads ncome Fund E paid 143,345,805 in ABSC and

VI8, 652,700 in CDAC o the Fée Agent

The Funds (or Classes theread, 5 ApEECADE) My Diear ot expenses related 10 her operalon hat ae not Covered Dy 1he Management, J050ny. Adrimsrate,
acency of distribution fees, induding butnot lirmited 10; §) s and governmental fee; (i) brokerage fees and commizsions and ofer portidio Fansachon expenses;
(i) ecrses of bormowing money, induding interes! expense; v edraordnary eperdes, indudng oosts of Bigation and indermification expenses; and (v any expenses
allocated or allocable o3 specific Class of units. PIMICO has pad the IganEzatonal expenses asocatedwith the aeston of the Trust, except for PIMCO Short-Term
Tl age I

PRACO andor its affiliates initi ally advanced to PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income 3 costs and expenses, induding legal expenses, inturred in connection with the
initial pubdic offering of the EUR, JPY and USD Classes of units of the Fund in Japan {"Offering Eqpenises™). At or near the commenement of ghe Fund's operations, the
Fund will reimbuyrse PEMCO andior it affiliates for the Offering Expenses advanded andwill amortize such Offering Expenizes over the first fiscal year of its operations
Howvever, FIMCE has agreed towalve reimbyrsement of the Offering Expenses 1o the extent tat such expenses excesd 0.05% per annum of the sum of the EUR, IFY
and UED Classes” WAV (the "Offering Expense Limicstion™). sny Ofeing Expendes waived due 10 the Ofeing Exqense Limitation may be reoouped by FIMCO andtor
its affiliates for a pericd ot esceeding five years from the commencement of e Fund's operations; provided, the amount recouped by PIMCO andvor its afiiliates shall
not exceed O 05% per annum of the sum of the EUR, JFY and LSD Classes” MAY. If amy of the EUR, JFY and LS D Classes of units of She Fund ane terminated pricr 1o
the full reimbarserment of J Offering Expenses, FIMCO andior i affiliates shall not ek reimbursement of any temarning untambursed amounts froem that Class
Furthermore, if 2l of the EUR, JFY and USE Classes of units of the Fund are terminated prior to the full reimbursement of all Offering Expenses, PIMCO andfor its
afiliates shall not seek: reimiursement of sy remaining unreimipursed smounts from she Fund. As of Ociober 31, 2020 there were no recoverable Offering Expenses ta
PIRCC andior i1s affisiares

The Trustes and the Manager have appointed Credt Suisse Intemational a5 the agent for the PEVMCO Bermisds Income Fund E for purposes of Bnandng placement fees
£y bee il 8 certain ol iributors. Under 3 fee agent sppainiment agreement entered info amen i the Trusies, te Manager, and Creckt Suisse Imematicnal (e *Fee
Afent Appainmment Agreement ™), Credt Subsse international has been appointed oc ) effect payment of cenain distibutbion fees 1 the lapanese distnbuloes in
aocordance with the Fee Agen Appoinement Agreement and the temms of varicys upfont fee ledters, and () make al caloulations and detesminatioes requined to be
s under the Fee Agent Appolntment Agreement

PIMCO anddor its affiliates will inifially adeance to the FIMCO Bermuds income Fund E legal expenses incurred in connection with exequting the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and associated legal agreements for the B-1 1605 (IPY) and B-1 1605 50 Classes of units of the FIMCO Bermuda ncome Fund E (he ~Fee
Agent Legal Expenses™h Anthe end of these Classes” initial offering periods, the Fund will be required fo: () reimburse to PIMCO andior i15 affiliates the greater of: (3)
¥10 million or (b) 0. 20% of the aggregate amounts imvested in sudh Classes duning their initial offering pericds Gudh amount not 1o exceed the Fee Agent Legal
Experses atvanced), and (i) smortize such Fes Agent Legal Expenses 1o the relevant Class over the first Bscal year of its operations. Al or 3 pontion of e remaining
Fee Agent Legal Experses advanced may be expenied to future B share dasses added w and offered by any senies of the Trust, PIMCO Bermida Trust, FIMCO
Berriwucks Trust 1V, PIMCO Cayrran Trust andioe PIMCO Caymman SPC Limstd within one year from e end of te intial offering pedods of the B=) 1605 (IFY) and B-)
1605 (LED) Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E o such other period of time that he vestment Adviser determines in its dsoretion

In addition, PIMCO andfor its affliates will initially advance to the PEMCO Bermuds Income Fund E legal espenses inumed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appointment Agresmment and sssociated legal agreements for the B-0 1609 (IPY) and 8- 1609 {00 Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermuda ncorme Fund E (akso 3
partof the Fee Agent Legal Expenses), Al the end of the B-J 1609 (IFY) and B-) 1609 {US0) Clases” nital offering periods, the PIMCO Barmuda Income Fund Ewill
be required to: (i) rekmburse to FIMCO andior its affiliates She greater of: (3} ¥10 million or () 0.20% of She aggregate amownts invested in sch Classes during their
inigial effering periods {such amount not to exceed the total of the Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses advanced and the unreimbursed portion of any Fee Agent legal Expenses
previoudy advanced i cormection with the creation of any Bshare diass of any seres of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuds Trusk PIMCO Bermuda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor FIMKCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the inifial offering or such other period of time that the Invesiment Adviser
determines in its descretion], and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses o the refevant Class over the first fiscal vear of its operations, All or & portion of the
remairing Fes Agent Legal Expenses sdvanced may be expensed to future B share dasses added 1 and offered by any series of the Trust, PIMCO Bemmuda Trust,
PERACO Bermpda Trust i, AMCO Cayman Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the mitial offering periods of such
ather period of time that the knestment Adviser determines in its dsaetion

PIRACO andfor ite afiSates will ako inifaily advance to the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E legal expenses incumed in connection with exeduing the Fes Agenat
Appointment Agreement and associated legal agreements for the B-1 1612 (IFY) and B-1 1612 {500 Classes of units of the FIMCO Bermuda income Fund E (ako 3
partof the Fee Agent Legal Expensesy, Atthe end of the B-] 1612 (IFY) and B-J 1612 {USE) Classes” inital offering penods, the PIMCO Bermisda Income Fund Ewill
b geuiined noc () rewnbirse to PIMCO andior i affillates the (Feater of: () ¥I0enillion ¢ ) 0 20% of the QesalE arnmounts imeested in Sech Classes dinng their
initial offering periods (such amount not to exceed the total of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unreimbursed portion of amy Fee Agent Legal Expenses
presicualy advanced in cornection with the ceation of any Bshare dass of any series of the Tnest, PIMCO Berrnipds Trust, PIMCO Bemuds Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor PIMKCO Cayman SPC Limited within cne year from the respective ends of the inital offering of such other pericd of time that the insesiment Adviser
detenmines inits diacretion), and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the refevant Class over the firet fiscal vear of its operations. All or a portion of the
remaining Fee Agent Legal Expenses atvanced may be expensed to future B share dasses added 1o and offered by amy senies of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trust,
FRVICO Bermuda Trust IV, FIRICO Cayman Trust andfor PINICO Caymien SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the inital offering perods of sudh
afer peruod of time Shat te neestment Adviser determines in it decredon. Fof the yedr ended Dotober 30, 2020 there woere o more Fee Agenl Lagal Expentes
remaining
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FIACE Short:Term hoctgage income (e EUR, Y, and USD Chissecy and FIMCO World High inoome pan on-goindg expenses relaned to he public offesing of ther
unals in Japan
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Y W& M2 1) 4583 N Hig i s
! KA Rt & Kk B 1757 K K
Y (RUEG L] [ N L] il ] 105 P &
Y{TRY L] 1Y W& L] x5 1Ha 4 Kda
YilEm L] L 1 13Ny N L1 L] Hit
Cort ol enity rochowand 8% § 055400 Hi L) NE Hig Rl Hi&
F AL 1] M W¥ WA [4T) 12 3591 WA /A
L] [ 28001 s NE e e &
Wi L i e NE LT K K
(] M LL]is)] 14 535 N Wil L1 Hith
K& L e WA 7 18,143} WA K
L] N N Rk (% 2] (52 545) ] i
50 L] 3 L L] N Nk £ (185000
LY (Y i LR} 17 i [T} LT WA A
(R L] N Ha L] | 14 7541 L] Hifa
¥ {RUED 1] N W Ntk 15 {3 500 7] hia
¥ ITRY Ty N W [ {i: 2] 2a1n i L
R L [ (B {52 564} M R L] &
Nt [decresa) reuling from
Fund umit rumiaoiions Am & e QEE ¥ ITRETH N3 & WG e 2 708
iear Erwdea Wi Enid War Endad Woa Endsd
Cctokr 31, 2020 Chchoteor 3, 00 Ouchobisr T, 2000 Dotetsr 31, 2020
s Amoart Lirdes, ML Units Arnss A s Amodan
Pacajrm o i pod K N a1 H 4815 NE Wiy it & @
wr P ] A UTH 1] M5 ¥ 34 171 1LY
Y, Hesdpad 1] NA W Ntk k| B ik i
Y feleior b -} ¥ 4 N L] N Wi ;] Hie
bsurd | e ol
da pbuiiors W N4 H& Wik N ik ] 0
¥ Wk 1} w7 e R M iy ] K&
Cori of e chamand K iR {1 i1 Gk NR LT T8 (| e B
et LIFY] ] N He Rt 21 1580571 4 Hi
rat LIFY, Hedpad L) [ W L) | (K Fel] WA Kea
Y e (i 61] (3380 Ha L7 N L1 R W
Nt [decreuas] mauting rm
Fund wit fursacions 2 Zrma Wx & (ffice] {15 I B & 5 & 2455
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Notes to Financial Statements

¥oar Ended Yoar Endod Yoar Ended Yoor Ended
O tobor 31, 2020 Octostear 31, 20020 ot 1, 0G0 Octotor 31, 2020
Units Amoant Urits Amourt Units Amount Wt Mmoo
4 ¥ BN 1,18 2 NS 189,568 & TEIGE4H [ s
Wik N Wik L] Nt Wik LEd 4 '!5_5!'!
1] 1 Wik 1] N N LTELR ;o
K& [ L WA Nim ik 13 11,080
W N Ha L] N WL i '.I.‘E.
[T} T H& L] Ni& L 1130 811,013
K& L L L] NI Hik LTk LRk ]
KA [ W& L] N Ui 2180 I8
L] T L] L] N WA Bl 368
A [ & K NE Uit e 4780
[ N N& Kk NE& Wik L1 S0EN
R N N KA N HiA it | 175,795
(] A LT L] N& Wik i 5160
L] e W L] N Wi ] 61
K [} H& Heh NE Wik k1] 1508
1] N H& L11] N L1 18 1,608
[} ] ] ] ] 1 L1 Hit
KA [ Ha L] NE ik 1 51,532
L] N e Rk NR LI B3 1547
i e N [ NE Wik 1 [
KA Y Y [ N W 12 TE80
L] M W W4 N L1 e 17845
L] [ s Hih L] Wa el 20,855
ot o i rachimnd |Ba) [LES R AL 11,850 OO M) 250,451} 13,585 fibg) Rk i
FLPY) i N N Ktk NE Y 2195 LELERPE
F G A N Wik itk Ha Nk 41680 (1213
1 PR ki N Hix L] N& LU .67 (141, T4l
1 [ i e L) NE LTI L) [2]ili]]
i N H& L] N Wi, [ 550
i L) H& R Nz Wi 14,1640 L1355
K& M N R4 NE Hik (i) g
L L] N N& 7] N W EEm {7 EREY
L] M Ha L] N& W [208% 2023
L] N Hi L] N Hik v i1 (326170
] i N L 1] i N ik &N 25,547
WS & Ml L WA N Nk (18] 4475
% LPY) iy N H& ] NB Nk s (3503
; L L] e Ha L] N Nk 1,855 (16216
Y LIF KA [T} Wa e NR W {18 38, (56
L] L] K N L] NI WK [ H1.74] (33450
I UPY KA Pl Y L) NE Mk i) -] (373,180
Nt ke Kanent '
nesulting o Furd unit

TEE D (] TS S . i | Tl & (3358 ey & goHuR JET & (FTREIS
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Notes to Financial Statements

aar Ersdasd Yoar Endad Yaar Emded W Endad
O hobar 31, 2020 Dchobeor 3, 00 Chctosbar 3, 2000 Dcter 34, 720
nilis Amoard Lirigs Amourd Linits Amau Wiits Amotard
Rwips for unim sold LE) M'd Ha L) NE LT WA K
o LSl L] ) e L] 1.6H LR <] Rk W
a1 LIPY Hadgad) il L3 N L] M Ny 1% & 0636
27 [T [ Y [ N Wi ] B
I L] N LT R N N ] 533
F N i L W& M N ik Jth Wi
1 113 H ok N Mok fith i
1] N ha () N Mik Ktk WA
li [ H& L] Nz Wi 1 i
nz 15482 W WA NR N& A lids,
(1] A Wa Wk MR Wik L] Wi
L) Ml Y L) [41:3F} L[l WA hida
(1] N 4l ¥ (3 s NB i K i
lis N §L1} T N5 M Ny ] L
i N [t} R [T Wik Itk Wi
1] [ Hl (4D B N L1 L] L7
W [ {174} GRS NE L1 T /5
Wik N g {318 N Wik L] .H.'J.
1] K Mk 11 N Wiy ] (41
K& Mtd W WA Nin Wik 0E (5, 70
i N Ha L] N Wik fam 725
" (™ H& L] N& Hii A Hia
anm 11,555 Hig L) N ik Mt Wt
I, 08 (M. T8 W L] N Nk L] ()
reuling fom Ford unit
el ] e ] ¥ (16566 (1641 ¥ (1533468 143 R LT B i BOEE?
Yaar Ened Yoar Endod Yaar Ended Yoar En e
Ochoboor 21, 2020 Ctob-or 31, A0 ChTosbir F1, 2000) Cigtobsr 31, 2020
Uity Amoar Units Amount Upirs Amount Units Amotsrd
aciprs fior wnim sold LNE 8 BT B8 1 m s 2062 it & 157
lerwd = ey ol
ol ribusiors: ] ] 1] ] 154 LRI 83 L
Coxt of i rechamad (18,840 G754 1188 145,304y {1401} Wanem 208 (1,195
Nt [decress) mouling fom
Fundumit ruractons (M8 & DEZ5ET) o ¢ (5 GH & 03N [ R [ hrs
Yaar Ersed Vs et aar Ended Yoo En e
O bokver 31, 2020 Octobeor 31, 000 Chctodbaar 3, 0G0 Octor 31, 2020
Unilis Amoand Urits. AmoLre Units Aumcnt Units Aot
EAE ] W& hk NE Nk Iid HEY
K L & ] rgic] N W R K
(1] i, ] 18011 Nix W L1 W
K& [ 2 13 NE L FA LY
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Notes to Financial Statements

iar Ervded Wisad Enaid War Endad Vol Endsd
Dciobar 11, 2020 ok 31, X0 Chehishisr T, 200K} Octiober 11, X000
Urits Amoari Lrits. Aok s Arnoirat Wi Amiots
T m i WA 7 15 A L]
(U] T Ha L) 4 i L] L)
(1] 1 1 ] ME N L1 L1 Wi
(] L L] 15 N& Wik Tk Hia
W& M2 H& L) N Hig P E 28
& LG 1 i NE Wi L s
L] [ 17 a7 NE N P &
K L 18 850 NR L1y K Kia
| L] L i | 668 N L1 L] Hit
| a0 LE ' Ha L L] it Rt K
usa L] ) e L] N Mk (15K E.fadn
bswnd m v ol
dhtribastiors [} 2 ] U Rk N N Rk W
b W& N 1 1518 N Nk L] i
i LY | s NER Wiy [ Wi
L] N 5 I NI Wi L] W
KA M Ty .'. 3 143 WA hida
K L H& i -] e Ktk W
li [ i 1] N L1 WA &
i N § 364 [T Wi Itk i
1] N 1 i N W 0] 1
A [ 1] (e ] I3 L1 A A
| (RLIB} 1] N 11 mE N ik L] L
i R [ i 367 N Nk 171 W&
| 10 K& [ Ha WA 3 20 R LY
Comt o ionits el mnd B 4T 52635 N R N i L] LA
EUR L] T Ha L] N& WA ¥ 33
i K [ Ko nrxs N N L] e
i [ 11} [{%-1)] M "W ] Hid
& i (Wil 1,300 NE Hig WA Hia
L] M N L] | 11524} L] W
L] s W L] a4 11,6310 Fe'h &
L] N {iva} [{R]: 5] N Wik L] K
(] N (] 1 AR N Wity 4 i
L L e R NE Yk LH] {428
L] N (s} {35 -] N Hil L] W
L] N ] nries N& Wik Fith LAY
i L [k | AR Na Hik Mt Wik
ki A [ (1,258 N L] W (2]
| L&) (U] T Ha Ll 3] 11 564) L] L)
1Py (1] 1 Ha L1 N Wi (104} (9505
2] [ L N ] N& Wik 73] (34
Mot s Hacroaea}
resuling from Fund unit
T g3y & NO3E Wsll & (SEEE 1T 3335} v ¥ 3633
Sra | B | Cowbaw 31, 30 2]
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Yoar Endod Yaar Ended ‘Woar Endesd
Ohchodor 39, 2030 Dciobsor 3, 20N Chchostonr 3, A0CH) Dotekse 31, 030
ilis Amoard Urits Ampure Units Amaount s Amouant
Amwiprk for wris nold 1 n 3 50 S ] 953 ™8 7m0
feumd m reinvas et o i
dirlrin tor ] 0 i (] i ] ] 0
Lot o e rachemand (-] (1630 (i1 E Bl 4780 1% 95
Nt [dcraass) rating from
Fund writ msnactone (1558 L S F <1 1 HRF [ |t [
Yaar Eriehesd Wiar Enaod Yaar Cred
Dhcbobor 31, XA O inb-or 31, A0 Ohchoshar BN, 0D
Lhriis Amoari it Mmoot Lindts Ameo it
e M e Wik T F I T T
K N 0n & iar Ni& Nik
K [ & 7281 NE N4
CTEE T Ha ik Na ik
7 1181 4 N NE Mk
ik [ 1 e NA Nk
[T [} 107 73 Nis Hik
WA [} Hi Kk fi ]
18 16 LT A N& LT
Ty N L] L1 NE W,
[T [ 1,412 15,007 N HiA
L] BT & L] NR W
[ 5506 HE Wi N Nk
KA m i ) NE Hik
[ M 4 1 006 NA Nk
[T N e i [T 5]
() 13850 & L] NE Wis
(168} 5304 HE Nk (T Nik
555 [23481) his Rk NE M
H [y ] 13NN (T ik
K [ [l {54 ETS i Hik
(1834 144811 Ha itk N WA
e THRER Ha Kt R Yo
K Mk i) BT [T | HiA
YIMRY K& NA (i1 sn NR s
Nt b Kacrsann) ;
reulting from Furd unit
mcon e TR | QEml % (mEsn L [
 Mallr're many (ot 1o Simanly et A et Dyrmcered
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Notes to Financial Statements

11 REGULATORY AMD LITIGATION MATTERS

Sraa | Bgeaay | Dvshear 31, S0
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Schedule of Investments PIMCGO World High Income

FRAOFE
ANCEHT
i
SECURITIES D.0%
SHOAT-TERM ENSTRUMENTS 0.0%

DES Bask Ld

I due 1 AT H 1 @ 1
Total Stwrt-Term Istrumenis i
(Cast k1)

Tetal Imers o sais in S Wil 1
Case £1)

INVESTMENTS Wi AFFILIATES 100 2%

AL FUNDS 100.2%
FIMCO Eermuds Emerging Markeis Bead Fund i)
Cast ££0,800) 458 TLa8
Tetsl Imvestments in AHil e 11381
(Cast $£0,808)
Toul Imastmints 100.2% 4 71882
Cast $50,809)
Othier Axsets and Liakilides, net 0.2%) 14E
Het Bszeis 10008% & _TTRIE

ROTES 10 SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (RMOUNTS 1N THOUSANDS® |

® A pere balsnce may reflect 3ctual amownts reunding te leds than one theusand,

FRIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

The bobpavg & @ dumBiry ol e B vitkia b Sl B e ol wad i of Dexbar 30 TR0 iwvilang B el g6 and kbl

Flr Walue a1
Cabepery and Sub-categary Level 1 Lewal 2 Lival 3 193172020
Imrves imumis i Secunities, sf Walos
St Torm Irgwum ng £ o 3 U | LU 1
Imvenimants im AT filiaoe, ot Viloe
77081 ] { 71O
§ 778E1 @ 1 & 0 & 77882
Theere wvere: o sigrifoant varsfers mio or o0t of Level 3 dorineg S pee ioef endesd Dciober 31 2000
Sed snsmp snyiny nuen Srovan| Rapart. | Dcwbar 39, 000 b )
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Schedule of Investments PIMGO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund M)

L=
NN T WAL
T THHL

IV A S O ear 1,3

Angelis Gowernmant s rmatisnil Basd

FRINCIFA
AMDUNT WBLLE
(0] Ak

BAHRAIN 0.3%
VEREILN EESUES B

Bahrain Gevernment internatisnal Band

& IS due IRTI07000 ¥ m_ s 199
Tetal Bahrain 188
[Cest 202

Repullic of Belares Minksiry of Fimance

B TPR% due ID24T000 00 i
Tetal Belarus i
[Cost £400)

1l E Ui

Star Energy Ges thermal Darajan il

A 50 due M0TETE0E o _ 06
Total Bermua 206
[Cest&200

State uf FI.I Die Jumeing
B 024% chue 12200 00____ 1004

=

Banca ETO Pactual 5.0

SE00% due 115EE0 & m a8 55
B50% due ISTELIN m a1
SI75% de 10TRME tm i
GIS00%, due 11712305 im CHG
Tatsl fngala 1,120
(Cast &1, 208

Argenting Gevernment Interna ienal Bend

BEXES de DR im n
2% due OTTEADIIS 1117 ¥4
B 25% de DBV 1360 1
WN25% e DM PE ] T
1000% due 0 TEREH ] H
Previesis de Esire Riss Asgesting

B 750% due DRG0 (0 150 n
Proviecia de la Risja

G750% de OHUTES Im ]
Total Argenting 1,187
{Cast £1,821)

Armenia Governmem | ntematisna| Bend

5504 de DRRTIY i 1 80
Tatal frm enia 180
(Cast £18E)

CORPORATE BSOS & MOTES 0.1

Sappi Papier Helding GakH

JTH25% de DN STE ] 1m "
Tl Aatria EE]
{Cast 4113

ATERBALIAN 1 7%

Geuthern Das Carrider CISC

EETSY due D3TEE ] 1 0]
Lx -.';..J N |SSUES 0.5

Rapubilic of Aerkaljan internatans] Bond

A 750 due D3 A7 m A
Tatal Azerbaijas imaz2

{Gast £942)

Bah Gowernment | i nal Band

E000% due 1 12120 im X7
Total Bahamas: 262
(Cast £300)

Sea sy ey e

4 5N e TR DS Ho 3

Banci Vetidants S.A

4 LINPY dos (BREEY L1} il -]

BRF 5.4,

5 T50% dus DOTIES0 10 M

Cenmtrais Elwtricas BrasBeiras 5.4

4 E25% dus ETL0GD i Il k)

CENRessiwces 5.0

. E25% dus 4IRS am St

JBE Invesiments Il GmbH

. OO0 e 0011 2026 L] L]

Odebrechi 0il & Das Fisance Lid

.00 due 103072000 L] 1

Patrabres Glsbal Financs BV

% 5% due 1A 92000 6 ol
183

Bruzil Gevermsenl lnisisa tensl Band

2 A75% doe DBOGRIES 0 i)

JHTE% due 06N 20000 il i} a3

406
Total Brazil p L]
[Cazt§2,145)

GTL Trade Finance, Inc.

T 250% due T B2 il i1
Tetal Britih \igin kliad 261
[Cost £200
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Republic of Camerann Inbernativnal Bend

0 S00% due 1EABB05 - LI ] iz
Tatal Cameraen Lrd]
[Cest $421)

=T C
P LY

Garant Obnrsifled Payment Rights Finance Co.

TA dom 10092001 L) 1]

21%anat Orsup, Inc.

TAT5% e 10052007 il 05

Bisceanics Seweraign Certificats Lid.

QG0 due (OS24 it FLE|

C¥ Hulchisen Inberna tienal 13 0 Lid

1370% dee [ROG2048 (M) il i] 216

Graly Awtem sbils Hebdings Led.

4000 che 12002004 1) i Fo

Imteroeanica IV Finance Lid

01 000% due 1EG02025 H) a2 k]

Imteroranica W Finssce Lid

[L300% due DRS00 30 Fei]

Meituan

3050% doe 10362000 il i

Odebrecht Drilling Marke WEUTY Lod.

B.350% due 12015000 123 15

T.250% doe 1201 7G2G k) 15 KLkl

Paru Enhanced Pags-Thraugh Fisance Lid,

(0% dun DSOR02S (W ar i

Gands China Lid

540 don [ROBZ0TE Fill il

Sunec China Heldings Lid.

T-150% due (BA L0002 400 L]

7500 dee 0072004 il i 2
.

Dukal OOF Swuluk Lid.

2 TEI% due (2002000 Fil ] 8

Tatal Coymen Ilands !..S_“II

[Cost 3,001

Barcs Santander Chip

100 due DEADEEZS W 150 151
Carp. Macbaral del Cakre de Chile (i}

3 H50% due DRN D000 o ikl
L ATE dee 1LGEDDE B0 i
Embateiladers Andima 5.4

3 850% dee DLT172050 150 160
Emprisa di lex Feeracarriles del Estads

J6E due 2ABTESD 200 18
Empresa de Tramsparis ds Pasajerss Metrs 54,

400 dee IS0072050 FiL] W
Lutim Rirlindd 2015-1 Pasa-Thraagh Trise

& % des 1EASBET ) W
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) jCant)

FRNCF & FRINCIFAL FRINCFR
AMOUNT WALUE AT WALLE AREINT WL
- - 2t il — B s o L
oW H LI = 045 o OWEREIIM ELol] 4 Husarang Fissncs 2019 Cs. Lid,
Chile Gevernment Internatisnsl Brnd Ecwader Gevermment Intemational Band 1361% e DREARI 8 W0 s
T A50% de 01N P Mmoo W gﬁ: :lu n:&g"_v"';% 111 I.]E $ ég i T
Tatal Chile 2,236 el \ 1471% dos 1EOZEII0 ) 200 o)
ot —_— 0% dse DT (i) 100 &6 o —_—
ALYLE 00.5000% ds TIN5 £ am Tatal Hang Ksng T
ETYETSN 7% i S35 0 gL et
T 0LS00% e 1A 100 50 _
R TR T e B 0.5001% dug G040 (k) e 162 UHGARY 0F%
China Husdan Bverseas Development 2018 L1d. W S QN ESSUES 0
= e——m=d
3373% dx DSTIRRI W m & Total Bouader 1232 Humgary Severnmend Internatinnal Bend
Cantemporary Ruiding Development Lot I 1.750% de DSOS005 (A 400 509
1 E75% de D91 70025 i ] SITE% dee (ITS0024 8 120 138
Sine pec Graug Oversees Develapment 2018 Lid SIEETT . Teul Hongary [
7 50% due 051035 m i SOVEREINN ISSUES 2.4% [Cast 5581}
1.706% due 05137000 m L Egyat Gevemmant Interna tisnal Bend
Zhang &a Online PAE Insuranc Ca, Lid 4TI dun D0 VRS ER g A0l _
1025 doe OTHIB0S 0 15 4 T che 1 B0 S0 53 LORPORATE BONDS & MOTES 0.9
£ 2 d MV B0 00 e Adani Transmission Ltd,
Tetal China — MR e e i 00 I L due O10096 189 i
[ SEE ] 2 LY, .
7 625% cue (52972007 § 408 iz ‘
7 Q0% s DRI m 190 UURLE WM L B
COLOMBIA 1.6% L : — 4 A e (B022023 FiLi] Fiill
LORPORATE BONDS & WOTES 1.1 T4l Emyt R0 Shriram Transperi Finance Cx. Lad.
[ ——T et S2.170] 5§ TI0% due 27022 =0 w4
7375% ce DSAT4I 5] 7 (7T

Calsmbia Dovernment Interaatienal Bend

SALVADOR 0.7%

El Sahvadar Qevernment Internatisnal Band

Exparidmperi Bank o india

1375% de DBAAGTT im A4 T 125% due 012000050 m 150 3 2% che DENS2030 a0 il
Tetal Colembia 1,278 TG54 due DR U] 7 Tatal India 01
ezt #1,138) B 2k chus D4 DR 0] fix] [Cast $898

BL500% cue D7V1 52052 a i1
cosTARCADES R VTR R 573
AETVEREION |  0-8° [Cest §TOE) i

Coasta Fica Goverom and Internatinnal Bend

Imdenisia Asahan Absminium Pirsers PT

$825% dm DA &0l 9 EETNECSN 0% e (552000 L m
Tatal Costa Rica BB b irainim il ! LLPL Cagital Prs Lid.
{Cast $700) Republic of Bhana Interna tisnal Bend B 7% due (2040030 2 )
T X% due G000 00 188
i Palubiubam Inde nrida 1| PT
DOMIBACAN REPUBLIC 4.0% BL1Z5% due D111 2006 0 al LI51% dn PROSDEG 40 136
o ERE JES .65 B 1254 dus RGBT S0 | 2
. - = aeiin B HAFRI Pertamina P PT
Deminican Rrg sl e S v i gtk L et " s
AET5% de DRI 150 153 Tatal Ghing 1,203 2 :
SETS% due [07AUE0RD 1] HT] [Cest$1,275) Petimahaan Gas Negara Thi PT
5550% due D201 1.3m 141 sl B O e o )
EA00% due DETRSME 211} 2 Perusahaas Perserean Persere P Penssabaan Lisiil
BESDN due ON/T045 im 1] COR I L Megara
BETHN de DL im i) Indesirial Seminr Truse B V5% dun G0 /204E ) el
1 500r% e (ISUGEH 1 [ET & 304 e T1AIENED W e 2,003
B750% due DAY 00° BO00 (71 i o = .
10 3758 des B4 4 7 BOVEREIIN I535 i
10 500% dm S00772073 1,600 " Ouatemaly Devarnment Bend #nt bberatual Baad
101 750% due DAN 1028 A3 154 4.007% choe 601000 00 m 4 G5 due DANSEOT0 0 or
108754 dow 1A 1.300 ki 5 0% this DBOG20T ] 5 Parusahaan Panerhi1 SESH indsnesis il
16, 050% e SR4FATT 3,000 57 B 125% de DERIID050 100 B 7 B dee DRS00 o] 286
Total Baminican Republic 3,111 123 LA due DROTRE 0 i
{Cast $2,983) Tetal Guatemaia 1,433 4 A5 doe (2O0V0EE a0 el
[Cest§1,317) .
ECURDOR 1.6% ! Tatal tndanesla 2,808
Lo P s HOTES 0.1 G KONG 8% [Cast 52 ,465)
Prirsamazenas EF it S
4 E25% due 1 TG # n? 7 Huaneng Heag Heng Capital Led
JG0 dus VOCIORNEE I 00 kit
Do winemp o yly wu e Bera | Rageary | Cicwdew 37, 22X [
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) jCant)

Delek & Svner Tamar Band Lid

S007% dm 12052003 § m = )

Lwlatham Band Lid

BA254 e SIS im 1
280

ksrael Qewernmani inbermatianal Bamd

TIT5% dum 01A 5060 m i

Tedal lsrawl 14

(Cese $574)

twary Ceas) Gavernment Internatisnal Bend

5250 dm (NI ] Sm il

Tatal heary Caast 564

iCote $55E)

ATE BHEE & NOTES |

Trans Jamaican Highway Lid

3750% de 101006 H 150 144

SOVEREION 155085 0.1 —]

Jamiles Doveinam enl |nternations] Band

TETSS due 017825 1 .4

Tatil Jemuica i

{Case £3500

Jerdan Devernment Interna tisnal Bemd

5750 doe D027 a1} A

SE50% due OTARI200) im 5

Total Jurdan 813

(Cast FETE)

CORPURATE BOMOS & HOTES 0 3%

KaxMuniylat Masanal Ca. J5C

3754 due 0420500 bt} P

Tenglechevrall Finance Co. bnberna tivmal Lid.

3 I50% dow DENSFEH mm ik
(L

Kazabbstan Oovernment Imematians| Bsnd

TITN doe TUREE B m =4

LETEN dm 1014744 ¢ i F.
523

Total Kazaktstin BEd

Cast H2TH

S35 due DN B m X
Gazprea Mett OAD Wia GPM Capital 5.8
BE00% doe 1 1N i 1

Sea sy ey L

PRI
AMDUNT WRLLE
20 [
Uigel Luzesbeurg A
B PO due 10TCNICE # m_s L)
Tetal Luzembeurg TEB
[Cest GEET)
ALAYSIA DA%
Axlata SOV Bhd
T163% doe 0B/107000 mo 154
Axlata Spvl Labuan Lid.
3 064% due BN G050 o 153
Petanas Capital Lid.
4 S50% due TS0 M ok ]
Total Malaysla BAG
[Ceest £EDM

Civancs 5.4 lbm

40074 due 00V D720 1] o2

Higatecaria Su Casita 5 A de CAL

BN, choe DT L) MAN 3512 -]

Ovkla Advares Carp. SAB & CUL

5 SO e 001 S0E ] ] oy

Patraless Mexicans

& 50 due TZRTR0N 0] j:1 ]

& Tl due 001 DDRLE ] s

6 TS0 due IRTUTMT i 156

G0 dus INI0C2060 Taz L]

. B dus NS00 LET] m

Trusi Flbra Les

¥ BT due 01 5030 1] K|}

B 0% e 000044 1] Fril]
25

Mexice Dswemment Internatisnal Bend

A D0 chon TSNS BuR ] i

5 750 due DS 201E H i i s

585
Total Mexica pked ]
[Eest §3,821)

BNGOLIA 135
e T

Hll!lll.l Gaveress el |etnmatsss) Esnd

5 125% due 129050007 ] ™
5 E25% due ISAANEY 1] 47
B FS0% e BN00I 00 54
Tetal Mangelis EEE]
[Capt &454)

Meracze Daveram et |atesnatio sl Band

4 250r% due 120N L] 210
Tetal Marsscs 210
[Cast&2100
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FEANCE A
NN Nl LE
KX} X1
Namibia Govemm et InternaSanal Band
5 250% due 10382005 ] oo % na
Tatal Namikia 03
[Cost $155
IETHERLMDS 1.7
CORFORATE BONDS & MOTES 1.7%
Hazakhstan Temir Zhaly Finance BV
B §50% dos 070200 400 550
MOGH-GMTH BV
JF50Y% dom (EAT12050 0 i
Matimoest BV
T 750% due DUTATNED il Fics]
T 75 des 104 72008 50 kel
Prasas N
1.530% dee [OG2008 HIR 100 188
Tatal Natserlands 1243
[Cest #1.204)
Nigeria Daverrm ent Interna Genal Band
B 3T% dus D7A22003 # 0 i
G S00% due 1 1EREET 400 k]
T 1% che (220030 oo i
I 625% duoe 1RETES 30 it
B M doe DRA12001 00 oot
Tatal Migeria ol ]
[Cest 52,260
Oman Gwvernment Istematsnal Bsnd
5 A% due DEAT028 30 5
B0 due (01,2029 ml 183
B S00% due: (CUOBR04T £l Lo
B 750% due LA 7204 00 18
Total Omasn 1,028
[Cent §1,138)
FANIST &M 0.3%
Third Pakitan I mte raationsl Setuk Ca. Ltd
5 625 e 1 2O5O002 Fil I 80
Tatal Pk mtan 00
[Cost $154)
Samual de T A
B 000 che 11082048 438 b
Auteridid del Canal de Panasa
4 55 due 70005 ) Fili] o1l
Barce Machinal de Panama
. 500% due (712000 a0 154
1007
Eevsmy b gy | Cicwsdew 39, 220 [+
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

PRNCF & FRINGFAL FRNCEM
ANOONT VALLE SN AL ANDUNT i
[y ) B O s ]
bl ol Eslem Heldings SOC Lrd
Panama Qwwecnmand Internatisnal Bead e e / 5 7% dee DLEBNET § o @ L]
4 500% dee D4MNAEG H im = (2] Ramania Devernment |stematianal Band B 350% due (30 0200E B30 (7]
E.T00% due 0 LDETIE m 2] 1 (00% due 0N &2001 ¥ mn % :‘lgﬁ Grewathpalan Prapar s interna tonal Pry Lid
7B 5 AN due IBOETOGD BR L[] 134 & §77% due (SATN03 M0 %
4 X% dus LT 400 =1 B B
Tetsl Panama 1.781 —— L
[East §1,648) Total Ramania a0 VEREIGN $55LES 1.5 E T
st #7671 Sawih Alrics Gevernment Iniesea tenal Band
4 350 che (R00.2008 40 A
Rl R 5 750% dem DR02040 B0 543
LT ol 5 375% due (BAOQIZZ a0 212
L E25% due 0003 m al SCF Caphia| Designated Aetivity Co. 1,153
4 350% due DUFEEER m i | 5 I05% due DN BOGY ] 400 418 e
5400% dee O3A0TE0 30 il o ALY kot & v ] Taual Suuth Airica L
) e i - [Cast $2.811)
Tatal Puraguay L Ruszia Duvernment Insernatisnad Bend
foust 4638 4758 & DOV08 W s
5 100% de DBZB635 1,000 1218 OVEREIGN ISSUES 0. ]
o SIS - M o 4 300% doe [R50 EuR FLL| 41
ALICORP SHA T 0% dus DU 0K2000 B0 2
BETS% tos DA PN W B 1 700% due TIFG3 1200 13 TeulEnk — L4
[Cest §
Banzs de Credite del Peru — &S00 o

432 [Cas1§3,285) i

{E5 d DM WO____gp TewlResh =7

5 Lunka Gavvermm i mt Intae sl Basd

J5.ALIDN ARABIA 25 %
¥ T

Perw Gevernment |memasansl Band

. 5T due D4R BRQ3 H 20 115
2307% dos O1ZIEICE ¢ am e e B e DOAR0S | 1
3763% s DAV 1 B S BUUBOMIN M L T B AT, B2 due G 00 159
TR de DST0 1 e L 875% dun KCHARC 1 LI 3 7.550% dhe [3ORE030 1,000 541
bttty L e ve S dn (04020 m 718
B350 de DE1207028 III'I] 3 4 T75% due AN BERS I M ] Tatal SriLanka _J_
: At i 500% b 102626 500 g [Bestét2a
Tatsl Prig 1.327 Total Saudl Lrabla 1822
Cast §1.318) [Casi §1,837) ; . DS 0% !
5 [EMEQAL D.B% Urired Ragulilic of Taszinia
mn_ ERGIOM ISSUET 865 | G615 e 08232002 1 Al
Ganegal Dovesmmen |etsmatianal Bend Taia Tomminiy 114
e L ES o ABMan NGB BA W w Eestinng
3 B 250% doe 523 8 i FuLs
A125% te A0 W oms  TowSwen T
- L i . - rm““'] R e CETPE I LI
Suliiben Wariwide Pe Lid, Terkey Gevvrnment bstematiansl Band
4 125% dhe O1AEE | B CTYTTO 0% de BODSH BR 600 B84
1.750% dhe OS/24r000 3m Eu)] T T N BT e 10007005 s M0 181
e Gl 4 BTE% che DARRDE £50 i
L] 3 wrEmenk swtiens
Al 5§ 250% dus D30 G030 0 w2
T450% doe DBZITED im 15 o i
e 008 wmA U G e (SEMT s m
T —_—rl Tetal Beebia 114 BAT5% dus 100 4205 Fili] 156
ol sl - b
o , ; [Cest#113) Tatad Tuek 2,281
Phillpgines Gevarnment Internatisnal Bang 4

150% dn ISBHS a0 76 ok

Tatal Phillppines 1,541 it ettt g UNRANEZEE |
{Cast $1,608 Medce Bell Pos L. SOVEREION ta5UES 28% -

UL 08 o 1 AT S YT Yisgine Gevernment Inteenatisna Bend
OIS 1,1 i e VIF 000 dus O 20ED 50 i
SOVERBION ISSUESTTN. [Cast£187) £ 3% e D1ETRE30 A 400 il
Catar Gewernment imemasanil Bend 7 750% e DR012521 ¢ 1m0 102
3756% due 0490 4 im & ; 7 750% dun D1/2022 10 104
1 000% doe CE1ATR0 4 im m CORPORAT E BHOS & MOTES 3.2% 7.750% chae D123 00_ 0
300 e (UL Al L Angle Cald Ashanii Heldings PLE Tatal Ukraing 2im
Tatal Dtar 1318 2T0% o DOV m NI [Eeses2080
{Cast #1,008
Sou mumy sy ten Sorsa | Fagearn | Dictedew 31, SN0 (5]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

FRNCF &
AMOUNT VAIUE
[ X
'II.I:I ARAR HIH.HE 2%
Al Disaksi Crude 0l Pipedime LLC
A SO0 dm 1OREAAT H im & i
OF Ward PLG

GETEN due (S5O M

:

Abu Diaki Davrism et Incernatisnal Band

10 e (RATEITD ful] 1K)

TH25% dee N BATH) i ]

Dubai Gewernment Internatisnal Bend

J500% de (TR0 im B3
1081

Totsl Usited Argh Emiraiss 1,748

(Gase 1,585

UMITED HINODOM 1 8%

Afren PLE (a)

GETSM due 1 2TRTEH) [0 1] 1

BILZ50 der SUOBT04G I |

Frwiaills PLC

A 30 doe 1STEARD m M

HSEBC Heldings PLC

4 3000% de D3I M fill} )

Hateest Greug PLE

A BO% doe DS1AE0 im a7l

State Bavings Bank of Ukradne \ia S5B M PLC

23T due 03N0EI l 4l

Ukralme Raibways Wa Rall Capltal Markets FLE

E350% due DTN im 0

Ukralme Fasibways Wa Sharsiioe PLC

SETS% doe D151 im A1

Tatsl sited Kingdem 1,367

(Cast B2, 244)

UMITED STATES 34%

Humbabdt Amevicas LLE

TETES due 107053021 ELP 190 3

Geners| Blsotrio Co.

55500 due ORGP ] im Ll

Ris OH Fingres Trest Seibes 2014-3

AT du OTAGAEET 1 13

Ris OF Finares Trest Serles 20181

00N dm QARSI 15 i

Rutss T & T Fimance L1d

Q00 de DT 1 Wi

Swushirs Cappar Carp.

S50 dum 1 TAEHME im {Fil

Valksweagen Gevup al America Fimancs LLC

1 5% due D570 m 201
1,643

Citipraup Mertgage Laan Trest

A B2% doe DRS00 2 2

Sa Eemp i ylay Luen

FRINCF
AMDUNT WRLLE
(=0 [t
Deutsche Alternative-A Securities Beregage Loan Trus
AP due DEV2500T 1) ] ur 2 417
Liminemt Martgage Trast
01 5% due 1237250006 (2] T
Mergan Stanl oy Marbgage Laam Trusd
2 EITM due IB252008 <] 3
L]
Fasnle Mae, TRA
3 500% due 1271/0050 (4 30 3T
Total United Sta tes 222
[Cest £2,407)
IALHIUAY 2.0% :
eguay Gevernment bternatisns| Band
4 TP due 02372000 {[11] il
4 975% dus DUIOT0GS 1] nur
B 1 e (061 6050 ] 36
T 2%, dos 2008 100_ 156
Total Uruguay 1570
[Cest 81,267
I__:.::.-”._.'._-I. |
Pattaless de Wenezuels 5.5 (4
£ TG due DN 20007 £ i} 13
5. 00%  due B4 2 LE0a B2
6 OO e 111572006 k1 1] 12
ar
Wenezemla Gowemment Internatienal Band &)
6 00N, e TRUSTIC0 00 1
T 7ol e DA 3002 L] i
B0 due 10 30 150 14
000G due ISUNEY Ful 1] 18
11550% e DAASET3R 1] 48
7
Total Venezusla 294
[Cest £2,050)
7 B8 0.2%
Tambia Gewernment Internitisnal Bend
BLSO0Y% due D41 02O 1 a8
BT e DC30°20CT il i} a8
Tomal Zambia 174
[Cest £31E)

SHOAT-TERM INSTRUBIENTS 8.1%

Fediral Home Loan Bank
00 DA e 020000 el 1] B0

a7

Aguiralia and News Zealand Banking Graug Ltd
DOV due 112000 B 58
Bank of Neva Scotia

0LOH I e 11ATE7000 CAD 20 Ia
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D0 dee 10E2E02D

an

BMP Paribas Bank

10100 due 1155172000 HIR
0 FI0% che 1082220 ]
Erawvsn Braghirs Harviman & Cs,
10 2704 don 11207200 ¥
1000 dee 11020020 an
Citibank MLA

1 E0% dee 1 LE2BD ]
DES Bank Led,

0L010% dee 1RGARIED

HSBC Bk PLC

10U TB0) due 12072000 1]
JPMargan Chase Bank NA
QL0 des 1 LERE0CD ]
MUFD Bask Ltd.

10L20%) due 118072000 ¥
Rayal Bank af Canada

Q0% des 1002020 CAD

Sumiismes Mitsui Bank ing Corp.

10 700%) don 117200 L]
0273 e 11272 ¥
[0 due 1RORE0Z0 ]
Sumitema Mitsul Tosst Bank Lid,
0 0% e 1107200 BiR
[0 due 1180000 ¥
Q0% dee 10026020 G
L0 dee 1LE2E0RD ¥

00%E% due DLETEN
0 E00% dee 10A00RD
0 EGY% dee DECREDN

Tatal Shert- Term Instus it
[Cest §5,345)

FENCEM

AMDUNT
Fanst

16
m2

L[

M

B30
1E00
1.0

Tatal Investments in Secoritles 106.2%

[Cast $34.541)

Financial Derieative
Instruments i) 0.3%

[Cast or Promiums, ned BB

Disher Astats and Liakilities, net §B.5%)

Het Bssets 100.0%

feval Bagary | Dctoder 30

o

|

143

B
150
1 558

4,798
B35

§ B

238

— L
§ Ir8m
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Schedule of Investments PIMCGO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M} (Cont)

HEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (BMOUNTS I THOW S AND 5%, EXCERT NUMBER OF CONYRE

A zero Balamce may refl ect 2etusl amaunts reunding te less than ons thoweand,
{3} Security Is In defauit.

(b} Parpetual maturity; date shown, If applicable, represents next contractual call date,
{=} Payment n-Kind se<urity.

[d}  Whandsiued security,

(% Coupon represents a yield to maturity.

Markei Valus e

Marien Parcentage of
lesuer Diescription Ceal Wilee Hat Rt
Eoendor Gowérmsi I retonal Bond 8 n ] 15 nosw
Eoendor Goweromern ral n ] D0
o dor Gowsroman | P i3 Ex
Gk Gowms | i T f, H 1682 D%
Total Restricied Securities § _dog § &7E 0.87%

BORBIWINGS AND DTHER FINANCIHNE TRANSACTIONS

Repurchase
Apreement
Celluteral Repurchase Frecinds
Limding Settlam ent Maturity  Pringipal Reiivid, Rgriemints, 1 b
Cauntargarty Ritn Date RAmsum Colla teralized By aE Vabue a1 W abwr Recbind'|
{0 01E0% : it | U5 Tressasny Bond 3 000 cus DET 3 3 i I 2
BOS AR U5 Teeacory Bonck 3 000% cue D81 ST04E 3 3 i
Tatal Repurchase Agreements ] [282) & EBT & E8T
Payubile fsr
Barrawing Maturity Rrverse Rapurchase
Caustadgarty Rage™ Dute Bgreamants
BAC I THI® 3 I
B 0"
L]l 5l
S
G
06 [z
Tetsl Reverse Repurchite Agroements &
Remaining Ceatractual Maturicy of the Agresments
Crawrmigha and Greater Than
Centinugws Upts 30 s 3180 diye 90 iy Tatsl
Arverse Repurchass Agrarments
8 1] [ (311§ 2 ] t [kb(] [
5 1] g I} ]
Morell 5. G overm et Dby 1] (5310 13 1143
Total Revarss Reporchiss Agrisments & o § @365} & |435) § [ A58 §
Tatal Barrewdngs E o L] 986} ] [435) 13 458 §
Payable her Revedee Repunchane Agomm et g
Maturity Princigal Payable bas
Cauniraparty Description Caugen Date unt Preceeds  Ghart Sales
] 35 Tersary Bond: I0E0% (7 504E 1 i E [T LA
Total Shart Sales & [ogp & (282
Sea sinsamp sy nan fevsl gy | Cicwdew 1, 20X ]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCGO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M} (Cont)

The: folowiog m @ summ iy by coms ety of te mart o value of Borrowengs and Qher Feinong Tremsacors and oolatedal pledgedreceved) as of Doiober 31, IR

[i2] Sezurities with am sggregute m ket value of §5 224 have baen pledged ns callaters] under the terms of the fallowing saster sgreemants x5 of Dotober 31,

2020,

Regwrchase

Aqrerment Payakie bor Tatal

Precerds Arnerse Payabie far Brmwwdngs and

inhe Repurchase Sals-Buyhach Payable far  Other Financing Callatwral

Caumiraparty Reciivid Agrerments Transactiing Shart Sales Tromgactions  Pledged'{Receivadh HeiExpesure’™
Goball mts Repuichaie Lgivameni
B 2 =% Doz a : o2 H 2 Fa ]
BAC i} M @ ] 17
L 0 4243 J 0 (L]
k) ] [ ! ] 3
LG 0 LR ; o mn
Miter Secsnibes Forwaard Tismasors Ateesanl
B3 n o a 30 30 1 a7
Tatal Barrewdngs and Other Financing Tr § A7 & B A58 & o & 283

16 wmartied w ol Derebat 312000
e

o T T [T A § TR
Th sl Aempnt ol bt mwerein nyistanding derng T purod ended Dojober 31, 2000 men 55 34058 sowwgitnl oenge el ws nigw of (5600 At bestmaoreqt poryoncholi mb-Saybuck b foig. i Feceria e hisn
gty o Pl far
bwhele 17 ol Btrat

Sk oy atbisd S v i im . el el o b
A AP TRl ST S 1 W T

) FIERCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT 5: EXCHANGE-TRADED OR CENTRALLY CLEARED

BN DT D Wit The 4k bl mny et Hent B WA NAEag Arnments B Ik Nooes 18 Lemncnd SRERvAsE

Urrealied
Exgliathin #al Appreciation) l.hn'lillnﬂﬂln
TEl Menih Cantracis {Oeprociagan Az Liahility
e 14 ] 1) ] 1] 3 (11}
5 Skt i | 1] 0
% Tresusy 5Yee Nose Decm Long B 13 1] 1!
B3 Treapary 10-Yoar Kiobe Decem bes Futures Long 13 15 1] ]
%, Trevary TeYear Bond Decess ber Funmes Leng '] [E7y] 1] ul]
Tetal Fetures Cantracts [] W § b & [L]
Unreabized
Fized Dwal Masarity Fa tiwmal Market Agpreciation Warkatien Margin
IndexiTranzhes Pay| Rate Amani” Walma™ {Depreciation st Liak ity
(AT Bl 25 hele [ 1] H I z 3 ] [} H a H 1
(AL ENk-3 0 Rerfen R ] 1504 i 5 1 1
} (L000M%) 180 1] 5, i] it}
3 ¥ § (7l B 1 & __IB
Unrealized
PayFRecaive Hatlwnal Market HAgpreciatien/ __ Vardatien b
Flmating Rair Fleating Rate Index Fixwd Rate Amsunt Wil [Daprecistisn) Azzi Limhility
ey FHiooth L EHIBOR & 5 15 E 5 g ] § 1]
Py : BOR . ¥a] i 1] kil
Py USCHEDR i 13 1] 1
Flesrer™ 1IFIEDA EUR (30 B 1 1
Bl FB0R (]l 7 ]
Pay 3 il o
Fey i i [ ]
Py FEHOT bradi 1 I 1] 1] |
Sea sineamp iy s Sewoy 1 Fageary | i 31, SYE m

230/438



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Schedule of Investments PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) iCant)

Unrealized

PayRecaive Hatienal Masket Rgprecistion’ Myriatien Margin
Flnaging Rats Flaating Rats Index Amsunt alan Dieprec iaties) Bazet Liability
Fay FEQRDN Irodeex E 16 ¢ [ 3 [ 3 [T i
Py IBMEND WiN 13500 i 3 [ i
Py IBMEND 1300 15 3 ] m
Fmzrve IBMEND 150 20 & 1 o
A IBMEND 13500 ne &} 1 a
Rt IBMEND 118 i (i 0 o
Feeree SOFARATE H 2 I i 0 o
Flacarve SOFRAATE 4 ! 0 0
Ruara SOFRAATE 11 I I} ]
Flacare SOFRAATE 16 1 1 ] 1}

z 51 [ TR & il i I8
Tedal Seap Agreaments [] 5 ¥ Filll B 11 & na

The: followng & o nummary ol the mastervalye and varueon margn of Bechange-Traded or Cenanlly Chamed Finarcedl Dermovove bmumens a5 of Dorober 33, 3020

Coih af §550 hai baen pledged o colluteral For axchinge-tradied and Sentrally cliared finanaisl dafvitive instruments 54 of Oetaber 21, 2020, See Mot
8. Maiter Netting Arrangesinti. in the Notéd to Finanddal Statem snti Br mors information ragarding faiter netling arangemsnti.

Fimarcial Derivative Assets Fina mial D erivative Liabilities
Wariaties Margin Viariatian Margin
Mllar kot Valie Baiwt Mk ot Valus Liakiligy
Furchassd Swap Weittn Swap
Dptisns Futursg Hgr T tal Dptier Futers Agrmmini Teul
Total Exchange Traded ar Comraily Cleared & & & o & 11 & 11 |3 a & [ fa & 21}

W Hoube Funed @ 0 by o peonernat o redl ave oooens 06 O ed endit he Derw of DAGH TRl b Speaeant The fand wil ther b ncen e B e o] pretecteon i aweeat w3l oh (e pelion nmveatt ol D s
el v 1t nefurion d ol by e o evdariyre tetonts cospreng e vl atenred e of fal Do ien B Bt dalatnn? Wbt i Lhat b ol clmb ot s mdpaml 1 1hat pst el e st of ek Bt b tha il v ol 1ha

el o 0 el ST (TR B The el indee

Tha meamimars pot snond amoant et [wsel ¢ oald bt regaired 10 pay 36 @ sabur o credit prosecnen o ra ke 3 @ buyer of ared poaeciion of 3
dor crudit dafah v

R R TS e
il e bbbl o (b ol it
T it cpitnd vk & ocwsied wtrsong aifac ooy dad i i Aoty 7 5wt Triwe T 0] bt i, i 1l Wil 0 einicnll Sttt P Fof) ot et ot o

(i FINANCI AL DERIVAT IVE INSTRUMENT 5: OVER THE COUNTER

o

0 vl o0oEr T el el ok 1 o D TR T T B
ol s gt nd ity bat prali lor o sl airisrtoy ik
4 PR, PR 2 dlrreen ol e rdwwoed endeteag’s oreit

sgrimseh are i indatan o 1he 0w
of P porod apd Inrmming pores walim, mabnahEn Deres whes rom w10 L el el et of 2
i il pwmtd ot B Salfevind wielli 1t Lol ol B Srjiimiaid

“

Saitlemem Cumency ta Cumency ta Wnrealized Appreciatisnid |mtinap

Cauntwrparty b O alivered hie Received Azse Liahdli by

qos g 55 JEE Bglsn g th L] 1]
] 1] 1113 -] 17 1]
(] ¥ bl HIR 0 i
CBK (] i n
CEX PER 17 L] i i
B H 1.7% PEN 1] (&l
CBX N 1512 g n 1]
WM e 130 0 0
Lol 5035 1 i
[oL] i 1500 5| 0
[=L] 10,783 148 n 1]
(=1'] ] = ooP 34 1 1
(oL] noe B ] | 0 0
AM 130 n 0 0
LM BAT 150 0 0
L] Cip 191,500 m H 0
K5 fid e 0 1 [
W ] 127 HIR 1043 1 (0]
i PEN 1,550 4 ] i i
Sou mumy sy ten fon | Pagary | Ccnder 1, 220 "
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Schedule of Investments PIMCGO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M} (Cont)

Santlemam Cureansy 18 Dot insy 18 Wnrsalizdd Appreziatisn (Dag iveis tsa)
Cauntragarty Manth bw O wlhvered e Received Asset Llabiliy
X 11 k| h0E ] rom ¥ e 1) 3 1]
X 5406 1] 1]
i) ] m 18 0
306G 13 ] 0
358 AL 7 : 1]
] # i ) ] Al
o B ] ! U
TRL ] ] 0
AL 13 ]
i ] RIB ] ]
154 137 Fild ¥ ¥ 1} 1}
Tatal Farwvard Fereign Currency Camiracts ¥ 183 ¥ 144
Implied Cradit Unrealized
Fiead Doad  Matwrity Speesd ot Detabir 31, Hasienal Pramiumg  Agpreciasen’_Swap dgresmant, o8 Wilus
Countesgarty Relerence Ensity Py Raes L Amsunt®  Paid[Recstoed] DeprecisSan] Razet Liakility
5 [ e by Giowe i i af i1 00 : W0 - 1] ] ] g o 5 ]
1.3 1 (] 0
are reeer pongd Bend = ] k]
JFW Db Grewermmene irneerbonal Bond ] 1 I 0
§ i7 & om 8 i [1411]
Impliwd Crodit Unrealized
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106 11
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55 6
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8.75 914
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0.00 0
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@
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Statements of Assets and Liahilities [cont]
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Statements of Assets and Liahilities [cont]
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Statements of Operations Con)

TPIMEE) Wrkd
a5 Tipirh — .

Nel Investment (Expensal W]

Net Realized Gain (Lossy:

o, Erm o

Net Change in Unrealized Appreciation (Depreciation]:
s Fraaivs o Affekerte

e1 Changs m Unisalend Appracianos

HarGan

Net Increase in Net Assets Resulting from Operations 3 11466

A D il i Palirg’ Tl | ] e B Ml 10 i TN PR [Nelail]

Sor permp epegarin Pl Rpart. | Do 31, 000 =

292/438



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Statements of Operations Con)
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets|cont)
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets|cont)
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Finanecial Highlights (Cont)

PRCOUE Hgh  PIMCDUS High

PIMCOUS Hgh  MMEOLA High Yld SramgyFued  Yiald Sramgy Fusd

Yiold Strateqy Fund  Yiekd Strosagy Fusd Il

Sbse e Por Uniit Do TP Y UPY, Hadgad) ¥ (ALDY

3 34 08 ¥ sT4n i 56

L1

o

H 5
5 EL RN 5 5
e EEpefESS 10 Bwer age net aak 0%
f AR 10 Bt e Mal ta i i)
Fran iodmes Be sveiag net ateE 0ons

FMCOUS High  PRMCOLLE Hgh
Yind Srwagy fued  Yiddd Swamgy Fund
] [

Selac g Poa Unat Donm fm— ¥ (T

Nat ot wilue bagrnng of yew 3

Hat it Bié

* R ool ooty b o avenape namber of s oS ing cher o e

" Iote! el & e Sonbiaitert S et dvckant Siel ly e Fargl F By S5 chaups) b e FunE R SEAT 1B Y orl

* T o P T TS 0 I ETIT civicteS pae By A g 1Ty, Bl SN Y SR PN T T RESAT vl 00 T TR Fund"T et 1ty o DR U5 Ol AAE BT Qi oo B
SN R 7 B el it e ey o S TRy, 2 e Fov pnses o ohy calulvmon ol Sy g emging A a1 roovere gy ple Segpaneg S g eI e TRITTMY
0 erabeons BT fomeri i e Sh I R T D O O TR e

Sor permp epegarin P Rapert | Do 31, 000 1"

296/438



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Fund descussed in hes report (sach 4 “Fund” and collectnesly, the “Funds™), which dsaindudes eadh dass of units of that Fund (each & "Class™ and oolleamely,
the "Classes™), 15 3 seres tust of FINKO Bermuda Trust Bhe "Trust™), a0 open-ended upit rust established under the laws of Bemnuda &5 3 muls-seies rust
uUrsuant fo 3 rust desd eoscuted by Winchester Global Tnist Campany Limited an December 1, 2003 (3 amended from drme 10 tme, the “Trust Deed™). Bffecine 2
of the dose of butiness (Exstem time) on Seplember 22, 2006, Windhester Global Tnst Company Limited retired and was dischanged a5 tnostes of the Trust and Brown
Brothers Harmiman Trust Company {Cayman Limitedwas appointed & new tustes of the Trust for the owmers of units of e Funds (the "Unitholiders™). Effective a5 of
the dise of bugness (Eastern ime) on September 29, 2007, Brown Brothers Haniman Trust Company (Cayman) Lmited refived and was discharged as tustes of the
Trust and Maples Trustee Sendces (Bermiada) Limited wias appointed a5 new rustee of the Trust A5 usedin fhis repart, all references 1o the “Trustes " shall mean the
person en Gening a3 rushse to the Trost Padfic inaedment banagement Company LLC (TPIMCO™, the "handger™ of the "irestrent Adviser™) 15 the dpantan of
and was responsibile for structuring the Tust

The Trust is swibjed 1o requiation and supendgon as promded for in the Investmant Funds Act 2006 and related rules redating to standand funds

The berms of the Trust Desd confer upon the Trustes, with the consent of Ehe Manager, the power, in the future, o establish further funds in addiSion o the Funds
qumenthyin operation as of te date of this report

The Funds presented in this report are listed below:

Oiffiered onby to funds wath & “Fund of Fusds”™ struchure, as defined in e rulas of te kwestmeant Tiuss
Hssocmton, Jagan, of in any ot juniictica

PIMACT) Barmwda Bank: Lesan Fund A

FIbACT) Bermmadta Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Barmudha Bank Loan Fund C

PIAC0 Bamuda Bank: Loen Fend D

FACT) Barmuds Income Fund 0

FIRACT) Barmructs Incom Fond E

FACD Bamudi Low Dieabion Incoms Fund

PEMACT Emarging Bond Incoma Fund |

PINACT) Emerging Bond Intame Fund I

FIMCT Barmuda Bank Lean hund V)

PRCT) Barmuds Emerging Madets Bond Fend (M)
PIMICT) Bammuds Hobal Aggregate Ex-Japss Bond Fund (W
FihaCT) Bammuda Ineoma Fnd (M)

PIMCO Barmuda LS. High Yiald Fnd (M)

PIMCD Bermuda LS. High Yield Fund 1l (M)

PIACT) Ememing Bond Incoma Fund (M

FIRACT) Bt lm:rgnﬂg bAactars Band Fend 1
PIMED) Bamuda Global Aggragate Ex-Japen [Yan-Hedgad) Bond Fund
PIMCO Barmuda Hobal Aggregate Ex-Japes Bond Fund
PIRACT) Bammuda Income Fund &°

FIMCT) Barmuda Moitgage Oppostunines Fund

PIMCO US High Yeeld [¥en-Hadged) Fund I

P#ACTD LS High Yield Fend

FiMACO 15 High Yield Swareqy Fund

FIMCT LS High Yiokd Swategy Fund B

PIALCD Wixld High Bncome™"

PIRACT) Short-Term Mortgange Incoms

Offerad oaly 8o offur Fusds 1o Sefis a5 an underhang inves imind sabecta for such Funds

Uit eaf 10 Ja painica and otheén imvis irs

Offerad 1o Japenssa and other imwesfors. Units of the EUR, P and USD dazses s offered o netail
imeesiees in Japan by way of public ofienng trough & diseibuter in Japan, and may ba offerad 1o
othar imoesions at th distsobon of tho Manegar. Urnets of 8 ELR_JFY and USD Classes will bo
resscted b only #hosa imvestors who are approvad by the Manager

FIMCT) Emagmng Bond [Yen-Hidped) lncoma Pund
P#ACD Emarging Band Incoma Fand
FEACO LLE High Yield [Yen-Hedgped) Fund
PIMACT LS High Yaeld Fend

Ot ad only b kund of funds by Ja panese imastmen t Busts cogamiad undo the Liw concarmeng
Imeestmeant Trest nd Ireestment Company of Japan | Japanesa bavesimant Tousks” ) whach wall offer
thzir i b3 1o thi publlic i Japan either by way of public offaring o private placament and which are
managed by FIMCD Bapan L or other samrdar ieensed s st Rus?mina gament compens and
subjact to tha rules of tha nvestmen't Trusts Assciation, Japan

* Dy LT (e el & PO R PO sl Roen Fola ) 0 I EAR S Wy SRl O el 3 R e e i e e O T e i LA e e e et Pl A £ Sy £ ARSI S WSS

= (o 2 i Y S By iy Y b ARG rirSegh & Bl B S

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is & summany of significant accounting polices consstntly Tollowed by te Trust in the preparation of its finandal statements in confomiey with
accounting princpes generslly acepted in the United States of Amenica (TS, GAAP™Y Each Fund is treated &5 an invesiment oompany wnded the reporting
requirements of LS. GAAP. The preparation of Snandal statements in accordance with U5, GAAP redquings management to make estimates and ssumpsons that

atfect the reported amounts of assets and liabelities and diedosure of conBngent assets and Babiliies 31 the date of the Sinandgal staterments and the reporied amounts

ol increases and decreates In net atsels from operabons durng the reporting penod Aciual rewlts could ditfer from hode eshmates
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{a} Underlying Famds The Trnustes snd Manager may spply 4 or 3 partion of
the assets of §) PIMCO Bermupda Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCO Bermuda Eank
Loan Fund B, FIMCO Bermipda Bank Loan Fund C and PRWMCO Bermuda Bank:
Loan Fund D i) PIMCO World High income; (i) FMC0 Bermuda Global
Angregate Ex-lapan (Yen-Hedged Bond Fund and PIMCO Benmuds Globad
Aggrégate Bx-lapan Band Fund; {iv) FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A, PIMCO
Bermuda income Fund D and PINCO Bermuda income Fuend E; {v) FIMCO LS
High ied (Yen-Hedged) Fund, PINMCO LS. High Yield Fund, FIMCO LS

High Yield Strateqy Fund, and PIMCO LS, High Yield Strategy Rund B, ()
PIMCO LS. Migh Yietd (Yen-Medged) Fund Il and PIMCO U5, Migh Yield Fund
I dii) PIMCO Emenging Bond (Yen-Hedged) Income Fund, PIMCO Emerging
Bond income Fund, FIMCO Emerging Bond ncome Fund 11, and PIMCO
Ermeiggng Bond coeme Fund 11l (esch refirmed to heten 22 8 "Fund of Funds”
o "Acquiring Fund™, whidh invests in other Funds) 1o the respective aredit of
1) FIMCO Berrmuda Bank Loan Furkd (M), (5) PIMCO Bermuda Emenging
Markets Bond Fund (M); (i) FIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-lapan
Bond Fund (W; (v) PIRACO Bermuda Income Fund M) (v) FIMCO Bermids
L5, High Yeeld Fund (M) ) PIMCO Bermuda LS. High Yield Fund 11 (M)
{vil) PVCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) teadh refesred to herein as an
“Underhang Fund™ o " Acquired Fund™). Ary asdets 50 apphedwill be held in
such Acguired Fund as if received directly. Where assets are 30 applied, the
Acopited Fusnd will recond the istue of units 0 the relivant Acouiring Fund at
the igsue price per unit of swch urits and wall reporchase such units a1 the
repurdhase price per undt of sudh wmis at the Sme of repurchase. Accondingtly,
the 2ilicy of the Acquirng Fumd 1o achisve iis investment objectve will
depend upon the ability of the applicable Acquired Fund 1o achieve its
esimint objectice. Théfe Can Be no Jtaurance that the ifdesiment dbpsdive
of the Acquired Fund wall be adhieed

Ratigs showm in the Arandal Highlights do nod incude expenses of the
Acguired Funds: See Mole 9, Fees and Expenses, for further infomation
regardng fund fees

i} Secuities Transactions and Investment lncome S20uiiles [1a053CU00s
are recorded 35 of the rade date for finandia repceting purposes. Securities
purchased of sld on a when-ssued of delaved-delivery basis may be

setled biyond 4 dandard setdement pediod for the secunty after the Fade
date. Realiped gains and logses from securnities sold are recorded on the
idenmfied cost basis. Dridend incoeme is reconded cn the ex-dadend date,
except Certain dvidends froem foreign seounities where the ex-dividend date
may have passed, which are recorded &5 soon & a Fund is infomed of the
ex-diidend date Interest income, adusted for the accretion of discounts and
amortization of premauns, i recorded on the accrual basis from setdement
date, with the woteption of securities with a forwand Starting eflsctive date,
where interest income ks recorded on the accrual basis from effective date For
convertible secunities, préminme atltnbutable to the comversion feature afé not
amortized, Estimated tax liabsities on centain foreign securities are recorded
on an aoonual basis and sre eeflected 35 components of interest income of net
d*lill'l'?.' A unrealized appredanon (deprecianion) on imestments on the
Statements of Operations, a5 sppeopriate. Tax labilives realized as a resuly of
such security sabes ae refledted 2% 2 component of net realized gain ods) on
mvestments on the Statements of Cperations. Paydown gains and bosses an
martgage-relsled and ather e -backed securities, if any, &e recorded 45
components of infterest income on the Statements of Operaticns.

[rebt obligaions may be placed on non-acawal <tatus and related interest
income may be reduced by ceasing qument accruals and waiting off interest
recenvable when the collecton of all of & portion of interest has become
doubttul based on consisten By applied procedunes. A debl obligation is
remiowed from non-acTual satus when e RGuer resures nteedl PR
or when colectatulity of intesest is probable

{e} Cozhmnd Fervign Curremey The fnandal statements of each Fund are
presented using the cumency of the primary economic ensironment in which it
operates ithe “functionad urency™). The functional Qerendy for the Funds is
the L4 dolfar, except for the FIMCO Bermuda income Fund £, whidh is the
Japaness yen

Fhe market values of foreign securies, aamendy holdings and other assets
and lisbalines are ranslated into eady Fund's functional asrendy based on the
cument exchange rates each butiness day. Purchases and tales of sequnities
and incoeme and expense items denominated in foreign ourendes, if any, are
trandated info eadh Fund’s respecive funchional qumency at the exchange
ratein effect on the ransaction date. The Funds do not separately report the
effects of changes in foresgn exdiange rates from changes in market prces on
securitoes hetd Sudh changes are induded in net realizesd and net changes in
unreadized gain o boss From imestments on the Statements of Operations
The Funds may irvest in forssgn currency denceninated securities and may
engage in foeeign arency ranvsacons either on 3 ot (cash) basis at the
rate prevailing in the currency exchange market al the ime or through a
frrward foreign currency contrad. Redized foreign exchange gains of losses
arising trom sales of spot foregn cumendes, qurmency gains of bosses realized
betereen the rade and setfement dates on secenlies rantachons and he
difierence between the reconded amounts of dvidends, interest, and fareign
wathholding taces and the functional curency equivalent of the armamts
actually received or paid are induded in net reafized gain or loss on foreign
Qumendy ransactions on the Sfatements of Operations. Net unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses arising from changes in foreign exdhange rates on
foreign denomingted assets and liabdites other than investments in seaurities
hield a2 the end of the reporting period e induded in net dhangs in
unredized appredaton o depredation on foresgn asmency assets and
fiabilities on the Staternents of Operations

The Nit Asset Value T HAVT) and total retums of cemain Funds (or Clatses
theredf, a5 applicable) are presentedin the currency for which the HAV is
repoeted (the " NAW currency™) a5 detaled in each Fund's Offering
Memorandum (™ the Crffering Memorandum™). For the purposes of the
presentaton of the NAY and the togal retum in the NAY Qummency. the
begnneng and ending NAVS aré Comverted using the périod beganning and
ending exchange rates, respeciively. and distibutions are comverted using the
exchangs rate st the teme of the distibution Ses the fallowing table for the
WAV qumency and functiondl qumrency of each respedtive Fund:

NAY Functional

PIMCD Bermuda Back Lows Fund M) L5 dollar U5 dalar
FALACO Bermusda Bavl Loan Furd &

=« Fiush IS dellar LS deller

- JUFY) Japarsae yn L5, daflar

= U Japareese yen U5 doflar

LI ] Japarese yen LS. defla

L 1] Laprfesca yon LS. dellar
FPILCT Bermuda Rank Losa Fund B

L] Aumrakon dolee | U5 ddlar

& YRUD Japaresie yen LS deflae

= Y [BAL Japaree yen U3, daflar

= Y[MIN) Japarese yen WS dollar

- ¥ (RLIB} Japaress yen LS. dollar

= Y(TAY Japarests yen LS dellw
PEMCT Bermuds Rack Loss Fued ©

= VICUSE Japarese v U3 dalar
PRRRCT) Bee s Bk Lo Fuied [

- ¥ k) Japarese vin U3 dollar
FARCT) Ber muda Eraviong Maiees Band Furd (M) L5 dollar LS dellar
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NAY Funzhansl NAV Funsticmwl
FundiChss oy Convency FendiCiees: Curroncy Currency
PRRACD Bormecdy Evmr pirg Mk ooz Bond Fund i FERAC Emerigeng Bomad e Fignd [0
= st Japenesa yen U5, doler = JIEUR Japaresse yen LS deller
- e LFY Hudpad) Jspaneia yen LS. dodar - J HEEF) Japarste yen L5, dailar
PIKRCD Bormesda Globiad Aggregatn Ex-Japan [Yeer - = JUEm Japarese yen U5 daflar
Hadgad] Bond Fund A s FIRCD Shoe-Term hlorgags Incoms:
FIMCO Berrmeda (abal Aggregate Ex-Jspon Bond Fund | Japersen yen LS. dollar = MR Eere US deller
FINCD Barmredy Gobal & ggregate EnJapan Bond Fund TR U5, delar LI 1 U3 dollar U3 doflar
111} s Y Japrarsss yen LS dallas
PIRAC B sl bncoemes Fund (M U5 dola US dolar - JUFY, Hedged) Japaree van LS. dalar
[ FIMCO Berrmuda beodme Fund & - Us0 1S doller W3 dollar
= FUPRD Japaress yn L5, dolar PIACONLS Hagh Yiald | Y- Hadaael] Fusnd Japes v LS dallar
= Fsh U5 dollar L5, delw FIMCON S Hagh Yiald { Yen-Hedged) Fund Il Japaresse ymn U5 dollar
s JUFY Japarn yn LS. dollar FIMCON. 5 Hagh Yoald Furd Japarsese yen 1S dallar
= JE Jepaoesayven | LS deler FIMCONL 5 Hisgh Yield Furd i Jsparwcayern | LS dollar
»  LUGEN U35, dollee U, dolder FEMCONLS Hagh Yiehd Smampy Fund
& NuPn Jsparezeyen U3 dedar = JUPY Japee yen 15, dallar
= HEh dipasayen | U del = JUPY, Hedpedh Japwemayen | LS dllae
s PLUM Japanetn yun U5, delu s JJUED WS dollar U3 daflar
= OUFY Jepaness yen UE, doder s YUPY) Japarsns yen U5 dollar
= RUFD Japeneseyen US dedar ®  YUPY, Hedgad) Japirests yen LS dellw
& S0P Japaesa i U5, ddar FIMCT S Hagh Field Srrammgy Fund 1l
= Tur deparesaym | LS. doldee = YWD Japmwaym | L5 ddlae
- UEm U5, dollar L3 dodar - ¥ IRRLE Japaree e WS dellar
= WS U35 dolw U35 dodar ®  fIMEND Japaeme ym 15, dellar
s KUF Japaresa yen U5 deder . YITRYI Japarecs ven U5 dallar
- LA [ ] U5 dolles L5 dalad FIMCD World High lcome S dellar WS dellar
= YUPY Japamess v L5 dalder
- YRIsH Japarecn yen LS, dallar ¥ Th'e /s - P < IR,
L Ml S (6 ke Tl Ol e Mguoidlrtogd alrimg the reporting periog
FIMCD e o | neceme Fond O {d} Multiclass Opeatisns Eah Class of 3 Fund offered Lry the Trust has
o N Wadd Jepermsa yen U doler rights to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of fhe same
| = ¥ W orkd) Japonesa yn WS, dolar Fursd, except for pefic asets and gaing and bosses designaed o 4 Class
PIMCD Bormada Ircomes Fusd E el ating 1o aurvendy hediging operations. income, non-Class spedfic egpentes,
= @) 1685 LY Japaresa e Japaneas yen and non-Class spedfic realized and unreaiized capital gains and losses are
® B 1605 N0 Japarmse yen Jmpanes e alocated to each Clags of units based on the relathve net assets of each (lass
= B 168 UPY) Japanesa yen Japanesn yen of the respective Fund Class spedfic expenses cumenty indude
e B 1S Japanesa yen Japenesa yen ranagement, sdvwsory, admmnistratve and distribution fees, whene applicable
- NR[EIT S s
& g.J é:-.-:.]_. ;1:. jmm,:: j:::::: h:b Distribution Fql'n_cy The: foilowing table shows the ang nmtedir-m_:-en.;-l_-
TAMICD D ks Livee Dhof 500 Pttt Fendl of dsinbumons jor each Fund Disrbutons from -:ar’:.h Furd ey be dedared
W — U5 dollar U5 dolar 3I'*:.| cistbuted I'.il ‘:JHIU:IZI:I*-’S.:H'( upon e dl.-'ﬂ'lffIZﬂI'l"J.F of the Manager,
TINC0 Berrats Mot e T which authonization may be withhetd at the Manager's discretion
s il
= JUED Japanesa yen U35 deler Diciarad e Pod Masity
T} U5 dolla U5 delar PIRADD Bsrrroecds Bk Loam Furd A
FEMCD Bermuda U5 High Yiald Fund (M U5, doller U5 dodar Pl O Bissrrrveds Bk Lo Fured B
FEMACD Bermudy 115 Wegh Yield Fund I §RG Japamess yin US dodar PAMAC Barrrvesd Bk L oo Fund C
PIRACD Emegera) Bosad {'en Hisdged) Frceme Fund dapaness ven U5, el PIMED Bamrveds Bk Loan Furd O
FikA0 Emesgaeg Basd Incomes Fund Japarmese yen LS deler =
[ FRMACD sy Bond s Fund 1 15 dolw 1S dalr WE“ B‘m:wﬂ" fomal
| FAMGCD Emesgen Hoded ke Fund 11 i F i
= JWUD dapaaymn | U5 dolar s JUPH
= JEA) Japamess yen U3, dedw o Jusm
s JEAD Japaran yan U deder . HUBYI
- J A0 Japamesa yven US dolar A W S
= JAWF Japaness yn U3 dedar T
= JERWA Japaeta yen U5, delar . AUPR
- J MK Jepaness yven U5 delsr & ¥ 5
= AuE Japarusza yen U5, delu . YUPW
s TR Jeparmsn e U5 dolar
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Disclared nnd Paid Menthly: [Cant )

- ¥ (S
FIMCD Brrmoda Income Fund O
PAMCO B Morigags Dppermnines Fund
FIMCO Emmging Bond [ YenHedged) lncoms Fund
FAMCO Emadgng Band Inceme Fund
FAMCO Emaging Bend Incema Fusd 11
FAMLCO Ermatging Band Insema Fusd [
FAMEC Shour-Toren Mosgage Incoms: Fussd

- Irs ("
FIMCOL.S High Yeekd (YenHedgad) Fend
FIMEOL S High Yould Fusd
FIMEO U 5 High Yesd Siramgy Furd
FIMCOU 5 High Yaeld Stramsgy Fard |

FIMCD Waild High Inocome
Declared and Paid Quarterdy
FIMCD Bermueda Income Fund A

= OUFA
FAMCD Bt Ireseerns Fusd E iproaded et the dasdand yaeld shal be ne baghe than

5% per arsaim over any one-yeat 1dling penod
Declured and Paid Semiannually:

FIMCD Batrrnda e Fused A
L F UM
«  RUFN

FAMECO Shiorr-Teres Mor igage Incams
« HR
. Py
»  JUPY. Hedge®
LI

The Mantger doss not sapect 1o declere distribstions

Furide {or Clasass thersof, il applicablad, out may, in its
pay digtribotions to the Unitholders ot sny tma.

PARCD Barmmuada Bank Loan Fund M)

FAMCO Bermuda Emengng Markes Bond Fund (W

PAMCO Bairwsda Emanging Markos Bosd Fuad B

PAMECO Barmuda Giobal ggr egam ExoJagen [¥en-Hadged) Bond Fend
FAMLCO Bermuda Glabal Aggregems Ex-Japan Bord Fusd

FAMCO Bermruada Glbal Aggregase ExsJapan Bord Fusd (M)

FIMCO Bermada Inoome Fusd &
- EEn
- TUPY
= L s
. W s
- T LR

PAMCO Bemruda brcoman Fursd (M1

FAMLO Barmioda Lew Dursmon Incoms Fund

FAMCO Bermuda U5, High Yisld Fund )

FIMLO Barmuda LS High Yield Fund Il (M}

FAMLCO Emarging Band Inceme Fusd (M1

FIMCO LS High Yk [ Yen-Hedgad) fand I

FIMCOL.S High Yasld Fusd 1|

® Thes: Gl wee, biuadared dunng te regareng penod

=* Ay deibursoss: wilth respect t Dhass U (U500 Lsits ol the Fund wall be declarad n
mcenedanea with & lener sreement beteesn tha Marags and the swedter in tuch D

Dretriwtions, it any, will generally be made from the relevant Fumd’s (o
(lass’s, if applicable) net imvestment income In addition, the Manager may
authonze the payment of net reglized capital gains avalable for distifution
Addiions| distributions may be dedared as the Manager deems appropriate
Crstrituations paid wath respect 1o any Fund (or Class thereof, if applicable)
il rechaoe thee NAW of sch Fund {of Class thereod, if spplicabie). Ar the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash distributions from & Fund (or Class thereod,
i applicable) may sither be reinveestied in 2ddtconal units of a Fund for Class
thereof, it applicable) or paid to 3 Unithcdder in cash. Cash payments wall be
paidin the KAy aerency of the Fund. Each Fund or Class hereod, if
applicatle) may dedare further distributions if considered necessary in onder
to maintan 3 reasonabie evel of distrbutions for & Fund {or Class thereof, if
applicatie). In the event that there i inadequate net incorme and nel nialized
capital gaing to pay a distribution of a Fund {or Class thereof, it applicable)
required by S Oifering Memorandum, te Manager may pay 2 distribu tion
contising of a porBon of the capital of swch Fund for Class thereof, i
applicatie). Dismibutions not oollecied within sor years Fom their due date
will lagse and will accrue 1o the benefit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereaf,
if applicable)

) News Accounting Pronouncements In Brch 2016, e Finandal
Aciunnng wandsds Board T FASET ) ivsued an Acoounbing Standangs
Upcdate (" ASUT), ASLI 2016-05, which prosides guidance related o the
Ienpact of derivative contract nowations on cemain reationships under
Accaunting Standsnds Codfication Topic TASCT) 815 The ASU s etfective
for anrd periods Begnning after Decembeer 15, 2017, and interim pericds
wathin fiscal years beginning after Decernber 15, 2008 The Funds hawe
adopted the A5L, The implementation of the ASL dbd not have an impact on
ary Fund's finandal staterments

I August 2016, the FASE issued an ASLE ASL 201815, which amends ASC
230 to danfy quidance on the dassficataon of certain cash receipts and cash
peyiTeEnts on the Staement of Cash Rows. The ASL i effective for annual
pericak beginning after December 15, 2008, and intesim periods beginning
after December 15, 2019, The Funds have adopted the ASU The
implementaton of the ASL dd not have an impact on any Fund's financal
statements

In Adquat 2018, the FASE 1ssued an ASLL ASU 2018-13, whach amends ASC
820 to modfy the disdosure requinrements on Tar value measunements. The
ASU s effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019, and
intedim periods within those annual period. The implementation of the ASU
remones of modifies certan dedosure redquirements. At this time,
management has elacted bo early adopt the ASL and the changes are
incorporated in the finandal statements

2 INVESTMENT VALUATION AMND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

() Inwestment Valuation Policies The price of a Fund's units 15 based on
the Fund's MAaV. The NAY of 2 Fund, or each of its Classes, & applicabde, is
determined by dvidng the 1ot value of partiolio imestments and other
assets attributable 1o that Fund or Class, bess amy liabilities, by te total
Figriser of umits ouistan ding of that Fund o Class On each Fund's Bealing
Dy (a5 ddescribed in thie current Offening Memorandum of (e Truse),

Fund units ae oedinarily valued a5 of te dose of requlsr madng on the Mes
fork Stock Exchange ("HYSE Clase™). Information that becomes known 1o
the Funds or their agents after the time a5 of which NAY has been cabulated
o & particular day will nat generaly be used !-\'fl'-:-lr-fb&'.f!'-'éh Bdust the prce
of @ security or the NAY determined earler that day. Each Fund resenves the
right to change the Gme as of which its NAY is caloated i the Fund doses
earts

Fipg ol Baparn | Dot 31, 2015 £ 1]
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For purpeses of caloulating 3 MAY, portiolio secuntied and other attets for
wihich market quobes are readily available e valued at market value, Market
walue i generally determined on the basis of official dosng prices or the last
reported sales prices, or if no sales are reported, based on quotes obtained
from established market mabers or prices fnduding evaluated prices) spplied
By the Fands” appioved pridng senacss, qUatiion feporihg Systems and
gther thind-party sources (together, “Fridng Servces™) The Funds will
norrnally e prcing data for domestic equity Ssearities recenved shartly after
the K¥SE (hose and do not normally take intg acoount tradng, dearances or
sefthements that f3ke place after the NYSE Close, If market valpe pricing is
used, 2 foreign dnon-LI5 ) equity secunty traded on & foreign exchange of on
e Hhan one exchange is typically valued using pricing information from the
exchange considened by e Manader 1o be the pirmsny eahange. A foragn
{mon- 105 ) equity sedrity will be valued a5 of the dose of rading on the
foreign wocange, o te NYSE Clege, if the NYSE Close soours befare the end
of trading on the foreign exchange Domestic and foretgn fuon-LU05. ) fined
income seqsities, non-exchange raded derivatives, and equity options are
nodrnalhyvalued on the bass of quates obtained from brokers and dealers or
Friding Serdces using data reflecting the earlier dosing of the prindpal
sty for thode seaiites. Prices obtimed from Pricaneg Senvided may be
based on, among other things, infarmation provided by market makers o
estimaties of markeq values obtsned from yield data relating 10 invesimenss o
securifies with smilar charadenstics. Certain fieed income semnities
purchased on a del ayed-defivery basis are markesd to market datty until
seftlement at the forwand settlement date. Exchange-iraded options, exospt
equity options, fusres and options on futures, are valued at te sesdement
price determined by the felevant echange. Swap agnesments are vatued o0
the basis of bid quotes gbtained from beokers and dealers o markelbated
prices suppled by Fridng Services or ofher pricing sources. A Fund's
meestments in open-end management invesiment companies, other than
exchange-traded fsnds ("ETFs "), are valized at the NAVS of sudh imvestiments
Open-end management invesiment companies may indude affiliated funds

If & foreign (non-LLS. ) equity sequnty’s value has manenaily changed after e
dose of the wecunty’s primany sothange o prindpal market but before the
NYSE Close, thie sensiby may be vaboed atfair value based on procedunes
establiched and approved by the Manager Foreign faon-L15.) equity
secyriBies that do not rade when the NYSEis open are aiso valued a1 fair
walue With respec to foreign (non-U 5 ) exquity seourities, 3 Fund may
determine the far vaue of imestments based on information prowided by
Pricing Serdoes and other terd-panty vendors, which may recommend faie
walu or adusirments with refenénce Lo ofher seomlies, indices of a4
considering whether f20 vakiation I required and in determining fasr

walues, 3 Fund may, among other things, consader sagnificant events jwhidh
may be considered to indude changes in the value of US seqmities or
securities indices) that oocur after the dose of the relevant market and before
the W¥SE (lose. A Fund may uiilize modeding Sools provided by third-party
wendors 1o determaing fair values of foreign {mon-LLS ) seqanties. For these
parpoies, Ay ravermentin the apglicable refernence mdiec of mslrument
{"zero wrigger ™) between the earlier closa of the applicable foreign market
and the NYSE Close ray be desmed to be a sgnificant meenl, prompting e
application of the pricing model (efectvely resulting in daily fair valeations)
Foreign exchanges may pesmit trading in foreign (ean-L 5 ) equity sequrites
on days when the Trust is not open for business, which may resut in a Fund's
portiglio mmestments being aflected whven Unithakders are unatie to buy o
sl umins

Caefiior Secured Moating rate loans fold whach an active secondary inakel exdis
b 3 refisble degree will be valued at the mean of the last avalable bidfiask
prices. in the market for sudh loans, as provided by a Pridng Semice. Senior
secured floating rate loans for which an active secondary market does not
exist 1o 2 refiable degree will be valued at far value, whith i intended 10

Appraamate market value. In valuing 8 semiof seaured oating rate laan at
fair valpe, the factors considered may indide, but are not limited 1o, the
fodlowing (a) the aeditworttiness of the borower and amy intemed ate
partidpants, b the terme of the loan, {c) recent prices in the market for
sindar Boans, if any, and (d) regent prices in the market for irsnements of
i quality, tate, peniod untl fesd inteest fate fetet sd matsnty

Iviestmients valued in curendes ather than the funcsonal curnency

of 3 Fund are corverted b the fancional currendy wsing exchange rates
obtained from Pricing Services. As a result, the value of sudh imvestments and,
in turn, the HAY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value
of qumrendies in relation o the functionat curency, The valise of imvestments
traded in foreign markets of denominated in ourrendes othier than

the funciional currency may be affected sigrificantly on a day that the Trustis
nak open for buanes, AL 5 resull, 8o the éxnent that a Fund holde ﬁ:ﬂgﬂ
(=10 5) irvestrnents, the value of those vestments may change at imes
when you cannot purdhase, redeem or exchange units and the value of wech
imeestments will be reflected in the Fund's next caloulated NAY

vestmients for which market quotes of market based valuations are nat
readly zailable are vaued 3t fair value a5 detenmined in good faith by

I Munager of persons acting &1 thedr direction. The Mamsger has adapted
frethads for valuing secuntes and other J84ts in arcummstances white
rearkoet quobes ae not reddily available, and has delegated 1o PRMCO the
responsshility for applying the far valuation methcds In the event that market
quates or market based valuations are notreadly avalable, and the securiy
of aset cannod be valued pursuant 1o a Manager appioved valuation

method, the value of the seamity o asset will be determined in good faith by
i Viluation Commities Market quobes sre Considened nol readily rvalable
In cincufrstanoes wihete Bere i a0 abence of cuiient o péliable markit-
based data {e .. rade information, bidfsk information, indicative market
quatasons [ Broker Cuodes ™), Pridng Sendces” prces), indudng whene
exents ooour after the dose of the relevant market, but pior 1o the NYSE
Chose, that matenially affect the waues of the Fund's securiBies or asiets. In
addiion, market quotes are considered not readily available when, due o
('lﬂ'ﬂl.'fd-ll'lﬂ QPCUMSEaNCeEs, Be exchanges of markelrs on whidh the
Secufities rade do not open fof trading fof the enfite diy and no othe
market prices are avalable. The Manager is resporsible for manitoring
significant events that rady materially affect the values of the Fund's tecurities
o Zysats and for determining whether the value of the sppiicabie secuities or
asets should be reevaluated in light of such significant events

Wheri a Fund uses fair valuation to determine the value of 2 poetilio seaurity
of vl asaet Tor porposes of Calautating Bts NAY, such imvestments will not
bee priceed on the basis of quates Tom the primary market inwhich they e
tracded, Duat rathier iy be pnoed by anather method that the Manager of
persons acting ak their drection believe refieds far value. Far valuation may
require subjective determinations about the value of a security. Whils

the Trust's policy is intended 1o resul? in a caladaton of a Fund's MAY that
fairty reflects security values 35 of the dme of pricng, the Trust cannod efsune
that far values determined by the Manager or persons 3cng at teir
direction would accurately refect the price that a Fund could cbtain for a
security If itwere 10 dspos of that security a5 of the time of predng (for
instance. in 2 foroed or dsiressed sale). The prices used by a Fund may differ
from the vaue that would be realized if the sequrnities were sold

b} Fair Valoe Hierarchy U 5 GAAF desnibes fair value as the price that

a Fund would receive 10 5ell an aseet of pay 1o transfer a Rability in a0 ondery
trancaction between market partidpants 3t the measurement date. it
establishes a far value Maerarchy thal pronozes inputs o valuaton methaods
and requires discdodune of the far value feeranchy, separately for eadh major
cateqory of assets and lizblities, that segregates fair vaue measurements into
[eweds (Lewed 1,2, o 3). Thie inputs or methodolody used for valuang securites
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are not pecessanily an indcation of the meks seodiated with imeedting in those
securites Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the far value herardhy ae defined as followes:

» Level 1 —Cuoted prces in active markets or exchanges for identical assets
and lighdlifies

# Level 2—Significant other dbsenvable inputs, which may indwde, but are
ok limmited to, quobsd prces for similar assets of liabakties in markets that ane
active, quoted prices for idensical or urnilar 255e14 o liabilities in markers that
Afe N0l B, inputs ogher than quoted prices that dre coservable for he
assets or Babilities (audh & interest ratés, vield qunees, wolatilities, prepayment
speedk, loss sevenities, cedit risks and default rates) or other market
corrolorated inps

® Level 3—Significant unobservadle inputs Based on the best information
available in the drgumstances, bo e extent observable inputs are not
available, which may indude assumptions made by the Manager or peraons
Achng At thear diechon (hat are wsed in determinmn g the fair valee of
mvesiments

Astels or liabilities categorized &% Lewel 2 or 3 a5 of period end have been
ranstemed between Levels 2 and 3 singe the pricr period due fo changes in
the method wiilized in wauing the imvedtments. Transfers from Level 2 to Level
3 are 3 result of 3 change, in the nommal course of business, from the use of
waludnon methods used by Prdng Sendoes (Level 2310 S use of & broker
quoke of valuation technique which uiilizes significant uncbsenable inputs
chye 60 an absence of arrent of reisble markel-tased data (Lewe 3)

Transfers from Lewel 3 to Level 2 are 3 result of the availababty of curent and
refable market-bated diata provided by Pridng Senvices o other valuation
techniques which utilize significant observable inputs

In accordande with the fequirements of LS. GAAR, the amounts of transhers
i and Guk of Level 3, il manenal, ane disdosed an the Mobes 1o Schedule of
Imvestments for each respective Fund

For fair valwations using significant unobenvable inputs, U5 GAAF requires
o dsdose mansters into and out of Level 3 of the fair valee hierardy and
purchases and issises of Level 3 assets and liabilites during the period
Additionally, U5 GAAF requires quantitative informalion regarding the
significant uncbservable inputs used in the detemmination of bérvaue of
agsets of Babdities cateqonzed & Level 3 m the tair value hierardhy In
accordance with the requirements of U5, GAAF, 3 fair value hierandhy, andif
raterial, details of significant unobservabde inputs, hivve been induded in the
Motes to Schedule of imestments for each respective Fund

e} Valustion Technigues nnd the Frir Value Hierarchy

Lewel 1 and Level 2 trnding wssets and trading linbillities, ot fair value The
waluation rsthods (o "technigues ™) and siqnificantinputs wsed in
determining the fair values of porticlio securifies or other asets and Babilities
cabegorized a5 Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierandhy are a5 follows

Foed income seuriies including comporate, aonvertible and munidpal bonds
and notes, US. govermment agendes, U5, reasury obligations, soversign
isaes, bank loars, convertible prefemed sequriies and mon-LLS, bonds are
norrally valwed on the bags of quates obtained from brokers and dealers o
Fridng Sendces that use broker-dealer quotations, reported Trades o
waludticon esirnates o the nbimal pridng models. The Pricng Semices
intemal madels wsé inputs hat are observable wuch as issuer detals, nteredt
rates, yield qurees, prepayment speeds, qedit risksspreads, defaut rates and
quioted prices for dmilar acets, Securities that use smilar valuation
technigues and inputs a6 desaibed above are Categorized a5 Level 2 of the
far vatue heranchy

Fumed incorne sacumties pundha ved on 3 delaved-delivery Badis or 45 2
repurchase commitment in 3 sale-buybadk ransaction are marked 10 market
daily until setdement at the forward serlement date and are cateqoezed a5
Level 2 of the fair value hierardhy

Mormgage-related and asset-badied seauniies Je usuilly issued & veparate
tranches, of dasses, of securities within each deadl. These seourities are dso
rcarrilly waled by Priandg Senaoes that use broker-dealer quotations,
reported rades of valuation estimates from thesr intemal pridng models. The
pridng models for these seumties wsually consider franchedevel atibutes,
amrent markel data, esBmated cash Sowes and market-based yield spreads for
each tranche, sndEncorporate deat collateral performande, a5 available
Mortgage-rélated and asset-badked seaunmiies that use wmelar valu aion
techmigques and inputs as deumbed sbove are Categorized s Level 2 of the
fair valse hierarchy

Common stodes, ETFS, exchange-traded notes and finandl deriative
instrumente, sudh & fulures contracts, rights and warrants, of oplions an
fuhgres that are raded on 3 national secunties eachange, are stated at the
hast reporbed sale of serfement price on e day of vauaton To the extent
these securites are actively raded and valuation adusiments are not applied,
thity are categorized a3 Leved 1 of the fair value hierardy

Fvestmients valued (denomingted) in oumendes ather than the functonal
crrendy of 3 Fund ane cofeerted 10 the fundional asmency uung exchandge
rates (omrendy spof and forward rates) oblained from Frigng Senvices. As 3
result, thee MAW of a Fund's units may be affected by changes m the value of
curendies in relation 1o the functional cumendy. The value of secunities raded
i foreign markets of denominated in ourendes ather than the unctional
curEndy may be alected significansy on a day that the Trust is notl open for
business. Valuaton acfustmen s may be Fpplied to gertain sequities that ane
Sobly trackd on 4 Boregn exdeange Lo A00ount Tor the markel movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Close Thede securities
are valwed wsing Pridng Senvices that consider the correlaBon of fhe rading
pattems of the foreign secunty to the intraday radngin the U5 markets for
imestmients. Sequmiies puing these valuaSon adustments ane categornized a5
Lewl 2 of thie fair value hieraschy. Prefemed seounities and ather egquises
traded on inadive markets or valued by reference to similar instnaments are
alud categoned a5 Level 2 of the fair valie hier sedhy

Equitydenkoad sequities ané valusd by referencng he L reported sabe o
setffermnent price of the finbed referenced equity an the day of valuation
Foreign exchangs adustments are applhed 1o the last reported price to
comvert the linked EQUIDs radng ousTency 10 thie Conracts setiling Qurrendy
These investments are categorized & Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

kvestments in regrstered open-end vvestment companies (ather than ETFs)
will b2 valued based upon the NAVS of usdh investments and e Ccateqorized
a4 Level 1 of the fair valve hesardhy. investments in unnegstered o -end
imeestment companies will be calodated based wpon the MAVS of sach
Irvestments and ane comsidered Level 1 provided that the NAVS ane
observable, calodated daily and e the value atwhich both purchases and
salies will be condected

Equiry exchange-traded aptions and over the counter financal devative
Instrumien1s, sudh &% forward foreign aurency contracts and oplions conraqs,
dierive Bheir value from underying #sset prices, indces, referénce rates, and
aEher nputs of a combinaton of fese Pactors, These coniracts afe nomnaly
walued on the bats of quotes obdained from 3 quotation reporting system,
established market makers or Priding Senices {pomaly determined 35 of the
Wi 5E Closed. Depending on the product and the terms of the transacion,
finandal dervative instruments can be valued by Fridng Sendces using a
Sefies of pechnigues, inchuding Sirmudabon pridng madels. The pridng modds
use inputs that are obdenved from actively quoted marets wach a4 quoted
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praces, maoer details, indices, bidfek spreads, interest rates, impled
wilatiities, yield aurves, dividends and exchange rates. Rnandal denvative
Enstruments that wse similar valuation techniques and inputs a5 desdgibed
above are categonized 35 Level 2 of the fair value hieranchy

Centrally deared Saags and over te aounber Saags derve ther value fecem
underking asset prices, indsces, reference rates, and otfver inputs of 3
commisination of these facoes. They ane walued 1sing a broker-dealer bid
quitason of on markel-based prices provided by Pricing Services (normally
determined a5 of the NYSE Close) Centrally deared swaps and over the
counter swaps can be valued by Pridng Sendces using a senies of tedhnigues,
including simulation pricng maodets. The pricing modets may use inputs that
are oimenved from atheedy quated markes sudh a5 the overraght index Seap
rate OIS}, Landen Interbank Offiered Rate (TLIBOR™) forwand rate, interest
ranes, yidd curves and credit spreads. These seosities ane categonzed as
Lewed 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Lewel 3tmding azsetz and trading liabilities. at lair value \When o far
waluation method & applied by the Manager that wses significant
uniotriervable mputs, imvesiments wall be priced by 3 method that

the Manager or persons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
are categonzed a5 Level 3 of the fair valse hissaedy. The valuation
Ledhniques and sqnificant inputs wed in determining the fair values of
portfalio assets and kabilites categonzed & Level 3 of the far value hierandy
are a4 foll e

Prowy pricing procedunes set the bade peice of & fooed income sedinty and
subsequently adust the price proportionally to market value changes of a pre-
detemined sequrity deamed to be comparable in duration, generally 3 U5
Triedsury of Soveregn note based on oouniry of Issssnce. The bate price may
be 3 beoker-gealer quote, ransaction price, oF a0 intemal valpe a3 derived by
anahysis of market data. The base price of the security may be reseton a
periodic bats based on the availability of market data and procedures
approved by the Yaluation Committes. Significant dhanges in the
unicbrservable inputs of the prooy priding process (e base price) wogld result
in dirent and proportional dhanges in the fair value of the sequrity. These
SECUriGes ae calegorized &5 Level 3 of the far valus higrardhy

¥ thindkpaty eva b sted vendor praknag is not availabde of not deemed o be
ndicative of fair value, the Manager may elect 1o oblan Broker Oudles
directly froem thie broker-dealer of passed throssh troam a third-party vendod
In the svent that fair value is based upon a single sounced Broker Quaate,
these securities are categorized a5 Level 3 of the faw valye hisrardyy. Broker
Quntes are Sypicaity recervied from established market participants. Alshough
independently received, the banager does not have the tansparency toview
this uckerlyinag inguats which support the market quotation. Significant
chandgés in the Braker Cuabe would hade dired and propartional changes in
thee Taur valwe of the security

Ciscounled cash fow valuation wses an mtema anahysis bated on the
Manager’s mxpectation of fiture income and expenses, capital sructure,
exit mifltiphes of 3 security, and other uncbeenvable inputs which may indude
cantraciual and fachal foan factors, estimated future payments and aedin
rating Sgnificant changes in the unobservable inputs of the modets would
result i direct and proportional changes im the fair value of the seowity
These secufities are categoraed a5 Level 3 of Bhe Tair valise hiesardy

Short-terrn debl nstruments (udh & comimendal paper) kinving 4 remaining
bty of B0 days or less may be valued at amortized cost, wolong & e
amortized oost valwe of sudy short-term debt instuments & approxdmatehy the
same s the fair value of the instrument & determimed withous the use of
amuortized cost valuation, These securities are categorized &5 Level 2 or Level
3 of the 13 value Reranchy dispending on e sounce of the base prce

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

{n} Delayed-Delivery Tranzactions Corlain Funds may purnchase of sell
securities on a delayed-delivery basis. These transactions imolee 3
commitment by a Fund to purchase of sell sequnties for a predetermined poce
o yield, with panyrment and delivery taking place beyond the customany
setflement penod When delayed-delvery ransactions ane outstandng,

a Fund will designate or receive a5 oollateral liquid assets in an amount
sufficient 1o meet the purchase price or respective obligatiors. When
purchaing & sedurity on 4 delayed-delivery basis, a Fund adsurmes the nights
ared rigks of cvmenzhip of the sequnity, induding the msk of price and yield
flecdtuations, and takes sch fluctuations mio acdount when determinmg it
MAY, A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delaved-delivery transaction
after it Is enfered into, which may result in a realized gain or koss. When

a Fund has sdd 8 secunity on 2 delayed-delivery basis, the Fund doss not
partidpate in future gans and losses with respect to the searity

b} Inflation-Indexed Bomds Cerfain Funds may imvest in inflaon-indexed
bonds. Inflation-indexed bonds are fixed income seamities whose pringpal
wahue b5 periodically acusted by the rate of inflation. The interest rate on
these b is generally fioed atiswance a1 a rate kwver than typical bonck
e thee lifie o an inflasor-indeed bond, however, Bntenest will be paid
bated on 3 prinapal vaiue, which is adusted for inflation. Any increase o
decrease in the prindipal amownt of an inflation-indexed bond wall be induded
as nberesk income on the Statements of CperaBons, even though imvestors do
niok rexeive Bheir prindpal unel matunty. Repawment of the orignal bond
prndpa upon matenty (% a0 bed for iriflaticen) is quaranieed in the Cise of
L5 TIPS, For bonds that do nof provide 3 sirelar quarantie, e adusted
prndpal value of the bond repad at marunty may be less than the ongns
pandpal

{e} Loan Participationz, Asignments and Originations Cerlan Funds may
imvest in direct debt instrumenss which are interests in amounts owed o
benders or lending syndecates by coporate, govemmental, of otteer bamowers.
A Fund's investments in loans may be in the form of partidpations in loans or
assdgnments of &l or a portion of leans Tom fird parties of invesiments in of
ongnatons of loans by te Fund. A loan 14 often administered by & bank of
other fnandial instiution (the "lender”) that acts as agent for 3l holders. The
agent adminesters the-termns of the laan, & epedfied in the loan agreement

A Find may et in mrltiple senes or ranches of 3 koan, which may have
waning temns and carry different sssodated fidks. When a Fund purdhases
Ausignments from benders it soquines drect nghts agmnst the bonmtwers of the
bgans. These loans may indude pearticpations in bridge Iogns, which are fnans
takeen i by bamowers bor & shoft period (fypically [eSs than ofe pear)
pending aTangement of more permanent finanding through, for example, the
reauance of bonds, frequenthy high yield bands issoed for the purpose of
amuitiions

The types of loans and related investments in which the Rends may invest
inciude, among ofhers, senice bars, subordnated loans (ndudng second
loeen losamys, B-Rlotes and mezzamne odn ), whole loans, comimenaal real
eslate and other commendal bares and struchied loans. A Fund may
ongrate loans of soquine drectintenesns in loans through primany loan
distributions andfor in private ransactions. in the case of suboedinated loans,
there may be sigreficant indebiedness ranking ahead of the borower’™s
obdgation ta the holder of such a boan, induding in the event of the
biomoines”s insohvency, Mezzanine boars are typecally secured by @ pledigs of
A ecualy iNterest in the morgage boimower B owns the real estate rath
than am interestin 4 momgage

Ineestmients in laans mayindude unfunded loan commitments, which &
contraciud obfigations for fundng. Unfunded boan commitments. may induds
rseolving credi faakties, which may obligate a Fund to wpply addidonal cash
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Lo the barrower on demand. Unfunded loan comimatments. represent a fulune
obligation in full, even though 2 percentage of the committed amount may
niok e utdized by the bomower. When investing in a loan partaapation,

a Fund has the fight to receive payments of princpal, interest and any fees to
wihich it is entited only from the lender selling the loan agreement and ondy
upon receipl of payrnentd by the bender Trom the bodmomer. A Fund may
regeiye 3 commitment fee bated on the undrawn partion of the underhying
[ne of cedit portion of & loan In certain droumdtances, 2 Fund my receive 4
penaley fee upon te prepayment of 3 koan by a bomower. Fees eamed or
paid afe recorded 35 a component of NBerest iNoome of inerest expense,
respecively, on the Staterents of Operations Unifunded bean conmitmens
are refected as a liablity on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

{di Martgage-Relnted and Other Asset-Backed Securities Certain Funck
iy el In mortgage-relited and other siet-backed seamties fat drectly
or indirectly repredent a parapation in, o are secured by and payable from,
boxans on real property. Mortgage-related securiies are created from pocts of
residential or commenda mortgage loams, induding martgage loans made by
savings and |oan institifions, martgage bankers, commercial banks and
others, These stounies provide @ monthly pamnent which consasts of bath
nterest and pringpal interest may be determined by fived or adustabile rates
The rate of prepayments on underbdng morgages will affect the price and
wolatiity of 2 mortgage-related secunty, and may have the effect of
shiorteming or extending the effective duration of the security relatve to what
wias anticipated at the Sme of purchase The timely payment of prindpal and
interest of certan moetgage-related seounities is quaranteed with the full faith
aned oredn of the LS. Govermment, Pocks Teated and quaanieed by mon-
governamental issiers, induding govemment <ponsored corprrations, may be
Supported by warous forrns of insurance o quarantees, but there can be po
Asturance that private insurers of quarantors can meet their obligations under
the insurance polides or guarantee arrangements. Many of the nisks of
imvesting in moregage-related seauities seamed by commerdal mosgage
bnans reflect the effiects of becal and ather economic condiions on real estate
rarkogts, the absliny of tenants 1o make kease payments, and the abaliny of &
property o atract and retain enants. These SecuriBes may be less liquid and
iy exhibin greater price volatiity than other rpes of mongage-relased or
other astet-badoed securities, Other assel-badked secunlies ane ceated fom
many fypes of assets, induding, but not Bmited to, auto laars, accounts
recewvabie, such a5 cedin cand receivables and hospitg acoound receivabies,
home eguity loans, student loans, boat loans, meble home loans,
recreasonal vehide loans, manufachured housing loans, snraft leaes,
corrputer leades and syndicated bank kaans. The Furid may iroesk in any level
of the capital sireciure of an issuer of mortgage-badked or ssset-badced
securites, mduding the equity of ~first rss™ randee

e} Collsteralized Morigage Obligations (" CMOLT) are debit cbliganons of 2
fegdl entity that are cofl ateralized by wihole mortgage loans or private
mantgage bands and dvided into dasses. CMOS ane stnuctured inbo multiple
danses, often referred o as “ranches”, with esch dass bearing a diferent
§13ted matuity and entited to a dfferent schedule for payments of prindpal
Aand interesl, incuding prepayments. CMOH may be b baud and may exdiba
greater price volatility than cher types of mortgage-related or asset-hacked
SECUNBES.

{f} Siripped Morigage-Backed Securities ("5MEL") are derivative muli-
s morgage seaurities. SMBS are usratly structured with bwo classes that
receve different proportions of the interest and prind pal distributicns on a
pod of morigage assets. An SMES will have one dass thatwill receive ali of
the initerest {the intenest-only of " 107 dass), while the afher dass will redisve
Uhix éxnire prancgdl (the princpal-cnly of “FO™ dats). Payments recened for
105 e induded in interest income on the Statements of Operations, Bacause
no princpd will be received at the maturity of an 10, adiustments are made

1o the st of the security on a monthly bass untl rmaturey. Thess
adustments are induded in interest moome on the Statements of Operations
Fayments received for POS are reated as reduclions to the cost and par value
of the sequrnities

(g} Collnteralized Debt Obligntions (" C0007 | indude Colaneralized Bond
Obligations {"CBOs™), Collateralized Loan Obkgations {"CLOs™) and other
simdarky spctured sequnties. CBOS and CLOS ane types of asset-backed
securities. A CBO S a trust which is badeed by 2 diversiied pocd of high risk,
below imvestment grade fixed income secunities. & CLO s 3 tust ypically
coflateralized by a pod of loans, which may indude, among ofhers, domessc
and fareign senior secured loans, senlor unsequred boans, and subordinats
COrporite [oans, indudng loans that may be rated below il'f\'r:'&-';’l'-:ﬂl?’ﬂ"}.' o
equivaient urrated loans. The risks of an Emeesiment in 3 CDO depend largely
on the type of he collateral secunities and the dass of the C0O0 in which

a Fund enwests. In addition b the normal nisks assodaned with foed income
securities dsoussed elsewhers in this report and the Funds’ Offening
Memorandum (= g, prepayment nisk, cedit risk, liquidity ik, market nzk,
stuctural fisk, legal risk and interest rate fisk (which may be exacerbated if
Ihe interest rate payabie on & stnuctured ﬁnan{ingrjun-ys buased on
rrultiphes of changes in inberest rates of imersely o dianges in interes
rates), CBOs, CLOS, and other C0O0% cary additonal moks mdlickndg, but mot
lismited to, (i) the possibdity that dstibutons from collateral sedunities will not
be adequate to make interest or other payments, (i) the quality of the
coflateral may dedine invalue or default, (1) the risk that a Fund may invest
in CBOs, CLOs, or othier C00s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (v)
the: complex smurure of the seowity may not be fully understood at the dme
o invesiment and may produce disputed with te istuer or unegeched

I TmiEnT resuls

{h} Payment In-Kind Secwrities Certain Funds may invest in paymentinkind
securnities CRIKS™). PIKS may give the isaer thie oplicn at ach miterest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor addbonal
debt securithes. Those additional debit sequriies wsually have the same terms,
inciuding mahsrity dates and interest rates, and assodated risks as the
ongnal bonds. The daly market quatations of e ofgina bonds Iy Imche
Lhie socnued interest (refemed o 2% 2 "dirty price™) and require a pio rats
adustment from the unrealized Jppredation o depredation on investments
10 iritefes] recenvable an the Statements of Assete and Liabelities

{i} Restricted Secarities Certain Funds may hold investments that ae
subject to legal or @niractual resirictions on resale These securities may be
sobd privately, bt may be reguired to be registensd of exempted from wch
regustrataon bedone beimg sold bo the public Frivate platerment securibes ae
generaly comsidered 1o be restricted. Disposal of resimicted investments may
et R -CORSUMInG Negolations. snd eaxpended, snd prompt sale at an
acceptatie price may be ditfiault 1o achieve. Restricted imestments held by
the Funds at Gchober 21, 2019, & applicable are disdosed in the Motes fo
Schiedife of Investments

{j} Strmetured Notes Cerfain Funds may imeest in sructured notes and other
riel abed instruments, which are privately negotiated debl obl gasions m which
th princpal s’ or innerst i determined by referenae 1o the performance of
a benchmark asset, markel or interestrase (an "embedded index ™), sudh a3
selected seqwities, an index of seounties of spedfied interest rates, o the
differential performance of wo asses of markets, such s indexes reflecting
bonds. Sruchured Enstruments may be isswesd by corporations, induding
banks, a5 well a5 by governmental agendes. The terms of sudh siructured
Instrumen 14 noinally prowvide hat their pancpal andfor inferest payments are
Lo ke sdjusted upsicards. of dowiwands (but ofdinarily not below 2600) 1o
reflect changes in the embedded ndex while the structured instruments are
oubtandng As aresult the interest andior prindpal payments that may be
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rmade on 4 structured product may vary widely, depending on a warety of
factors, including the volatlity of the embedded indéx and the effect of
changes in the embsdded inder on prindpal andior interest payments

ik} U5, Government Agencies or Government-Spensared Enterprises
Ciertan Funds mdy irmeestin sequnties of U5, Govemment FEN0ES OF
governiment sponsored enterprises. U5 Government searities ane
obligations of and, in eertain cases, guaranteed by, the U S Goverment, its
agences of nsmpmentalives. Some LS, Government sequniies, such a5
Treasuny bits, notes and bonds, and sequrities guaranteed by the Government
Nationg! Mongage Assodaton (GNMA” or “Ginnie Mae™), ane suppored
Iy thee Tull faath and creditof the U S, Government: athers, such a5 thode of
thie Federal Home Loan Barks, are supponed by e night of the issuer 1o
baurony from the U5 Department of the Treatury (the "L 5 Treasuny™): and
others, such a5 those of the Federal National Mortgage Assodiation (TFHMA®
of “Fannie Mae”), ane supported by the disoresionary authority of the U5
Government o purchase the agency's cbligations. U5 Govemment seaunifies
Ty Indude T80 CoUpon Seqanties, wihich ok it clistribute interest on 3
current bads and tend o be subjea 1o 2 greater ndk than interedl-paging
secyries of smilar matntes

Government-refated guarantors § e nof badked by the full faith and aedit of
thie LS. Govermment) ncude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Margage
Corporation {"FHLMC™ or "Fredde Mac™), FNMA s 3 gowernment-sponsoned
Comporation . FNMA purdhases conventona (e, nat insured of guarantesd by
ary gevernment agency) residential morngages from a list of agproved
sellersenicers which indude state and federally chartered savings and loan
assodations, rutual sedngs banks, commerndal banks and credt urions and
martgage bankers. Pass-through sequrities issued by FNMA Fe guarantesd &
by timely paymeent of peincipal and interest by FHMA, but are not backed by
the full faith and creditof the L5 Government FRLMC Fsues Parfidipation
Certificates (" PCs™), which are pass-throwgh securities, each representing an
undvided interest in a pool of residental morgaoes. FHLMC quarantees the
timehy payment of intenest and ulmate oolleciion of prindpal, but PCs are pot
backed by the full faith and credit of the U5 Government

Unider the direction of the Federd Housing Rnance Agendy, FRMA nd
FHEMEC hive entered into a joint iniiative 1o develop 3 common sedunlization
platiorm for the issuance of 3 unifom mortgage-badeed security (the “Single
Seurity initative ") that aligns the dhraracienstics of FNMA and FHEMC
certificates. The Single Security iniSative was implemented on Jume 3, 2019,
and the effects itmay have on the market for morngage-backed sequnines ane
uncertan

Pl Brviingy Stravegies can be uted where 3 Fumd seks b aotend the
expiration or matunty of a position, such & a TBA seamtyon an underiing
agsel, by dorang out the podilion belore squration dnd opening 3 mew
position with respect o subsiantially the same underying asset with alater
expiraBion date. TEA seowities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Staterments of Assets and Liatilites a5 an asset or Bability, respectively

{1} When-lssued Transactions Certain Funds may purchase or sell sequnties
o 3 when-ssued basis. These fransactions are made condidonally because a
SECunty. alfhough sumonded, has not el been isaeed in e

rrankel Transactions i purchase of sell sequities on 3 when-ssued bags
el & comiatment by 4 Fund 10 purchase or il these Seambies Ior 4
predetermined price or yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
the astomany setiement pericd. & Fund may sell when-issued sequnifies
before they are delivered, which may resultin a redfized gain or loss

{m} Bank Obligatons Bank obligations inwhich a Fund may imeest indude
certificates of deposit, barkers’ aoceptances, and fixed time depasits
Certficates of deposit ane negot sble cemificates issued aganst funds
depodited i 4 commendal bank for 3 delinite penad of Bme and eaming a

spedified return. Bankers' acceplances are negotiable dralts or balls of
exchange, nommally draswm by an importer o exporter 1o pay for spedfic
mendhandise, which are "accepted” by 2 bank, meaning, in effect, thal the
benk unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on
raluity. Fixed ime deposits are bank obligatons payabile at a stated
ity date and beanng interess 31 & fooed rane. Fxed Beme depotits my be
wathdrawn on demand by the investor, butl may be ssbject to eatly
wathdrawal penalties which vary dependng upan market condtions and e
remaining matunty of the obfigation

{n} Perlormance-Linked Notes Certain Funds invest in perdormance-Enked
notes that are issued by Credit Suisse Intemational (the "Fee Agent™) and
seek 1o rack the perfoemance of the PIMCO Benmisda Income Fund (M)

(" Performunce-linked Mates ™). In the case of éhe Py Performence-Linked
e issued, the performandce of such notes will be hedged to the Japanese
wen by Credit Suiste intemational wsing a propretary fomula. As explained in
greater detad s Nate 9, the Fee Agentwall finance the payment of placement
fees bo certam |apaness distributors. in onder for the Fee Agent 1o hedge
certain of its exposures under the Fee Agent Appointment Agresmeni (a5
defined in Mote 9), it is expected that from Gme to Bme certain Classes of the
PO Bermuida Income Fund Ewill investin Performance-linked Hotes in an
annount spedfied by thee Fee Agent AL the time of events induding, bt not
limited 1o, @y redemplion of units of the FIMCO Bermuda income Fund E
and & step-diwn of the applicable Peroentage Contngent Defemed Sales
Charge ("COACT), 25 defined in Mote 9, the Periomnance- Linked Nates held
by the Fund will be partially redeemed accordingly in erder bo maintain the
takal value of Performance-Lnked MNotes m the Fund’s imesment peetlolio
equal 1o of bedow the amaount of the CORC applicabla to the respective
Charsses of e Fund plus 0.20% multiplied by @e NAY of the resphiing
(lasses of the Fund, Performance-Linked Motes are valued daily. Their value is
bated on the pro day NAY of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund (M) With
respect b e valwe of the JFY Performance-Linked Mates, 3 proprietary
hedging foemla is 50 applied The Fund cannot ranster the Perfoemance-
Linked Nates 1o any atfier party a%de nom the Fee Agent wathowt te por
wiitten soreement of the Fee Agent

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The foliowing disdosures contain information on the Funds' ability to lend or
bcurowy cash or secwities bo the extent permitted under the Offering
Kemorandum, whidy may be viewed a5 barosing or Snanding tansaction;
Bry the Funds. The bocabon of these insruments |5 desribed below. For 4
detailed detaiption of cedt and oounterparty ks i3t can be assodated
wath bomownngs and ather inanandg ransactons, please see Mole 7,
Prindpal Risks

{a} Repurchase Agreements (ertan Funde may engage in repurchase
agreements, Under the terms of 2 ypical repunchase agreement,

& Furd punchases an underhying debit obiigation (collateral) sulyed 0 an
obigation of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund toresell, the obligation at
An agried-u pon price and time. I an open matunity repundhate agreement,
there is no pre-determined repunchase date and the agresment can be
terrrinatied by the Furd o counberparty oL amy Bme. The market value of dhe
coflateral must be equal to o énceed the totd amount of te repurchass
oblgations, induckng interest, Regurchase agreements, induding acorued
interest, are mduded on the Statements of Assets and Liabllities interest
eamed s recorded 35 3 component of interest income on the Statements of
Operations. In perods of inceased demand for collateral, 2 Fund may pay
Tee fior receipt of collateral, which may resul in intere4t expente 10 the Fund

b} Reverze Repurchaze Agresments Cortain Funds may enter inlo reverse
repurch ase agreements. In a reverss repurchase agreemend; a Fund delivers a
security in exchange for Gash 1o a finandal insSation, the counterparty, with
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A sirrpltanecus agnesrmen [ 10 repurchase the dame of wietantially the same
SeCurify at an agreed upon price and date. In an open mahurity reverse
repurdhase agesment, there is no pre-getenmined repunchase date and the
agreement can be terminated by the Fund or counterparty at any ime

A Fund is entiled o receive prindipal and interest payments, if any, mads on
Uhir Secunty delivered 1o the couniparty dunng te term of the agfeement
Cash received in exchange for sequnities delivered plus accrued interest
paytrents to be made by & Fund b counberpamied ane refacted a5 3 liabdity
on the Statements of Assets and Lisbdities, interest payments made by a Fund
b0 counterparfies are recorded 35 a component of interest expense on the
Sratesments of Operations. In peericedts o invreased demand fof the SEury,

a Fund may receive a fee foruse of the sequrity by the counterparty, which
ey PR in nTEfesL income b & Fuld A Fuhd will Sedgregane asen
determined to be bquid by FIMCO o will otherwise oover its obliga Gons
umder reverte repunthase sgreimenty

{c} Sale-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter into finandng fransadtions
referred 1o a5 "sale-buybades” A sale-buyback finandng transadtion conssts
of & sale of & secunity by a Find to 2 finandal institution, the courterparty,
With @ simustanenss agreement 10 repurdchase the same o st bally the
sarne secunty al an agreed-upon price and date. A Fund is not entitfed 16
recene pnndpal and nRerEst payTents, f any, made on the teaunty sod to
the countemparty duing the tam of the agreement. The agreed-upon
proceeds for secuifies to be repurchased by 2 Fund are refleded a5 a liability
on the Statements of Astets and Lisbdities A Fund will recogrize nel indome
represented by the price differential between the price recebed for the
transtenmed seufity and the agreed-upon repurchase pnoe This is commondy
referned 1o a5 the "price drop’. A prece drop consies of (1) the Toregone interest
and infl ationary income adusiments, if any, a Fund would have otensise
received had the security not been sold and (=) the negatiated finandng tenms
between 3 Fund and counterparty. Foregone interest and inflationary income
adustments, if amy, are recorded as components of interest income on the
Statemnents of Operations. Interest payments Based upon negodiated finzngng
LS made by a Fund 1o counterparties are reconded as 4 component of
ntenest expente on the Statements of Operations. in periods of increated
dernand for the security, a Fund may receive 3 fee for use of te security by
the copniemparty, which may result in interest income (o a Fund A Rend will
segregate assets determined to be Bouid by PIMCO or will otherwize coverits
obdigations under sale-buybad: ransacions

{di Shert Sales Certan Funds Fragy eniler inkg -short sales transacticns. Shon
sales are ransacuons i which the Fund 4ells & seauriny that it may not own

A Fund may make shoen sales of sequrities 1o () offser potential dedines in
bong positans in drmkar securites, i) b ingreade the feability of the Rund,
(i) for inwestment retum, (W) a5 pant of a risk arbitrage strateqy. and (V) 25
part of its overall portfola management sirategies invahang the use of
derivative instruments. ‘When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the sequrity sold short and deliver it 10 the conteparty. The Fund will
ondnanty hae 1o pary 2 fee of premiam 1o bomow 3 seosity and be obligabed
1o repay the lender of the seqarity any dividend or interest that soTues on the
Seuiffy dufing The period of the loan. Secuntes sold in thort sale Tramactions
and the dividend or interest payable on such seclies, it amy, are reflected a5
payakie for shoet sales on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. Short sales
expose the Fund to the nsk that itwil be required 80 cover its short position
ata time when the seouity of other Zse1 has appredated in value, Hus
resulting in losses o the Fumd & short sale is “agsnar the bax" if

the Fund haids inits portfolio o has the Aight Lo aoquire the sequrity sold
shiort, of Securited idencal 1o the securily 40ld shoft, alno addbional cost

A Fund will be swbject to addtional risks to the extent that it engages in short
salies that are not "against the bax™. & Fand's loss on a short sale could
theoretically be unlimited in cases where the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, fo dose out its shor position

(o} Lime of Credit PIMCO Bermuds Bank Loan Fund (M) entered into a 364
diay senior unsequred revolving aedit agreement with the Bark of Toloyo-
Mitsubishi LEL, Ltd. ("MUFG) and other commerdial banks 10 be utized for
tempsarary punparses tofund Unitholder redemptions o for other short-term
[quidicy purposes. MUFG serves a5 both abank and a5 an agent for other
Bariks thal are partsss 1o the agréement. PIMCO Bermuds Bank Loan Fund
(M) pays finandng charges based on a combin ation of LIBOR-based variable
plue acredit speead Thee Fund 840 pays a fee of 0.275% per annurm an the
unwged commitment amounts, The agreement expires on Augest 21, 2020
unless extended of repewed There i 3 maxdmum availabbe commitment
amount for PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) equal 1o §75.000.000. Pror
1o Agust 23, 2019, the maxdmum avalatle commi tment amount for the
Fursd was $99,000,000. Commitiment, upiront and intenest fees of §348,290
paid by PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) are indiuded in interest expense
I the Starermens of Operaton

[hring the pericd, there were no bomowings on this line of aedt

& FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thie fedbowiing chsdodunes contan insammabon on how and win the Funds us
finandal derivative instruments and how Enancdal denvative instruments
aflect the Fundk” fnandal position, results of aperations and cash flows. The
location and fair value amounts of these instruments on the Statements of
Assets and Liabilites and the net realized gain (ass) and ret changs in
unredized appredation {depredation) on the Statements of Operations, each
categonzed by tvpe of finandal devative contract and related sk exposure,
ari induded i A table n e Motes 1© Schédle of Ieekstrments. The fnandsl
derivative instruments outstanding as of peiod end and the amounts of net
realized gan fods) and net change in unnealized appredation (depred ation)
on finandal derivative instruments during the period, as disdosed in the
Hites b0 Schedule of Investments, serve 2 indicators of the vilums of
finandcial derivative actvity fior the Funds

{m} Ferwmsd Fersign Corrency Comtracts Ceflan Fundcs may engage in
freward forelgn curency confracts in connecion with settling planned
plrchases or sales of securities, to hedge the cuency expasure assocaned
wath some or 3l of 3 Funds secunties of ac part of an investment sirategy A
forward foreign qumency conirad is an agreement befween two parties 10 buy
and sail 3 ammendy at 3 st price on a future date. The market value of 2
forward forelgn currency coniract fluciuates with dhanges in foreign aumency
exdhange ranes. Forwand fﬂfﬂ‘gﬂ QUETENCY CONTTACTS are marked o mankel
daily, and the change in value 15 recorded by 4 Fund &5 an unreatived gain of
loss. Reabped gans of losees sne equal 1o the diflerence betwesn the valie of
the conitract at the e it was opened and the value af the time it was dosed
and are recorded upon deliveny of receipt of the cumency. These onracts
may imedive market nisk inexcese of the unrealized gain or loss reflected an
the Statements of Assets and Liabiites. in addition, a Fund could be exposed
o Fisk: if the countemparties are unable 1o meet e tenms of the coanraos o if
th valse of the durrency changss unisvorably 10 the luncBonal currency. To
rutigate such nik, Csh of secsities may be exchanged a5 oollateral purssam
1o the terrres of the undedying contracts

Certain Funds having a hedged Class may dso enter into forwand foresgn
clmengy contracts designed to offsed the effect of hedging at the Fund kevel in
ofder toleave the hedged Class with & exposire (o mendes other than the
functional querengy. There can be no guarantes that these Class spedific
forwand foreign oumency contrads will be sucoessiul

{b} Futures Comtracis Certain Funds meay enter into fulures confrads. A
Tulunes contract 15 an agreemint 10 buy of il 2 waity of ather dmelfor 3
58t price on A fubure date and % traded on an exchange. A Fund may ise
futyres contracts (o manage its exposure 5o the sequifies markets of 1o
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rcnemen B ininterest rates and cumency values The primary risks asodated
with the use of futures contracts are the imperfect cofrefation between he
change in market value of e securities feld by a Fund and the prices of
futures conbracts and e possibility of an iliquid mardet Futures contracts
are valyed based upon ther quoted chaily setiement pdes. Lipon enterng
it & futufes contract, 4 Fund is fequired to depasit with ats futures bioke &0
amaunt of cash, U5 Government and Agency Obligations, or select sowersign
debit, in accandance with the intial margin requirsmments of the broker of
exchange. Futures gontracts are marked 10 market daly and based on such
movements in the price of the conracts, an appropeizte payabie or receivable
for thie change i value may be posted or collected by the Fund ("Futures
‘ariation Margin®). Futures Vanation Marging, if any. are dsdosed within
cenitrally deared finand 8 defvative inatruments of the Statements of At
and Liabilities. Gains or losses are recognized but mot considered realizd until
this oRIracts exgpene o dose. Fulunes coniracts imohe, 10 vaning degrees,
sk of koss in excess of the Fubunes Vanation Margn induded within
exchange traded of cenfrally deared finandal defivative instuments on the
Statemnents of Assets and Labilides

{c} Options Contrmets Certain Funds may wile of purdhase options (o
enhande retums of 1o hedge an easting position of hawe imvestment. Certan
Furids may waite call and putoptions on seaeites and finandal derivative
mnstruments they own of in which they rmay imast. Wiiting put options tends
toincrease a Fund s exposure to e underying instrument ‘Wniting call
ophions tends o decrease 3 Fund's espodure 10 the underding insrement
when a Fundwrites acall or put, an amountegaa 1o the premium received is
reannded and subsequently marked 10 market 10 reflect te arment value of
the cpition writhen. These amounts ane induded on the Stanerments of Assets
and Liskiities Premiums recetved from wiiting optons which expire are
treated &5 realized gains. Premiums redenved from wiiling opticns which are
exercised or dosed are added 1o the proceeds or offset against amounts paid
on the undertying futures, s p, SE0anity of QETendy Fansaction to detemine
the realized gain of loss. Certain options may be written with premisms to be
determined on a future date: The premiunes for these oplons afe based upon
Empdied volatlity parameters ab spedfied terms. A Fend a5 3 writer of an
option has no control over whieher the underydng nstument may be sold
{"cal™) or purchaded (Cput ™) and & aresult bears he market ik of an
unfavorable change in the prce of the instrument underhiing the written
opoon There & the nk 3 F'JFdﬂ'lﬁ‘j' ol b2 abde to enter into a disng
wransaction because of an ilbguad market

Certamn Funds mary a0 purchase put and call options. Purdhasng cad options
ends o incresse & Funid's exposire to the underyng instrument F‘u:-?nasim;
put options tends to decredte 3 Fund s expodune 10 B whderdyng instument
A Fund pays a premium which & induded a5 an Z5se1 on the Statements of
Ausets and Liabdlities and subsequently mareed o matkel to reflect e
qurent value of the option. Premisms paid for purchaang options which
expire are reated as reglized losses. Certain ophions may be purchased with
premsums ta be determined on & fulure date The premouns for these opions
are based wpon implied volatlity parameters 3t speofied tems. The risk
awociated wath pundhasang put and call apaons i4 imited bo the premurn
paid Premiumes paid for purchasing opons which are exerdsed or dosed ane
added to the amounts paid or offset against the preceeds on the underlying
Imvestment fransaction to determine the realized gain or loss when the
undkerhying transaction is exeduted

Credit Delanlt Swaptiens Certain Funds may wiite of purchase gedt defzult
eapEons o hedpe wpasure 10 He ol sk of an inves ment without
raking a commitment b the underying instrument. A gadit defaul! swaplion
s an option wo sell or buy cedt protedion to a spedlic relerence by enterng
min 3 pre-defined sy ap sgreement by some specified date in the future

Fareign Carency Optisns Ciriain Funds may wite or puschace foreign
CuTenoy opions b be used as a short or long hedge aganst possible
wafiaticens in foreign exchange rates of (o gain exposure 10 foregn ouerendes

Iaflation-Capped Dptions Certain Funds may write of purdhiase inflason-
CHppEd options 10 enhande returms of for hedging oppormunities. The purpose
of purchasing inflation-capped options is 1o protect 3 Fund froem inflation
erosion above 4 Certain rate on a given notional exposare. A floor can be
usad 0 give downside protecBion o investments in inflationdinked produces

Interest Rate Swaptions Certain Funds may wiite o pundhase inberest rate
swaptions wihidh are options to enter inte 2 pre-defined awap agreement o
o shignen, extend, cancel of ofherwise modify an existing svap agreement,
By some spedified date in the future, The writer of the swaption becomes the
CORIRTer party b0 the Swap if the buyer exenases. The Interest rate svapion
agreemen gl spedty whether the buver of thie svaplion will be & foed-rate
FECRivEr OF & fuoed-T31e Payer upon exendse

Options on Exchange-Traded Futures Contracts Certan Funds maywribe or
purchase opfions on echange- raded futenes contracts ("Fuunes Option™) to
hedige an exdsting position o future investment, for speculafive punposes o2 o
Manage exposiane [o markel movements A Futures Oplion i5 30 pton
Conrac inwhid Se underying irstument is 4 singhe futures contrac

Options on Securifies Certan Funds may wiite of pUrchase opaons on
Securitees 1o enhande relums of 1o hedge an edting position of fulure
IEneRstmiEnt. AN aplon on & seunty uses 2 ypechied Sequrily 45 the underlyng
instrument for the option contract

{d} Swap Agreements Certan Funds may imvest in swap agreements. Swap
agreements are bilaterally negotiated agreements between a Fund and a
counter party b enchange of Saap investment cach flows, assets, foreign
aerendies of market-linked retums at spedfied, future intenvals, Swap
AFeeEmEnts may be privately negotiated in the OTC marker of may be deared
thidirgh a third party, known as a central ounterparty of denvatnees deang
organization {"centraly deared swaps ™). A Fund may eniter into asset, oedit
defaull, cross-aumendy, interestrate, 1otal retwm, variance and other foms of
W agreements to manage its exposure 1o oredit, ouTendy, inferest rate,
commodity, eguity and inflation ride. I connection with thess sgresments,
securities of cash may be identified a5 oollateral or mangn in acoordance with
the terms of e respecive Svap agresments o provede ascets of valiee and
regourse in e event of defaultor barkrupiogfneohency

Centrally deared Saaps are marked 1o market daly based upon valuabions as
detemined from the undertying contract or in aacordanice with the
requirements of the cenral countenparty o derivatives deating organdzation
Changesin market vaue, if amy, ae reflectsd 3% 2 component of net change
i unrealized appredation (depredation) on the Statements of Operations
Craily chamizs in vatuaton of centrally dieared Svaps Swap Variaton
Margin”), if any, are disdosed within cenirally deared finandia derivative
InstrumueEn 15 on the Scatements of Assets and Lisbdities. OTC ywap panrsnls
received of paid At the begirning of the measurement period are induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabdiies and represent premiums paid or
received upon entering indo fe swap agreement bo compensate for
differences betaeen the stated termms of the swap agreement and prevalling
kel conditons (Tedt spreads, umency exdhange rates, inlenest rates, and
ather relevant factors). Lipfront premiurns received (paid) are initially recorded
a5 liabilies (pssees) and subsequently marked to market to redect the cument
walue of the swap. These uptront premiumes e recorded 34 realized gains or
bsses on the Statements of Operations upon termination of mahaity of the
swap. A liquidation payment received or made at the leminaton of Be svap
i5 recorded a5 realized gain of loss on the Statements of Operations, Met
pericachC paymEnts received of paid by & Fund are induded a5 pan of redlized
gains or lothes on the Staterments of Operationg
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For purperies of applying certain of 3 Fund' investment poices and
resnictions, swap agreements, like other derivative mstruments, may be
walued by a Fund at market value, nofion vaiye or full exposure vakie in the
case of 3 edit default swap, in apphying certain of the Fund's mvesiment
polides and restrictions, the Fund will vatue e aedit defaut swap & it
natonal value or its full expotune valoe (e, e sum of the nobondl amount
tor the contract plus the market value), but may value the dedit default avap
atmarket value for purpotes of applying certan of the Rend's other
Imvestment policies and resmctions. For example, the Fund may value credit
default swaps at full expasure value for purposes of the Fund's credit quality
guidelines (i any) because wuch value in generaf better reflects, the Fend's
actual economic exposune during e temof the aedit default swap
Agreeient As a pesult, & Fund rdy, At Bk, hive fodonal axpoane (o a0
asset dass before neting) that is greater or lesser than the stated himit o
restriction nabed in the Fund's Offeing Memorsndum. (0 his context, both
the noBional amount and the market value may be positve of negative
depending on whether the Fund is salling or baying profection through the
it default swap. The manner in which certain seourites or ather
instruments are valued by the Fund for purposes of apphing investment
palicies and redirictions may Gffer froen the manner in which thode
imvestments are valued by other types of imeestors. Entering info svap
Agresen s anvolves, 10 varing degrees, elerments of interest, aedit, market
and docurnentation risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the
Statements of Assets and Liabdlites. Such risks invghve the possibibty that
thisre will be no Bgud market for these sgresments, that the aunterparty o
the agreements may default on its abdigation o perform of disagree 35 1o the
Fiveaming of Contractul b in the ageements and that there My be
unfaworable changes in interest rates of the values of the asset upon whidh
the awap s based

A Fund's masimusm risk: of Ioss. from counterparty credit sk is the discounted
net valge of the cash fiows 1o be received From the counterparny over the
Contract’s remaining life, to e extent that amount is positive, The rigk may
be mitigated by having & master neting arrangement between a Fund and
thee counterparty and by the posting of collareral 1 & Fund 10 cover 3 Fund's
Exnposure 1 the CoUNTErpaty

T the extent & Fumd has 3 palicy 1o limet the net amount owed 1o of (o be
receved from a snge counterparty under exiling Svap aghesments, such
[ri tason only applies 1o CounBerpartnes 10 OTC swaps and G0t not apply 1o
cenrally cleared swaps where e counferparty & a central counterparty of
derivatives dearing organizasion

Credit Delanlt Swap Agreements © eriain Funds may enter into

credit default swaps on corporate, loan, soverégn, US. munidpal o US
Treasury issues o provide a measure of protection agamst defaults of the
iosuers ., to reduce risk where 3 Fund owns o has exposure (o the
referenced obligation) or to take an active long or short position with respect
10 e Bkelitood of & partiosar iswer's defauit. Credit dedsult swap
Agreements ivaive oné party making a stream of paymends (refemed 1o a8
the bunyer of protection) to ancther party (the seller of protection) in exchangs
tar the Aght to receive 3 Spedfied refum in the event that he referenced
entity, cbligation or index, 35 spedfiedin the swap agreement, undergoes
certain recht event. As 3 seller of profection on aedt detault swap
agresrrents, & Fund will generally recene from the buyer of pratection a fixed
rate of income thecsighoul Be term of the: swap provided that there s no
credit event. AL the saller, 3 Fund would eMectively add bnverage ot
portiolio because, in addition bo its total net assets, the Fund would be
subiect toinvesiment expiodure on the notional amount of the swap

It @ Fund is a selter of protection and a oredt event ooours, as defined under
the tenms of that particular swap agreement, a Fund will either () pay to the
bugyer of prodection an amaunt egeal 10 the notional amount of the svap and

Lake defirvery of the relerenced obbgation, other deliveratle abligations of
underlying sequrities comprising the referenced index or (i) pay a net
settiement amount in the form of cash or sequifies equal tothe noticnal
amount of the swap less the recovery vale of the referenced cbigation o
underying sequnities comprising the referenced index. f a Fund is 3 buver of
protection anda dedl event oonis, a5 ddfined under the terms of that
particular swvap agreement, a Fund will either () receive fram the seller of
pratection an amaunl squal i e potional amount of the Swap ard diliver
the referenced cbligaton, other deliverable obligations or tmderhying
securities aumprising the referenced index or §i) receive 3 et settiement
amount in the o of cash or secunties equal to the notional amount of the
it |ess the recowery value of the referenced obligation of undertying
SHUTilied B sing the reberenced indi. Redmeery vilies dfe etrmatid by
market makers considering either indushry standard recovery rates or entity
specific facars and consideratons until 3 cradt sent ocass. If a dredi event
s ooourred, the recovery valse i determined by a faglitated audtion
wiherety 3 menimum number of Slowable broker bids, together with a
spedfied valuation method, ae used 1o cbodate the seriberent value The
ability bo deliver other obligations may result in a deapest-to-deliver option
{Ehe buyer of prodedion s fght 1o daode the deliversble abligason with the
loweest walie foliowding a credt event)

Cradit default awap agreements on redit indices. rmolve ane party making a
stream of payments to ancther party in exchange for the mght to recehve 3
specified retum in the event of 3 weite-dowm, principal shortfal, interest
shortfall or default of all or part of the referenced entifies comprising the
credtindes A cedtinges is a basker of Tedlinsmuments of exposunes
dietigned 10 be representative of some part of e credl market 3 3 whole
These Indices are made up of reference aedins tat are judged by a pall of
dealers bobe the most liquid entites in te aedt delault svap market based
on the sector of the index . Components. of the indices may inchude, but are
ok limised to, imdestment grade sequmities, high vield searites, assel-badked
SECURIGES, emmarging rarkets, anidir various credit ratings within eadh sector
Credt indices sre raded using ared default swaps with standandized terms
indluding a fed spread and standard matunty dates An indeo: aredit default
wwap rederences 3 ihe names in the index, and if there is 3 default, the aedin
evenl is setted based on thatname"s weight in the index. The composition of
the indices changes perodically, wually every sid months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal WEIghTin the Index A Fund may s el
default swaps on credit indces to hedge a portfodio of credt default swaps o
bonds, whidh 15 less expensive than it would be to bary many aredit default
sweaps 10 schieve 2 similar eflect Credit defaubt swape on ndices are
Insarumints for protecting Imesions owreng bonds against default, and
traders uss theim b0 speadate on changes in dedt quality

Inplied credi spreads, repretented in absolute temns, utilized in deétermining
the market value of redt default swap agresments on corporate, loan,
sowereign, U5 munidpal or U S Treasuryissues a5 of period end, if any, are
disclosed in the Motes 1o Schedube of Invesments. They serve as an indicater
of the curent stahss of paymentperformance ride and represent the |ikelibood
of fidk of defadt for the reference entity. The ifpled cedin pread of 5
particular referenced entity reflects the cost of buyingfselling protection and
may include upfront payments required to be made to enter infg the
agreement 'Wider credit spreads represent a deterioration of the referenced
enfity's medt soundness and a greater likelibood or risk of default or other
credt event acouming 5 defined under te terms of the agreement. For aedi
defaull swap agresments on aiset-badeed seouities and aedt indices, 1he
quited kel prices and readting valies senee ot the indecatir of the current
status of the paymentiperdormance risk. Indreasing market values, in absolute
terms when compared &0 the notionsl amount of the swap. represent 3
detenoration of the referenced entity™s aedit soundhess and a qreater
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Ekilihood of risk of default or ather credit sent ooouing a5 defined under
the terms of the agreement

The masirmam potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) that

a Fund as a seller of protection could be required 1o make wnder 3 aedt
defaull svap sgreerment egquals the notonal amount of the SQPEEmEnl
Motional ameunts of each indvidual gedt default swap agreement
ourstadng as of perod end for which a Fund is the seller of protection are
disdosed in the Botes bo Schedule of Investments. These potential amounts
wiuld be partially offset by amy recovery values of the regpective referenced
obligations, upfnont payments received upon entering into the agreement, or
niet amounts recesved from the setdement of buy protection aedit default
S agreement s entened into by a Fund for the same referenced entity o
Ennnes

Iuterest Rate Swap Agresments Cerlain Funds ane suliect 10 mienest rate
ek exposune in the nonmal course of pursiang theelr snvesment objednes
The value of the foced rate bonds that 3 Fund holds may dedrease if interest
rates rise, To help hedge against thes risk and to mantain its ability 1o
gEnerate inaome at [l'E\'ﬂIﬁFn;I markel rates, a Fund may enter o inlenest
rate swap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exdhange
Iy & Fursd wath an ::-mefparr,-‘.u their Fespective Comm iment 1o [y’ of
receiyi inbefesl on the noticnd amount of prindpal. Certain hoard of inbéfed
rabe Svap agreements may indude: () interest rate caps, under whid, in
riehum for & premium, onée party agrees 10 make payments 1o the offier to the
extent that interest rates exceed 3 spedBed rate, or “cap™, (i) nterest rate
flonrs, under which, in returm for a premiem, ofe party agrees 1o make
payments to the other to the extent that interest rates fall below a specfied
rate, o “floor™, (E)intesest rate coilars, under whid 3 ety sells @ Cap and
purchases 3 Bo0r Of vice Versa in 3 aftempl 1o prodedt malf aganst nteres
rate movemnents exceeding given minimem of maamium kvels, (v callable
Enterest rate awapd, under which the buser pays an uplfront fee in
consderation for the nght i early terminate the wwap transaction in whe,
at 2ero oost and 31 3 predetermined date and time prioe t the maturity date,
() spreadocks, which alow the interest rate swap users to lok in the
fonward differential (or spread) besween the interest rate swap rate and a
spiedfied bendirnadk, of (i) baus swaps, undes whidh bad paried can
exchange vanatie interest rates based on different segments of money
ot

Tetal Retwm Swap Agreements Cerfain Funds may enfer into tots! refum
A agreements [0 gain or mitigate exposure b the underhying reference
Total retuim swap agreements imvobve commitments where single or miltiple
cash flows are exchanged based on the price of an underying reference assel
and on 3 fixed of vanable interest rate. Tatal relum swap agresments may
e COMITIITMENTS 00 Py INTerest in eachange 1of & market-inked rehim
Ome counterparty pays oul the total retum of a spedfic undedying reference
assel, which may indude a single sequnity, a basket of securifies, or an index,
and in refum receives a fixed or variable rate. AL the maturity date, a net cash
flows is emchanged where He total retum is equivaient to the return of the
underhing reference Jsset less & fnandng rate, Ifdl‘-]f AL 3 FecEher, 4

Fured would recesve payments based on any positve Tolal relum and would
e panynents i e event of 3 negative total retum. AS the purer, a

Furd would owe payments an amy positive total return, and would recene
payments in the event of a net negative total retum

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

I the mormal cowre of butimess, the Funds (or Aoguined Funds, i1 appdncable)
trade finandal instruments and enfer info finandal rarsactions whene sk of
patental loss exdars due 1o such things a3 changes i the market (market dg)
o failure or inability of the other party b0 a ransaction to perfam {Tedt and

cominiter party fek). See bl o for 3 detailed desaription of slect prindpal
risks

Fund ol Fande: To the extent that certain Funds invest substantially a of their
respective assels in Acuired Funds, the ks assodisted with investing in
s Furds wall be dosely related 1o the nsks awsodated with Bhe sequnibes
and otteer investments held by the Aoquired Funds. The atilityof the Rands to
achieve ter respecive investment objectives may depend upon the abiliey of
the Acquired Fands 1o achieve their retpactive mvestment objectives. Thene
cam be o assurance that the investment objeciive of any Acguized Fund wil
be adieved The MAV of an Acquinng Fund will fluctsate inresponse o
changes in the respedive NAV of the Acquired Fund in which it imvests

In the mormad oourse of business, Acquired Funds trade finandal instuments
and enter into finandd wansacions whene sk of potential loss exdsts due 1o
changes in the market (marked k), of Talure o inability of the other party o
4 ransacion o periom (red i and counierpasty i)

Performance-Linked Notes Risk To the extent each of the B0 1605 0FT),
Bel 1605 (USDY, B=) 1609 (PY), B 1609 (USCY, B-J 1612 (1) and B-J 1612
(USED Classes of the FIMCO Berrmusda inoome Fund E invest in Perfcemance-
Linked Mates, they will forego other imestment opgortnities, which coidd
negatehy impact Se performance of wudh Cliss. I sddion, wuch
Prerformance-Linked Hotes are unseosned obligations of Credin Susse
nternahonal and 4o thie Classes ane sposed o the aedit ik of Credit Sumse
International Furthermare, the Performance-Linked MNotes will be adversely
affected in the event of a defauly, reduced credit rating, or detesiceation in the
sobvency of Credit Suisse Intemational

Market Rizks A Fund's investments in finandal derivative instrements and
oder finandal instnaments expoge the Fund to various rides sudh as, but mot
I to, briberest rate, foregn (non-L 5 ) cumency. equity and commodity
risks

Interest rate ek 14 the ndk that feced income secunties and ather instnsments
held by & Fund may decline in value because of an ingease in interest rates
As nominal interest rates rite, the value of certain foed income securiies held
Ery @ Fund is Bkely to derease. A nominal interest rate can be desaibed as
the swm of 3 real imerest Fate and an expeciad inflaticen Fate. interest rate
changes can be sudden and unprecictabie, and a Fund may lose money if
these changes are pat antdpeted by Fund rmanagement A Fund may not be
able 0o hedge againat chandges in inbenest rabes of may choose not 0o da 50 far
cost or other reasons. In addiion, any hedges may nol wark: as intended

Duration is 3 meaire used to delemmine the semsifivity of 3 secunity’s price fo
changes in interest rates that ncomporates 3 sequrity’s yiebd coupon, final
meaturity and call features, among osher dharactensiics, Convexity is an
additional measure used tounderstand a seouity’s or Fund's interest rate
Sendiity that measunes the rate Gf(h&‘"}: of durason in mesponse o
changes in interest fates. Fieed income sequnities with longer durations ténd
1o b myires Sens tvee 10 chandess in Inberest rabes, usially making them mone
wodatle than securifies with shorter duraBors. A wide variety of Lacioes can
cause interest rates torise (2.q, centrdl bank monetary policies, inflagion
rates, general econ omic condisions, efc ). Under qument economic comd fions,
Imierest rates are near historically bow leveds. The Funds asrently face 3
hieigheened lovel of mterest rane nsk, espedally sance the Feceral Reterve
Board has ended its quantitative easing program and has bequn, and may
CONUMEE, 10 FESe Mienest rates To the extent tat the Federd Resere
continees 1o raise interestrates, there is 3 rick that rates acrods the finandal
system may fise, Further, while bond markets have sieadly grown over the
past teee decades, dealer "market making™ ability has not kept pace and in
some cases has detreased Given the importance of intermediany “market
Feaking” in oeatng & robust and pine merkel. foeed income wasities ane
anrenthy fadng indreased volatility and hiquidity rides. All of these factors,
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collectiviely andéor indvidualy, could cause 3 Fund 1o lose value if e Fund
bost enough value, the Fund could face indeased Unitholder redemptions,
which could Swrce the Fund to liquidate investments at deadvantageous Gmes
or prices, thereby adversely affecting the Fund. Also, the Fund may be
adversely affected when a large Unithodder purchases of redeens large
arounts of urts, which caim oot 41 sy e shd frsy rpact the Fund i
the same manner a3 a high vlume of redemnption requests. Lange Unitholder
Lransactions may impad the Funds liguedity and net astet value Sudch
transactions may aso ingease the Fund™s ransaction costs or otherwse
cause the Fend to perform differentty than intended Moreover, the Fund is
subject no the ik that other Linitholders may make invesiment dedsions
based on the choices of 3 [nge Unitholder

A Fund may have significant expesure b0 issuers in the United Kingdam. The
Uit Banpdcemy . decrtion o ledve The Eurcpean Linkon may impact Fund
reharrrs. This dedison may cause substantid volatility in foreign exchange
markeats, lead to wedkness in the exchange rate of the Brifish pound, result in
a sustained period of market uncertanty, and destabilize some or all of the
ofher European Lnion member counries andfor the Eurozone

Foreign (non-L % ) sequrities in this report are dassified by the country of
ncorporanan of &hudﬂg In certan inSlances, & Sequrity’s country of
Encofporatan imay be different froem it courtny of sdonomic expodine

1t A insests directly iR foregn (Ron-UES ) currendes of IR Seasities that
trade in, and receive revenues in, foreign (pon-U.5 )} currendies, of in finangid
derivatiee ndtruments that provide exposure to foreign (ron L5 ) crmendies,
it will be subject to the risk that those aurrencies will decine in value relative
b thee B curmency of the Fund, o, in the case of hedging positions, that
thee Fuen's B currency will decline in vadue refative 1 the curency being
hedged. Currency rates in foreign countries may fluchuate significantly over
short penods of Bime 108 2 number of redsons, indudng changes f mirel
rates, mtenvention {or the faBure tointerene) by U S, or foreign govemments,
ceniral banks o supranational enfBities such a5 the Intemational Monetary
Fund, or by the imposition of cumency anirols or other political developments
in the United States of abroad. &5 a result, a Fund's imvestments in foreign
Qureny-denornsed SECUFibeES fredy recuace the Fund's rehsms

The market values of equites, such as commen stacks and preferred Senumiies
o edquity related investments auch as fufures and apbions, have histoncally
reien and tallen in penddhic cpces and muay dedire due 1o general market
conditicng which are not spedfically rdated to a particular company, such as
real or pergeived adverse economic conditions, dhanges in the general
Utk for corporate -?ﬂ-'l'lil'l-';li. Cheanges i inberest o umendy rates of
adverse investor sentiment generally. They may also dedine due o facions
which affect a particulas Uy oF indusiries, sudh & bor shoftages of
Incredied producion codls and compet Bve condibions within an indusiry
Difierent types of equiny sequrities may react differenty to these

devel cpren e, Eiquity secuntied and equaly related investiments generally hawe
greater market price volatility than fixed income sequrities

The Fumds may imvest im certain instruments that rely in some tashion upon
the London Interbank: Offered Rate ("UBGR™). LIBOR is an average inferest
rate, determmngd by the ICE Benchmark Admenistraton, that banks change
one another for the use of shart-tesm money. The United Kingdom's Rnanadal
Conduct Authonty, which requiates LIBOR, has announced plans to phate out
the wse of LIBOR by the end of 2021 There remains uncertaingy regardng
Tuture wilizaton of LIBOR and the nature of any replacement rate, and amy
potental effects of the transition away from LEBOR on a fund or on certain
nstruments in which a Fund invests are not kndwn

Credit and Counterparty Risks & fund waill be exposed to credit risk 1o
parties with whionm i1 rades and will also bear the ik of setdement delai
A Fund minimizes concentrations of credi risk by undeniaking ransactions

walth alange number of arstofmers and counterparies on redognized and
reputabde exchanges, where applicable, OTC denvative transadions are
stbject to the risgk that & counterparty 1o the ransact on will not fulfil it
contractud obfigations to the other party, as many of the protections afforded
to centrally deared derivative wansactions meght nof be availabie for OTC
dierhvatne raviacions. Fol demidtives Taded on an exchangs o thiough 4
cenitral counterparty, credit risk resides with the gedibworthiness of

the Fund's dearing braker, or the dearinghoute itel, rather than 1o a
counterparty in an OTC derivasive ansacion. Changss in requiation relating
iy & Fund's use of derivatives and relsted instnements coubd potentially limst
of impact the Fund's absity b invest in derivatives, it te Fund's ablity to
employ certain strategies that use dervatives andicr aoversely affect the value
of perionmance of demvatives and the Fund A Fund could |ose money it the
asuer or quasantor of a Bxed income sequnity, o the counterpaty bo a
financial dervatni instruments contract, repur dhase sqneament of a loan of
portfobo sequrities, is unable of unwalling to make timely princpal andtor
inferest payments, or be othenwise honor its obligations. Sequrities and
finandal dervathve instruments are subject tovardng degrees of credin rsk,
which may be reflected in geditragngs

Similar 1o aredit ik, a Fund may be sxposed Do counberpadty sk, of e i
that an irstiation of other entity with which & Fund has unsettled of open
transactions will default FIMCO, a3 the Manager, minimizes countemparty
risks to the Funds through a number of ways. Frior o enfering into
ransactions with 4 new counterparty, the FIMCO Counterparty Ritk
Commities aonducts an extensive dredt review of sisch counterparty and mist
approve the use of auch Counerpaity. Furthermone, pursuant 1o e e of
the undeiying contrac, 1o the extent hat unpaid amounts dwed to a Rind
exceed 3 predetermined hireshald, widh counterparmy shall advance collateral
1o & Fund in the Torm of cash of securities equal in value 1o the unpaid
amount oeved 1o a Fund, A Fund may invest such coll steral in securities or
ofher irsmuments and will typlcally pay interest 1o the muMErpany on the
coflateral received, o the unpaid amount cwed to a Fund subsequently
dedredies, & Fund would be required 1o retam o b counierparty 8 or 3
poaticn of the collateral preicusly sdvanced, PIMCO™S attempts Do minimi e
CoUrterparty sk may, howeser, be urswocessul

All ransactions in Bited sequnties are settledfpaid for upon deliverny using
approved counterparties. The risk of defaudt is comidered mnimal, &5 delivery
af sequities sold is only made once a Fund has received payment. Paymentis
miade on 3 purdiase once the sequities have been delivered by the
couriterparty. Thie tracke will i iF either parey fails to meet its cbligation

& MASTER METTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject 10 vanious neting arrangements (" Master
Agreements ™) with select counterpanties. Matter Agreements gowem the
terms of certain transacions, and are imtended to reduce the counterparty risk
assodated with relevant ransacons [‘I'r'E-Dl':"Jﬁ"!'Ig el protect on
mechanians and providing standardizatoon that is intendad 10 improve legal
certainty. Each type of Master Agreemsent Qoveims certan types of
transactions. Cifferent bypes of transactions may be raded out of different
begal entities or affiliates of 3 particular organization, resulling in the nesd for
midigle agreementswith a sngle counterparty As the Master Agresments
are spedfic to unique operaticns of different asset types, they allow 3 fund to
clorse out and net 15 total exposure 1o a counterparty in the event of & default
wath respect 1o all the wansaction: govermed under 4 sngle Masher
Apeerrent with & counterparty. For financial reporting purposes te
Staternents of Assets and Liabslities generally present derivative assels and
leabilities on 3 gross basis, which reflects the full nsks and exposures pricr i
netting
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Master Agreements can Ao help Bmit counterparty fidk by spedhying
collateral posting arrangements at pre-amanged exposure levels. Under most
Master Agreements, collateral is rutinely ransfermed if the fotal nef exposure
bo certain transactions (et of exdsting coll ateral dready in place) govemed
unckr the relevant Master Agreement with 3 COUNterparty in a given aooolnt
ex0bbd 4 ipedfied threshold, which bpocally ranges from 2ero to §.250.000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agheement. United
Srabes Treatury Bl and U5, dollar cath are generally the prede perris. of
collateral, Athourgh other securiies may be used depending on the tenms
gutlined in the applicable Master Agreement. Seurities and cash phedged as
collaneral are reflected as assets on the Statements of Ascers and Lubilites a5
gither & component of invesiments at value (seqrities) of Deposits with
counterparty. Cadh collateral reoerved is not Bpically held |
acoount and & such is reflectsd a5 a liabdity on the Statements of A
Liabilites a6 Depotits from countérparty. The market value of any Seoanities
received a5 collateral is not reflected as a component of HAN, The Fund's
overall exposure o counterpary risk can change substantidly within a short
periced, a5 it is affected by each ransacison sultyect to the relevant Maibe
Aryesment

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Adgreements
(ridvidually and collectnely ~ Master Repo Agreeren1s) Qovesn fepunchate,
reverse repunchate, and salebuyhade ransactions between the Funds and
select counterparties. Master Repo Agreements maintan provisions for,
among ather thindgs, ticn, incame wents, meents of default, 2nd
maintenance of collaterdl The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, oollateral pledged of recened, and the met exposuse by
counterparty & of pefod end are dedosed in the Nobes 10 Sdhedule of

IrniEs i

Master Seamities Forward Transaction Agreements (" Master Fonwand
Agreements ™) govemn certan forward setding ransactions, such &5 TBA
securiBes, delayed-delivery or sale-buyback ransactions by and
Detween the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Forward
Agresments maintain provigens for, among other things, initiadion and
confiemation, payment and mansfer, events of defadt, temination, and
erantenance of allaterd The madket value of forwand settling Tansactions,
collateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by counterparty a5 of
periced end ane disdesed in the Notes i Schedule of Imvestments

Customer Account Agreements and related addends govemn desred
derivatives ransadtions wach as futures, optians on futures, and deared OTC
derivatives. Such transactions requne g of initial margin a5 detemnined
ey e vant dearing agen oy whic sgaled in an A0Count af a
futures commisson menchant {"FCM™) reg dwith the Commadity
Futures Trading Commission (TCFTCT) In the United States, countenmacty fde
ey be reduced a5 creditons of an FOM cannot hawe a daim-bo Fund assetsin
the segregated account. Portability of exposure in the event of an FCM
default scenario further reduces risk to the Funds. Vanation margn, o
changes in market valipe, e generally exchanged daly, ut maynotbe
netned bebw een futures and deared OTC derivatives unless the parties have
agreed 1o 4 separate arangement in respect of hnd margining The market
wallue o acouriulsted unresfzed appeeciation {(depredation), ninal mangin
pasted, and any wsetBed vaiation margn a4 of pariod end are disdosed m
the Bobes bo Schedule of Imestments

International Swaps and Derivatives Assodation, Ing Master Ageements and
Creedt SUpport Annees (T1S08 Master Agreements ™) govem telaters OTC
derivative ransaciions entered into by the Funds with select counterparties
1504 Master Agreerments mantan provsions for general obligatons,
FEpresentatons, agreements, oollaterd pasting and events of default or
termination. Events of temnination indude conditions that may entigle
courerpartied i ot to terminale eary and cause setdement of al

oubitandng rarsactions under the applicable 1504 Matter Agresment. Any
election to terminate early could be material to the finandal statements. In
lmated aroumetances, the B0 Master Agreement may contain addtional
provisions that add counterparty protection beyond coverage of exisiing daiy
exposure if the counterparty has a dedine in cedt quality befow a predefined
Dl Thiew amaunts, if afry, My be segregated with & tird-pamy custodin
The market value of OTC finandal derivative instruments, adlateral received
of pledged, and nél expature by cunberpaty 3 of penod end are ditdoded
I ghe Motes to Schedule of Imvestments,
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9, FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fund is 5 cll ey Tt pargable at the foll diean dnnual Fales (Sated &% 3 percentage of the earage darly nel atse1sof each Fund, of Class, if
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The management, advisory and administrative fees, if apgiicable, are paid monily in armears to FMCO for providng or arranging for the provision of advisory,
adrminastrative and third-party seneces induding audit, custodial, trustes, portfidio accounting, routine legal, transfer agent and printing senices The agency and
distribution fees, i spplicable, e pald monthiy in amears b resmbrss firancial intemedianies that provide sendces and distribution relating to the wnits of the
applicable Fund for Chass thereof, 35 spplicabie) Imexchange for this fiee, PIMCO will bear the costs of cerain thind-pay sendces required by the Funds, Induding
audit, custodia, tnastee, porticlio acoounting, legal, transder agent and prnting services. PRCO, and not Unithalders, would Benefit from any price dedreate in the
cost of such thind-party servces, induding decreates rewlting Fomm an indexte innet 80ets In addtion, with respect 1o Funds that are subiect 1o an sdminiiirative
fee, PIMCO generally makes a profit on-wich a fee

As noted in the table above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are not subject bo management, advisory, administrafve, agency of dstnbulion fees. FIMCO Lapan
Lbd, PINMC s affiliate in Japan, is paid a fee from the Japanese vestment Trusts or other investment vehicles that irvest in such Funds or Classes and a portion of
sy e is then slocated to PIMCO 00 compensate it for its sendces

Foor the first fve years followsng e Laund of each of the B-J 1605 (IFY), B-) 1605 (USCH, B-) 1609 (JFY), B-) 1609 (USDY, B-1 1612 (PY), and B-J 1612 (LSD) Classes
of the PIMOD Bermuda oome Fund £ an Asseq Based Sales Change (" ABSC™) of 0.76% will be imposed on the average didy nel assetvalue of eadh Class and
payakie monthily t the Fee Agent Addisonaly, if any uniss of the B=1 1605 (IFY), B 1605 (LSD), B-J 1609 (FY), B0 1603 (USCH, B-) 1612 (FY), and B-1 1682 (LISD)
lasies of the PIMCO Bermuda Incoiné Fund E are redessmad of exchangsd for ane of moe units in anather fund within the time peiods spedhied below, a CO5C wel
be imposed on the amount of such redemption at the applicable Percentage CO5C;

¥ ears Since mception of Bach Cless P tage COSC
1 feachkng S ymar aresarang J0im
2 e luding second v sniversan 240
3 lexchabng therd e anesrsany) K]
4 [naciudng fowrih vear asnvagang 1 20%
B e FiFoh wear enbmaey] (1 60%
Thereadres D00

With respect to the calculation of the CDAC, the value of the redemption amount will be the then-aument NAY of the units being repurchased Furthermone, any
applicabhe COGCS will be dedacted from the nepurchase procesds andwill be payable to the Fee Agent. For the year ended Cctober 31, 2019, the B 1605 (IFY) B
1605 (UEDA, B-) 1809 (1FY), B-) 1609 (S0, B-1 1612 OPY), and B-) 1612 (LED) Classes of the PIMCO Bermuds Income Fund E paid ¥164, 693 784 in ABSC and
Vi1, 166,782 in COGC o the Fed Agent

The Funds (or Classes thereod, as spplicablel may bear ciher expenses related o their operation that are not covered by the management, advisony, sdministrative;
agency or distribution fees, induding but not limited to; () taxes and governmenta fees; (i) brokerage fees and commessions and other portfolio ransacton expenizes;
{iiy costs of bonmowwing money, induding interest expense; (vl extraondinary expenses, induding costs of lidgation and indemnification experses; and () any expenses
allocated o allocable 10 3 speafic Class of units. PRVCO has pald the organi 2asonal expenes ssodated with the creaton of te Trust, except for PIMCO Shost-Term
Mortgage ome

o o Baparn | Dot 31, 2015 o
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PINACO andror ies affiliated instidlly advanced to PIMCO Short-Terrn Martgage income all costs and expenses, induding begal expenses, incurmed in annedion with the
initial pubkc offering of the EUR, JPY and LD Chasses of units of the Furdin lapan {"Offering Expenses™) Al or near the commencernent of the Fund's operations, the
Fund wal reimburse PIRMCO andior its affiliates for the Offering Expenses advanced and will amortize such Offering Expenses. over the st fiscal year of its operations
However, PINKCD has agreed to waive reimbursement of the Offering Expenses jo the extent that such expenses exceed 0.05% per annum of the sum of the EUR, JPY
and S0 Classes’ NAY (the "Offering Expense Limetation ™). Ay Offering Expenses waived due to the Offering Expense Uimitation may be recouped by FIMCO andior
it affliates dor & period fol eaeeding fve years feod the commencement of the Fund's operations; provided, the amount fecouped by PIRICD andir it sifilates chall
nok excesd 0.05% per annum of e sum of the EUR, JFY and USD Classes’ NAY H any of the EUR, JPY and USDr Classes of wnits of the Fund are terminated pror i3
the full reirrburiement of Ai Offering Bepentes, PIMCO andfor it affiliates chall nol seel: reimbursement of Sy remsning unrambureed smounts fom tat Class
Furthermone, if all of the EUR, IPY and USD Classes of units of the Fund are terminated pnor 6o the full reimbursement of all Offenng Expenses, PIMCO andior its
affiliates shall not seek reimiwrsement of any remaining unreimbursed amounts from the Fund As of October 31, 2019, there were no recoverable Offering Expenses
1 PIMCO andfor it atblianes

The Trustee and e Manager hive appoented Credin Suisse Intemationdl as the sgent for the PINCO Bemoda income Fund E for purpeses of finandng placement fees
to be paid fo certain dsiributors, Uncer 2 fee agent sppointment agresment entered into among te Trastee, the Manager, and Credit Siisse International {the “fes
Afen i Appantment Agreement ™), Credi Sukse intemational has been agpointed bo: ) efien peyrentof certsin diswibution fes to the Jaganese distribeios in
acoordance with the Fee Agent Appaintment Agresment and the tenms of various upfront fee letters, and (i) make all calculations and determinations required o be
made under the Fee Agent Appointment Agreement

PIMCD andior its affiliates will inifally advance to the PIMCO Bermuda ncome Fured Elegal expenses inqimed in connection with exscuting the Fee Agent
Appoentment Agresment and assodated legal sgreements for the B-) 1605 JPT) and B-) 1605 (USD) Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermida income Fund E (e " Fee
Agent Legal Expenzes”) AL the end of these Classes’ initial offering periods, the Fund will be reguired to: (i) reimburse to PIRACO andfor its affiliates the greater of: (3)
W10 mellion or () 0 20% of the aggregate amounts invested in such Classes duding their imbal Elf‘!':fll'lg peerids (Sch amouni nok o exceed te Fee Agent Legal
Expérriad sdvanced), and (i) arncetine sudh Fee Adent Legal Expentes 1o the redévant Class over the first fiscal year of its operations. All or a portion of the remaning
Fieg Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed o future B share dasses sdded 10 and offered bry any senes of the Trust, FIMCO Berrnuda Trust, PIMCO
Berrnuds Trust IV, PIMOD Capman Trust andfor PIBC O Cayrman SPC Limited within oneé year from the end of the inatial offering peniods of the B-J 1605 (PY) and B
1605 (USDY Classes of wnits of the PIMCO Bermuda iIncoime Fund E o sudh other penod of drme Sat the iecesrment Adviser detemmines m 15 dmedan

In addnon, FIMCO andor it affifates will nisally advance 1o the PIMCO Bemisda income Fund E legal expen et inouned in connection with exeauting the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agreements for she B<) 1609 (FY) and B-) 1609 (USD) Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermuada Income Fund E (350 a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses). At the end of the B-J 160° (JF) and B-1 1609 (LSD) Classes” indtial offering periods, the FIMCO Bermupda income Fund E wil
be required ot ) rewnburss o PIMCO andér it affliates the greater of: (2) Y10 million ce (b} 0. 20% of the aojegate smoums invested in sudh Classes during their
nitial offening pericds (sch amount not o exgesd the total of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unreimingrsed portion of any Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previoudy advanced in connection with the gestion of @y B dhare dass of any seres of the Trust, AMCO Bemuda Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trust IV, PIMCD Cayman
Trust andeor PINGCO Cayrnan SPC Lamated wathin one year fnam he respective ends of the mitial ollenng o such other period of Bme that the imestment Adviser
determings in its discretion), and (8) amaortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the relevant Class over the st fiscal year of its operations. Al o a portion of the
remaming Fee Agent Legal Expentes advanced may be expensed 1o future B share dasies added to and offered by arry series of the Trust, PIMCD Bermuda Trus,
PIMCO Bermuda Trust &, AMCO Cayman Trust andfor PIMCO C yman SPC Limited within one year from the: respective ends of the initial oftesing periods or such
other period of time that the Investment Adviser determines in its disoretion

PINC0 andfor its affiliates will also initially advance to the FINMCO Bemuda Income Fund E legal epences inqumed in connection with exeqating the Fes Agent
Appoantmint Agreerment and ssodated hegal sgreements for the B-l 1612 (IPY) and B-) 1612 (USD) Classes of units of the PIMCO Bemiuda Incoms Fund E (3504
partof the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) At the end of the B-J 1612 (0P} and B-J 1612 (USEY Classes’ initia offering periods, the PIMCO Bernida Income Fund Ewill
e resdiried toc ) rernburse 10 PIMCO andfor it affiliaces the greater of: () V10 million of (B) 0.20% of the sggregate sroumts imvested in wsch Clavses duning heir
mitidl offening periods (sudh amount not 1o axcesd the total of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unreimbursed porgon of any Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses
previpusly advanced in cornection with the oeation of any B share dass of any series of the Tryst, FIMCO Bermuda Trust, IMCD Bermuda Trust i, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfior FIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the initial offering or such other period of Gme that the investment Adviser
determines in its discretion), and () amontize such Fee Agent Legal Expenies bo the relevant Class over the first fiscal year of its operations. All or & portion of the
remainng Fee Agent Legal Expenses achvanced may be expensed to future B share dasses added o and affered by any Series of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Tast
PIMCO Bermuda Toust IV, FIMICO Cayman Trust andior PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the inittal offeding periods of sedh
other peritd of time tat the imaesiment Adviser detemmines in its divoeton. For the yedr ended October 31, 2019 there were no mire Fee Agent Legal Expermses
remIneng

PAMMCO Short-Term Mortgage incame (the EUR, JFY, and USD (lasses) and PIMCO Wodd High Income pay on-going expentes rel ated to the public offering of her
units in lapan
10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The irevestrment Adviter i 3 rel abed party 1o the Finds and is a majonty-oened wibddiany of Aluanz Assel Management AG. Fees paid to the related party, if any, ane
disdlosed in Mote %, and acoued related party fee amounts, if amy, ane disdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

Allianz Asset Management AG, 2 related party of the Trust, cwned 0.004% of the net assets of the FIMCO Bermipda Low Duration income Fund, 10.304% of the net
assets of the PIMCO Bermuda Morigage Opportunities Fund, §.758% of e net assets of Se PIMCO Short-Terrm Mortgage income: Fund and 0 0001 % of the net
assets of the FIMCO LS. High Yield Strategy Fund B as of Odober 31, 309

Foumy i g | et 31, 2015 ]
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2020 10
78,579 8,210
743 78
77,836 8,132
9,545,372
8.15 852
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2021
778,167,993.64 813 299
850,000
58,608.02
850,000
250,000

2017 176,759,578.09
2018 192,872,867.64
2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
Managing Member
agreement

Ooooooooooooooooooad

150,000

150,000
1,250,000

limited liability company

2021

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Joshua Anderson

Andrew Balls

Jamil Baz

Ryan P. Blute

Philippe Bodereau

Andrew Bosomworth

David L. Braun

Geraldine Brigliadori Walsh

Erin Browne

Elizabeth Cantrill
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Rick Chan

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Joshua Davis

Craig A. Dawson

Pramol Dhawan

Chris Dialynas

Dragesic, Anna

Jennifer E. Durham

Mohsen Fahmi

Feigley, Patrick

Joachim Fels

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

Alessandro Gandolfi

Russell Gannaway

Stuart T. Graham

Granger, Nicolas

L
Gubner, Adam L.

(Sachin Gupta)

(Gregory W. Hall)

Jonathan L. Horne

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

Andrew R. Jessop

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

(Alejandro Kersman)

Mark R. Kiesel

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

Kimberley G. Korinke

Ryan Korinke

Richard R. LeBrun

Dirk Manelski
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Sudi N. Mariappa

(Rene Martel)

Scott A. Mather

Ravi K. Mattu

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

Mohit Mittal

Alfred T. Murata

John W. Murrary

Lorenzo Pagani

Stephen A. Rodosky

(Emmanuel Roman)

Jerome M. Schneider

Marc P. Seidner

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Greg E. Sharenow

Adam Shukovsky

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Jason R. Steiner

Christian Stracke

Peter G. Strelow

John J. Studzinski

Sung Hee Suh

Eric M. Sutherland

(Eve Tournier)

Qi Wang

Weinstein, Jamie

Whitten, Candice Stack

Frank Witt

Robert 0. Young
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2021 323
807,059,843,934

114 459,952,011,377

22 15,172,849,246

12 25,520,693,968
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68 225,279,922,176
9 10,183,747,690
29 9,114,556,730
35 20,575,510,460
12 23,623,280,564
2 606,281,331
5 2,317,809,307
15 14,713,181,085
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2018 12 31 2019 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2021 29
104.48
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
2(c) 422,556,446 44,148,697 429,220,995 44,845,010
2(d),4 30,623,395 3,199,532 32,459,901 3,391,410
2(e) 698,851,736 73,016,029 552,952,116 57,772,437
2(e) 282,546,439 29,520,452 254,081,349 26,546,419
36,373,824 3,800,337 32,694,941 3,415,967
2(e) 25,219,844 2,634,969 25,166,878 2,629,435
2(j),8(e) 19,239,181 2,010,110 15,657,169 1,635,861
7 13,010,339 1,359,320 7,382,210 771,293
60,915,714 6,364,474 43,846,429 4,581,075
1,589,336,918 166,053,921  1,393,461,988 145,588,909
2019 12 31
325,786,180 2018 12 31

292,930,004 2(F),6 144,839,482 15,132,829 146,862,606 15,344,205

2(i),10 209,441,754 21,882,474
2(j),8(e) 669,472,591 69,946,496 460,075,450 48,068,683

2(h) 30,865,176 3,224,794

2(9) 24,413,103 2,550,681
2(b) 16,086,963 1,680,766 13,463,668 1,406,684
9 33,253,757 3,474,353 29,821,480 3,115,748
1,128,372,826 117,892,393 650,223,204 67,935,320
2,717,709,744 283,946,314  2,043,685,192 213,524,229
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2019 2018

409,454,573 42,779,814 433,350,570 45,276,468

7 228,000,000 23,821,440 212,000,000 22,149,760

8 208,752,447 21,810,456 155,868,165 16,285,106

5 124,895,219 13,049,052 102,698,345 10,729,923
2(1),10 30,057,351 3,140,392 -
7 21,460,619 2,242,205 20,488,078 2,140,594
2(r),8(e) 19,239,181 2,010,110 15,657,169 1,635,861
11,190,145 1,169,146 8,230,351 859,907

1,053,049,535 110,022,615 948,292,678 99,077,619

2(r),8(e) 669,472,591 69,946,496 460,075,450 48,068,683
2(i),10 220,717,637 23,060,579 -
8 164,382,884 17,174,724 130,404,396 13,624,651

2(i),10 - 42,013,112 4,389,530
3,022,510 315,792 1,550,631 162,010
1,057,595, 622 110,497,591 634,043,589 66,244,874

2,110,645,157 220,520,206  1,582,336,267 165,322,493

850,000 (683,902,349)  (71,454,117)  (792,957,184) (82,848,167)
150,000 1,288,040,853 134,574,508  1,267,204,122 132,397,487
2019 12 31
48,876 2018 12 31 45,705 28,952,832 3,024,992 23,722,086 2,478,484
2019 12 31
153,400 2018 12 31 143,858 8(a) 32,591,945 3,405,206 28,576,118 2,985,633
2(0) (58,618,694)  (6,124,481)  (65,196,217)  (6,811,701)

607,064,587 63,426,108 461,348,925 48,201,736
2,717,709,744 283,946,314  2,043,685,192 213,524,229
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018

2(e) 3,801,610,877 397,192,304 3,699,085,263 386,480,428
2(e) 1,011,008,189 105,630,136 897,932,904 93,816,030
2(e) 1,152,533,169 120,416,665 1,121,459,653 117,170,105
2(e) 380,555,089 39,760,396 400,632,761 41,858,111
2(e) 23,903,886 2,497,478 21,116,690 2,206,272
6,369,611,210 665,496,979 6,140,227 ,271 641,530,945
8 2,125,025,461 222,022,660 1,921,490,575 200,757,335
5 857,070,964 89,546,774 814,837,039 85,134,174
2(s) 637,010,892 66,554,898 625,372,554 65,338,924
214,712,229 22,433,134 246,110,361 25,713,611
6,10 159,176,036 16,630,712 152,147,106 15,896,330
2(n) 120,596,262 12,599,897 116,090,003 12,129,084
50,264,299 5,251,614 54,856,322 5,731,389
27,702,379 2,894,345 61,327,125 6,407,458
4,191,558,522 437,934,034 3,992,231,085 417,108,304
2,178,052,688 227,562,945 2,147,996,186 224,422,642
57,347,069 5,991,622 24,051,878 2,512,940

2(i),
10 (10,703,929) (1,118,347) (2,267,772) (236,937)
2(b) (1,278,635) (133,592) (1,873,076) (195,699)
2,223,417,193 232,302,628 2,167,907,216 226,502,946
9 98,821,295 10,324,849 105,979,276 11,072,715
2,124,595,898 221,977,779 2,061,927,940 215,430,231
2(0) 6,577,523 687,220 (19,376,611) (2,024,468)
2,131,173,421 222,664,999 2,042,551 ,329 213,405,763
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2018 12 31

PIMCO

2019 12 31

2019 2018 12 31
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850,000 (721,216,276) (75,352,677) 150,000 1,290,399, 100 134,820,898 45,705 28,660,677 2,994,468
(17,852,184) (1,865,196) (3,319,784) (346,851) (959,921) (100,293)
850,000 (739,068,460) (77,217,873) 150,000 1,287,079,316 134,474,047 45,705 27,700,756 2,894,175
1,523,328,377 159,157,349 450,997,001 47,120,167 87,602,562 9,152,716
(1,595,853,856)  (166,734,811) (470,872,195) (49,196,727) (91,581,232)  (9,568,407)
18,636,755 1,947,168
850,000 (792,957,184) (82,848,167) 150,000 1,267,204,122 132,397,487 45,705 23,722,086 2,478,484
1,556,133,972 162,584,877 472,136,883 49,328,862 96,325,043 10,064,040
(1,459,197,453)  (152,456,950) (451,300,152) (47,151,840) (91,397,156)  (9,549,175)
1,444,428 150,914
10,673,888 1,115,208 302,859 31,643
850,000 (683,902,349) (71,454,117) 150,000 1,288,040,853 134,574,508 48,876 28,952,832 3,024,992
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2017 12 31
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2018 12 31

PIMCO

2019 12 31
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2019 2018 12 31

122,972 30,984,305 3,237,240 (45,819, 606) (4,787,232) 583,008,200 60,912,697
(22,131,889) (2,312,340)
122,972 30,984,305 3,237,240 (45,819, 606) (4,787,232) 560,876,311 58,600,357
2,061,927,940 215,430,231
(2,158,307,283) (225,499,945)
16,228,568 1,695,561 16,228,568 1,695,561

(18,636,755) (1,947,168)
(19,376,611) (2,024,468) (19,376,611) (2,024,468)
143,858 28,576,118 2,985,633 (65,196,217) (6,811,701) 461,348,925 48,201,736
2,124,595,898 221,977,779
(2,001,894,761) (209,157,965)
1,444,428 150,914
14,992,574 1,566,424 14,992,574 1,566,424

(10,976,747) (1,146,851)
6,577,523 687,220 6,577,523 687,220
153,400 32,591,945 3,405,206 (58,618,694) (6,124,481) 607,064,587 63,426,108
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2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
2,124,595,898 221,977,779 2,061,927,940 215,430,231
14,579,559 1,523,272 15,754,902 1,646,072
65,882,645 6,883,419 45,224,698 4,725,076
10,703,929 1,118,347 2,267,772 236,937
1,278,635 133,592 1,873,076 195,699
59,310 6,197 7,685,839 803,016
(99,913) (10, 439) 173,827 18,161
28,852,954 3,014,557
14,132,707 1,476,585 4,011,361 419,107
(11,771,410) (1,229,877) (19,366,964) (2,023,460)
(133,320, 387) (13,929,314) (104,148,954) (10,881,483)
(10,822,134) (1,130,697) (2,258,750) (235,994)
(168,718,254) (17,627,683) 59,695,625 6,236,999
(28,864,869) (3,015,802) 8,957,270 935,856
175,692,797 18,356,383 116,569,743 12,179,207
3,895,278 406,979 (5,043,030) (526,896)
2,086,076,745 217,953,298 2,193,324 355 229,158,529
(51,884,452) (5,420,888)
(30,357,371) (3,171,738) (30,106,393) (3,145,516)
(4,017,970) (419,798) (15,013,633) (1,568,624)
(86,259,793) (9,012,423) (45,120,026) (4,714,140)
2,239,000,000 233,930,720 2,211,000,000 231,005,280
(2,223,000,000)  (232,259,040)  (2,203,000,000)  (230,169,440)
(2,001,894,761)  (209,157,965)  (2,158,307,283)  (225,499,945)
1,444,428 150,914
(28,608,691) (2,989,036)
(2,013,059,024) _ (210,324,407) _ (2,150,307,283)  (224,664,105)
6,577,523 687,220 (19,376,611) (2,024,468)
(6,664,549) (696,312) (21,479,565) (2,244,185)
429,220,995 44,845,010 450,700,560 47,089,195
422,556,446 44,148,697 429,220,995 44,845,010
233,931,730 24,441,187
(274,626,538) (28,692,981)
40,694,808 4,251,794
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Assets
Note 2019 2018
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 422,556,446 429,220,995
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d),4 30,623,395 32,459,901
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 698,851,736 552,952,116
Private accounts 2(e) 282,546,439 254,081,349
Prepaid expenses 36,373,824 32,694,941
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 25,219,844 25,166,878
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j),8(e) 19,239,181 15,657,169
Receivables from affiliates 7 13,010,339 7,382,210
Other current assets 60,915,714 43,846,429
Total current assets 1,589,336,918 1,393,461,988
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $325,786,180
and $292,930,004 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively 2(f),6 144,839,482 146,862,606
Right-of-use assets 2(i),10 209,441,754 -
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j),8(e) 669,472,591 460,075,450
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 -
Intangible assets 2(g) 24,413,103 -
Investments in associates 2(b) 16,086,963 13,463,668
Other noncurrent assets 9 33,253,757 29,821,480
Total noncurrent assets 1,128,372,826 650,223,204
Total assets $ 2,717,709,744 2,043,685,192
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 409,454,573 433,350,570
Short-term borrowings from affiliates 7 228,000,000 212,000,000
Accrued compensation 8 208,752,447 155,868,165
Commissions payable 5 124,895,219 102,698,345
Lease liabilities 2(i),10 30,057,351 -
Payables to &ffiliates 7 21,460,619 20,488,078
Deferred compensation 2(r),8(e) 19,239,181 15,657,169
Other current liabilities 11,190,145 8,230,351
Total current liabilities 1,053,049,535 948,292,678
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r),8(e) 669,472,591 460,075,450
Lease liabilities 2(i),10 220,717,637 -
Other accrued compensation 8 164,382,884 130,404,396
Future lease obligations 2(i),10 - 42,013,112
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,022,510 1,550,631
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,057,595,622 634,043,589
Tota liabilities 2,110,645,157 1,582,336,267
Capital:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (683,902,349) (792,957,184)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,288,040,853 1,267,204,122
Class M members (48,876 unitsissued and outstanding as of December 31,
2019 and 45,705 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2018) 28,952,832 23,722,086
Class M unit option holders (153,400 options issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2019 and 143,858 options issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018) 8(a) 32,591,945 28,576,118
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 2(0) (58,618,694) (65,196,217)
Total capital 607,064,587 461,348,925
Total liabilities and capital $ 2,717,709,744 2,043,685,192

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Revenues: Note 2019 2018
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) 3,801,610,877 3,699,085,263
Private accounts 2(e) 1,011,008,189 897,932,904
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,152,533,169 1,121,459,653
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 380,555,089 400,632,761
Other 2(e) 23,903,886 21,116,690
Total revenues 6,369,611,210 6,140,227,271
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 8 2,125,025,461 1,921,490,575
Commissions 5 857,070,964 814,837,039
General and administrative 2(s) 637,010,892 625,372,554
Professional fees 214,712,229 246,110,361
Occupancy and equipment 6,10 159,176,036 152,147,106
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 120,596,262 116,090,003
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 50,264,299 54,856,322
Other 27,702,379 61,327,125
Total expenses 4,191,558,522 3,992,231,085
Operating income 2,178,052,688 2,147,996,186
Other income 57,347,069 24,051,878
Finance costs 2(i),10 (10,703,929) (2,267,772)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,278,635) (1,873,076)
Net income before income taxes 2,223,417,193 2,167,907,216
Income tax expense 9 98,821,295 105,979,276
Net income 2,124,595,898 2,061,927,940
Other comprehensive income/(l0ss):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trans ation adjustments 2(0) 6,577,523 (19,376,611)
Comprehensive income 2,131,173,421 2,042,551,329

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trand aion Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2017 850,000 $ (721,216,276) 150,000 $ 1,290,399,100 45,705 $ 28,660,677 122972 $ 30,984,305 $  (45,819,606) $ 583,008,200
Impact relating to adoption of IFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (17,852,184) (3,319,784) (959,921) - - (22,131,889)
Restated balances at the beginning

of the financial year 850,000 (739,068,460) 150,000 1,287,079,316 45,705 27,700,756 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 560,876,311
Net income 1,523,328,377 450,997,001 87,602,562 - - 2,061,927,940
Distributions (1,595,853,856) (470,872,195) (91,581,232) - - (2,158,307,283)
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 16,228,568 - 16,228,568

Reallocation of basis on vested options 18,636,755 - - (18,636,755) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (19,376,611) (19,376,611)
Balances at December 31, 2018 850,000 (792,957,184) 150,000 1,267,204,122 45,705 23,722,086 143,858 28,576,118 (65,196,217) 461,348,925
Net income 1,556,133,972 472,136,883 96,325,043 - - 2,124,595,898
Distributions (1,459,197,453) (451,300,152) (91,397,156) - - (2,001,894,761)
Contribution 1,444,428 - - - - 1,444,428
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 14,992,574 - 14,992,574

Reallocation of basis on vested options 10,673,888 - 302,859 (10,976,747) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 6,577,523 6,577,523
Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 $ (683,902,349) 150,000 $ 1,288,040,853 48,876 ¢ 28,952,832 153,400 $ 32,591,945 ¢ (58,618,694) $ 607,064,587

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,124,595,898 2,061,927,940
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 14,579,559 15,754,902
Depreciation and amortization 65,882,645 45,224,698
Finance costs 10,703,929 2,267,772
Equity inloss of associates 1,278,635 1,873,076
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 59,310 7,685,839
Unrealized and realized (gain)/loss on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss (99,913) 173,827
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 28,852,954 -
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 14,132,707 4,011,361
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (11,771,410) (19,366,964)
Income taxes paid (133,320,387) (104,148,954)
Interest paid (10,822,134) (2,258,750)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Feesreceivable (168,718,254) 59,695,625
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (28,864,869) 8,957,270
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 175,692,797 116,569,743
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates 3,895,278 (5,043,030)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,086,076,745 2,193,324,355
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired (51,884,452) -
Purchases of property and equipment (30,357,371) (30,106,393)
Purchases of investments in associates (4,017,970) (15,013,633)
Net cash used in investing activities (86,259,793) (45,120,026)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 2,239,000,000 2,211,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (2,223,000,000) (2,203,000,000)
Cash distributions paid (2,001,894,761) (2,158,307,283)
Cash contribution received 1,444,428 -
Principal elements of lease payments (28,608,691) -
Net cash used in financing activities (2,013,059,024) (2,150,307,283)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6,577,523 (19,376,611)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (6,664,549) (21,479,565)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 429,220,995 450,700,560
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 422,556,446 429,220,995
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Initia recognition of right-of-use assets $ 233,931,730 -
Initial recognition of lease liabilities (274,626,538) -
Derecognition of future lease obligation 40,694,808 -

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2019, 48,876
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financia statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dealer that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutual Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by
PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC is aregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00190% interest and 0.00181% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUSL P. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branchin Italy.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.
PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) Limited (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll servicesto
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Global Services LLC isaholding company, with branchesin the United Kingdom and Hong Kong.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is in the process of registering as an investment advisor
in China

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.

After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2019 and 2018

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 24,
2020.

(b) Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to
determine whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under
the equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in PIMCQO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or
loss primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses
from changesin fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement
asto whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the
Company from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities,
including the power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the
structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only, and key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities
and a narrow and well defined objective.

() Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions,
nonaffiliated money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by
Allianz SE. There was $179.1 million and $180.9 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. As of December 31, 2019, cash equivalents deposited in the cash
pool with Allianz SE totaled $27 thousand, and $620 thousand was deposited in the cash pool at December 31,
2018. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various federally insured banking
ingtitutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federa Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar foreign federal programs), and as a result, there is a
concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

(Continued)

365/438



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
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December 31, 2019 and 2018

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading
business model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a
short-to-moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(e) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned
in exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative
services for the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing
costs. The performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are
substantially the same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under
management and recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided
in other periods. As the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of
assets under management, the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the
dependence on unpredictable asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is
generally once these values can be determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company
may also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles.
Such fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually
at the end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and
the fees are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutua Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the
performance obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue
amounts are based on percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the
consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset
values. The constraint is removed once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Revenues related to investment advisory and administration is included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.
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Revenues related to distribution and servicing fees are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in
the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. The impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers was inconsequential. There are no
contract liabilities related to these contracts.

(f) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three
to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the
related leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets relate to amounts acquired in a business combination and consist of customer relationships,
developed technology, and trade name. The fair values of the acquired assets were determined using the multi-
period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost method for the devel oped
technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible assets are amortized over
their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to 3 years, using the straight-line method. Certain
contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible
assets.

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely
than not that a goodwill impairment exists.

(i) Leases

As explained in note 3, the Company has changed its accounting policy where the company is the lessee. Our
leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. For the year ending December
31, 2018, these leases were classified as operating leases. Payments under operating leases were recognized on
a straight-line basis over the lease term and included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. From January 1, 2019, these leases were
recoghized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability.

The Company has measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or
market rate of variable lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market
rate result in a remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of
lease liabilities that is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current
liability in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.
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Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each
period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases
are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K} Income Taxes

PIMCO is not subject to United States (U.S.) federal income tax asit is organized as alimited liability company
and is taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their
proportionate share of PIMCO's taxable income. PIMCO is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the
u.s.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

() Distributions
Although there is no contractua requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after

the end of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably
necessary or appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.
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(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital,
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As
the Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the
Company’s management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public
entities, discounted cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the
Company’s historical and forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promotional

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandlated primarily at the exchange rate on the date
on which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with
a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income/loss. The
cumulative trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency
other than the U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statementsin conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts
of revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current
economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actua results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where
judgment is necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the
Company’s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to
the Company’s future earnings; and
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Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(e)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation
of such entities.

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future
events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision
where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is
expected to be reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r) Défarred Compensation
The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the
carrying value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred
compensation trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative
General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under
the administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to aobtain or fulfill a contract. The
Company is considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

() Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.
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(3) Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
Leases

The Company adopted IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), on January 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective approach;
therefore, any comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under 1AS 17 Leases
(IAS 17) and IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease (IFRIC 4). Under IFRS 16, the
Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a
corresponding financial liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Company used the following practical expedients for al leases:

The need not to reassess whether expired or existing contracts are or contain leases; or reassess any initial
direct costs for existing leases.

Use hindsight in determining the lease term and in assessing impairment of the right-of-use assets.

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at
the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate as at January 1, 2019. The weighted average incremental
borrowing rate applied at the date of initial application was 2.59%. A liability of $274.6 million was initially
recognized for operating leases. The right-of-use asset was measured at an amount equal to the lease liability and
adjusted by the remaining balance of the future lease obligation. The adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a
significant impact to the results of operations.

The operating lease commitments reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 can be reconciled to the lease liabilities
reported under IFRS 16 as follows:

Operating lease commitment as of December 31, 2018 $ 206,586,026
Recognition exemption for leases expiring
before December 31, 2019 (96,826)
Extension options reasonably certain to be exercised 106,291,903
Other 90,806
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at
January 1, 2019 (38,245,371)
L ease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 274,626,538
Revenue

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized on the date of initial application. Upon
adoption, the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings was $22.1 million. This adjustment relates to sales
commissions paid to third party intermediaries in connection with the sale of shares of affiliated mutual funds sold
without a front-end sales charge which were previously capitalized. These commission costs do not meet the
criteria of incremental costs of obtaining a contract and are, therefore, expensed as incurred under IFRS 15. Any
sales commissions that are recaptured through contingent deferred sales charges are recorded as other revenue.
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The most significant impact of the adoption to the Company relates to the presentation of certain distribution costs
gross within commission expense that were previously netted within investment advisory fees - pooled funds
revenue.

There was no other impact to revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018, as revenue recognition and timing
of revenue did not change as aresult of implementing IFRS 15.

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which fully replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement and provides a new approach on how to classify financia instruments
based on their cash flow characteristics and the business model under which they are managed. Furthermore, the
standard introduces a new forward-looking impairment model for debt instruments and provides new rules for
hedge accounting.

Financial assets such as the following categories included in IAS 39 are no longer available: held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available for sale. Rather, under IFRS 9, a financial asset is classified as measured at:
amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") oninitial recognition based on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics.

This standard did not have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements. There was no impact to
opening retained earnings aresult of applying this standard.

(4) Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financia
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financia instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $30.6 million and
$32.5 million as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2019 and 2018.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust primarily consist of mutual funds
and equity securities, which are classified as Level 1 instruments for 2019 and 2018.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2019 or
2018.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(5) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed asincurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at a rate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. The contingent deferred sales charges
are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an applicable exemption applies such as if the
redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested dividends or capital gain distributions or
appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. Pl LLC incurred $51.4 million and $30.6 million
in commissions to third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively, which is included in commissions in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges on Class C shares is generaly 1% if redeemed during the first year
following purchase for applicable PIMCO Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may also be received on the
redemption of certain PIMCO Funds Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares,
if theinitial purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. Pl LLC received $2.0 million and $3.5
million in contingent deferred sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively, which is included in other revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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(6) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture,
fixtures, and Leasehold
software improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2017 $ 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
Additions 28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
Disposals (7,685,840) - - (7,685,840)
Depreciation and amortization (35,360,085) (9,864,613) - (45,224,698)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606
Additions 19,601,796 12,515,207 - 32,117,003
Disposals (358,633) - - (358,633)
Depreciation and amortization (25,869,200) (7,912,294) - (33,781,494)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 55,556,965 88,261,081 1,021,436 144,839,482

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $33.8 million and $45.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(7) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP for certain overhead, administrative services, and occupancy
costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These expenses
generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for finance, information technology, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $36.1 million and $50.4 million
during 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
aliability to be paid to AAM LP in connection with these services and payables to other affiliates in connection
with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on behalf of PIMCO over the
ordinary course of business, totaling $11.1 million as of December 31, 2019 and $10.7 million as of December 31,
2018.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2019
and 2018, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, PIMCO had outstanding short-term loans totaling
$228.0 million and $212.0 million, respectively, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2019 and 2018, PIMCO incurred $3.7
million and $2.3 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had $724.1
million (2018: $578.1 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $45.8 million and $41.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively, which are primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $8.6 million and $6.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses
and marketing and promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PIMCO Deutschland GmbH and its branches (collectively PDG), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH, who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PDG,
together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are subject to PIMCO’s Globa Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer
Pricing Policy) for shared management services that are provided by all PIMCO entities. Shared management
services provided include portfolio management, account management and business management and
administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared management services are allocated in accordance
with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2019, the revenue earned from third parties for shared management services
alocated to PDG was $40.3 million (2018: $36.9 million) greater than the revenue alocated from PDG and is
presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PDG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2019, costs alocated to PDG
were $33.3 million (2018: $30.8 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2019, the Company had a $9.8 million (2018: $6.5 million) receivable from and a $10.3
million (2018: $9.8 million) payable to PDG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and payables
to affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE, which expires in November 2020. The
facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 20bps (rate of 1.743% as of
December 31, 2019). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf of
its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2019 and 2018.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2019 and 2018

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 8. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Benefit Plans
(@ ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option
grant date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over
the related vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless
transaction unless the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan.
As disclosed in note 8(e), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred
Compensation Plan (the EDCP). If, at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less
than the exercise price of the option award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units
of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt
of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units are authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. As of December 31, 2019
and 2018, 153,400 and 143,858 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding, and 48,876 M units have been
issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party
vauation was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend
yield was estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed
to M unit holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select
group of peers using the Merton Method. The expected life was cal culated based upon treating the three vesting
tranches (one third in years 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.

(Continued)
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The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 14,519 15,528
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 3.84
Expected volatility 17.9% 21.0%
Expected dividends 13.2% 11.8%
Risk free rate of return 2.4% 2.5%

A summary of the activity in 2019 and 2018 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the
M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options exercise
Vested Nonvested Totd price

Outstanding at

December 31, 2017 - 122,972 122,972 s 14,486
Changes during the year:

Granted - 49,595 49,595 15,528

Vested 19,084 (19,084) - -

Exercised (19,084) - (19,084) 23,594

Forfeited - (9,625) (9,625) 14,954
Outstanding at

December 31, 2018 - 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Changes during the year:

Granted - 39,751 39,751 14,519

Vested 23,492 (23,492 - -

Exercised (23,492 - (23,492) 16,178

Forfeited - (6,717) (6,717) 12,618
Outstanding at

December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 s 13,492
Exercisable as of

December 31, 2019 - - - -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2019 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $16,587
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 2.87 years.

(Continued)
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The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $14,622 for 2019 and
$15,487 for 2018. M unit options totaling 23,492 vested during 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 3,171 M units. No other M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2019,
48,445 M units are owned by current employees and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM
LLC.

M unit options totaling 19,084 options vested during 2018. The M unit estimated fair values as of the vesting
dates for those options were less than the exercise price of each of those option awards. Therefore, as aresult of
the automatic cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued in 2018 and the entire Black-Scholes amount
was reallocated from the Class M unit option capital account to the Class A member capital account in the
accompanying consolidated statements of changesin capital.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $14.6 million and $15.8 million, respectively, and is
included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2019, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested
M unit option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through
December 31, 2024 is $20.1 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation under these programs was $1.3 billion and $1.2
billion for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
compensation expense under the LTIP of $50.5 million and $52.6 million for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively. LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability
was $111.1 million and $106.4 million at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and is included within
current accrued compensation and noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

(Continued)
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(d) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP is the sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering PIMCO
employees. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and allows eligible
employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is subject to a maximum
dollar amount determined from time to time by the Interna Revenue Code. Employees are generally eligible
following the later of attainment of age 21 or on the first day of the month following the start date. After the
completion of one year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to
the Internal Revenue Code limits, contributed by the employees. The amount expensed by the Company related
to this plan during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $15.4 million and $13.3 million,
respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(e) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company and subsidiaries may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2),
301(8)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts
deferred under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as
directed by the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to
fund ongoing activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of
insolvency. Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability as
of December 31, 2019 and as December 31, 2018 was $688.7 million and $475.7 million, respectively, and are
included in interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

() Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz
SE determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines
the discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and amounted to $167 thousand in 2019 and $1.1 million in 2018 and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(9) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are asfollows:

Y ear ended December 31

2019 2018
Current:

Federal $ 11,770 6,278
State 2,022,507 856,534
Foreign 100,158,160 108,644,006
Total current 102,192,437 109,506,818

Deferred:
Foreign (3,371,142) (3,527,542)
Total deferred (3,371,142) (3,527,542)
Total provision $ 98,821,295 105,979,276

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, income taxes payable amounted to $36.7 million and $39.7 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, deferred tax assets amounted
to $21.4 million and $17.7 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2019, and 2018,
amounted to $61 thousand and $21 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial condition.

(10) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs during the year ended December 31, 2019 that are included in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset $ 29,146,041
Interest expense on lease liabilities 6,961,811
Variable lease cost 136,753
Short-term lease cost 671,976
Expenses of |eases of low value assets 2,192,653

For the year ended December 31, 2019, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $38.6 million.

(Continued)
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The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities:

Year ending December 31.

2020 $ 37,196,686
2021 36,018,999
2022 34,857,028
2023 33,003,033
2024 19,746,963
Thereafter 124,158,997
Total operating lease payments 284,981,706
Lessimputed interest 34,206,718
Present value of lease liabilities $ 250,774,988

(11) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
bank deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually
material to the Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does
not require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for
each customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of
collection on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual
customer has been identified as at risk for collection.
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Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such ingtitutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aways have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2019.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial
obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company has access to AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as
discussed in note 7.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk istherisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions aso occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Y en.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds
the Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material

investments in such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in
accordance with client guidelines or the funds governing documents.
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In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2019, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material
differences to members capital as of December 31, 2019 or the reported comprehensive income for the year
then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl LLC (see note 13) and certain foreign
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(12) Provisions

PIMCO is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which arise in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently pending
and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financial position or results
of operations. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for provisions in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees asincurred.

(13) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. On December 31, 2019, Pl LLC made the election to
operate under the aternative standard set forth in Rule 15¢3-1. As of December 31, 2019, Pl LLC had net capital
of $57.5 million for regulatory purposes, which was $57.2 million in excess of its required net capital of $250
thousand.

For the year ending December 31, 2018, Pl LLC was required to maintain minimum net capital that required that
the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15-to-1. At December 31,
2018, PI LLC had net capital of $49.7 million for regulatory purposes, which was $45.9 million in excess of its
required net capital of $3.8 million. PI LLC's aggregate indebtedness to net capita ratio was 1.14-to-1 as of
December 31, 2018.
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(14) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $535.5
thousand and $178.2 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which isincluded in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the
accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’ s interests in those vehicles:

December 31
2019 2018
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 493,340,219 $ 289,027,697
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 170,996 131,786

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(15) Acquisition

On January 2, 2019, PIMCO fully acquired the equity interest in Gurtin Municipal Bond Management, a
municipal bond manager. The acquisition alows the combined business to offer clients a more extensive and
enhanced suite of strategies and services, backed by broader muni credit research and quantitative analysis, and
enhanced technology. The Company paid cash consideration of $51.9 million, net of cash received. In allocating
the purchase price, the Company recorded goodwill of $30.9 million, which represents the amount of
consideration paid over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired including intangible assets with afair
value of $27.4 million as well as future contingent consideration. Intangible assets acquired consist of customer
relationships, developed technology, and trade name.
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(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 24, 2020, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 27,775 vested on January 15, 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards were
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 9,732 M units.

On March 13, 2020, PIMCO granted 29,802 M unit options that have an exercise price of $17,806 per unit.

In early 2020, the existence of a hew coronavirus (“COVID-19") was confirmed which has since spread across a
significant number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and global markets. The Company
considers the emergence and spread of COVID-19 to be a non-adjusting post balance sheet event. Since the
balance sheet date, the Company has seen AuM outflows and negative returns, but it has not resulted in a material
adverse impact to the Company through April 24, 2020. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practicable at
this time to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of
any future impact.
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2020

30

986,012,126 103,018,547
21,253,078 2,220,522
535,339,566 55,932,278
294,683,703 30,788,553
47,193,259 4,930,752
22,516,326 2,352,506
19,524,499 2,039,920
17,624,264 1,841,383
57,060,877 5,961,720

2,001,207,698

209,086,180

129,963,779 13,578,616
196,429,588 20,522,963
627,465,500 65,557,595
30,865,176 3,224,794
28,829,715 3,012,129
15,134,281 1,581,230
46,813,772 4,891,103

1,075,501,811

112,368,429

3,076,709,509

321,454,610
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367,274,561 38,372,846
508,495,201 53,127,579
109,796,650 11,471,554
31,558,658 3,297,249
20,330,975 2,124,180
19,524,499 2,039,920
10,971,849 1,146,339

1,067,952,393

111,579,666

627,465,500 65,557,595
207,122,378 21,640,146
118,556,440 12,386,777

4,131,438 431,653

957,275,756

100,016,171

2,025,228,149

211,595,837

850,000 (216,025,072) (22,570,300)
150,000 1,275,468,926 133,260,993
58,608 34,906,516 3,647,033
153,629 29,612,176 3,093,880
(72,481,186) (7,572,834)

1,051,481,360

109,858,772

3,076,709,509

321,454,610
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2020

30

1,834,662,925

191,685,582

520,077,828 54,337,731
562,972,705 58,819,388
179,780,107 18,783,426
24,815,681 2,592,742

3,122,309, 246

326,218,870

956,315,329 99,915,826
388,669,270 40,608,165
299,485,496 31,290,245
112,039,220 11,705,858
81,856,277 8,552,344
54,365,575 5,680,115
22,662,089 2,367,735
20,748,079 2,167,759

1,936,141,335

202,288,047

1,186,167,911

123,930,823

(45,314, 186) (4,734,426)
(3,603,229) (376, 465)
(968,046) (101,141)

1,136,282,450

47,304,597

118,718,790

4,942,384

1,088,977,853

(13,862,492)

113,776,406

(1,448,353)

1,075,115,361

112,328,053
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850,000 (683,902,349) (71,454,117) 150,000 1,288,040,853 134,574,508 48,876 28,952,832 3,024,992
788,445,427 82,376,778 241,963,009 25,280,295 58,569,417 6,119,333
(332,290,733) (34,717,736) (254,534,936) (26,593,810) (56,453,628)  (5,898,275)
4,984,931 520,826
6,737,652 703,950 3,837,895 400,983
850,000 (216,025,072) (22,570,300) 150,000 1,275,468,926 133,260,993 58,608 34,906,516 3,647,033
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2020 30

153,400 32,501,945 3,405,206 (58,618,694) (6,124,481) 607,064,587 63,426,108
1,088,977,853 113,776,406
(643,279,297) (67,209,821)
4,984,931 520,826
7,595,778 793,607 7,595,778 793,607

(10,575,547) (1,104,933)
(13,862,492) (1,448,353) (13,862,492) (1,448,353)
153,629 29,612,176 3,093,880 (72,481,186) (7.572,834) 1,051,481,360 109,858,772
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2020 30

1,088,977,853

113,776,406

7,448,008 778,177
36,134,904 3,775,375
3,603,229 376,465
968,046 101,141
12,114 1,266
38,377 4,010
15,010,423 1,568,289
(5,786,719) (604,596)
(80,637,974) (8,425,056)
(3,455,900) (361,072)
154,078,424 16,008,114
(24,879,984) (2,599,461)
277,275,703 28,969,765
(386,342) (40, 365)

1,468,400,252

153,418,458

(3,592,110) (375,304)
(2,921,920) (305,282)
(18,000) (1,881)
(6,532,030) (682,466)
416,000,000 43,463,680

(644,000,000)
(643,279,297)

4,984,931
(18,255, 684)

(67,285,120)

(67,209,821)
520,826

(1,907,354)

(884,550,050)

(92,417,789)

(13,862,492) (1,448,353)
563,455,680 58,869,849
422,556,446 44,148,697

986,012,126

103,018,547
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2018
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2019 24 PIMCO PL PIMCO PIMCO
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2019 12 17 PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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2021

PIMCO
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2019
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PIMCO Pacific Investment Management Campany LLC
2021 778,167,993.64 813 299
1971
1940 PIMCO
PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2021 25 2,612

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2021 10 4,000 1,086 5,920

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2021 1,209 12 6,316

1989
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2009 2009
2009 2009
2035 31
2006
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3,050
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2020, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the
financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are
hereafter collectively referred to as"financia statements'.

@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M) ¥

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) ) PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund || @)

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en- (1)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
(€Y
d

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥
Fun

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11
Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) ! PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @ PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund @
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E @) PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund |1 @
PIMCO Bermuda L ow Duration Income Fund @ PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund &

@) Statements of operations and of changesin net assets and the financia highlights for the year ended October
31, 2020

& Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2020, and the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2020, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 19, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in
capital, and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financia statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the
financial position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financia statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts
for leasesin 2019. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

April 24, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2019 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO
Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund the statement of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods indicated
in the table below. These financial statements and financial highlights are heresfter collectively referred to as "financia
statements’.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M) Y

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) ¥ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |11 @
@

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en- PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income

Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
d (€

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund
Fun

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond | 100 4 5, High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 @

Fund (M) @

@

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A © PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E Y PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11
PIMCO Bermuda L ow Duration Income Fund @ PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended October
31, 2019

@ Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended October 31, 2019

& Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2019, and the
financia highlights for each of the periods indicated therein
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@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the period from

July 9, 2019 (inception date) to October 31, 2019

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds interna control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2019, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund its cash flows, and each of
their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 16, 2020
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